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BUILDING A
SUSTAINABLE FUTURE

Sustainability is the culmination of business in today’s world. To address problems
that threaten our planet and in turn the very survival of business itself, is not only top
priority but in fact the need of the hour.

In line with this objective, Thal Limited, an entity well aware of its responsibility
towards people and our environment, has consistently been engaged in ‘conscious
business’ - on a mission to make lives and livelihoods sustainable through the
adoption of best practices. We are already on the path to ensuring sustainable
futures through a variety of our businesses, some of which produce an array of
paper packaging and environmentally friendly jute sacks for food staples as well.

This year, we move deeper into our commitment to ‘Bulding a Sustainable Future’
so that together we can create a meaningful impact for all the lives we touch and our
world at large. As we stand before you in our 54thYear, we hope that stakeholders
encourage us on the journey to making our Company a trademark of responsible
behavior for future generations.
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THAL LIMITED

GROWTH WITH A PURPOSE

Thal Limited has the distinction of being the flagship
industrial project of the group. Incorporated in 1966 as
Thal Jute Mills Limited the company renamed itself as
Thal Limited in 2004 as part of the organization’s
consolidation strategy. Currently the company manages
two distinct businesses: the engineering business and the
building material & packaging business.

The Engineering division of Thal Limited owns and operates
the Electrical Systems business; the Thermal Systems
business and the Engine Components business. The
Electrical Systems business is involved in manufacturing of
wide range of wiring harness products from simple cable
preparation to highly complex wiring harnesses, cable
assemblies, and battery cables mainly for Automotive
industry. The business came into existence in the year 2000
with the signing of a TAA (Technical Assistance Agreement)
with Furukawa Electric Company, Japan. Furrukawa is one
of the leading suppliers of automotive wiring harness system
in the world. Moreover during the course of the current
year, the Company’s Engineering Segment, laid the
foundations for a new plant to cater to expansion in its
automotive wire harness business in technical collaboration
with Yazaki Corporation, one of the world’s largest
automotive parts supplier. The combined synergies of both
the companies would enable the business to establish itself
in a relatively quick span of time as a premier supplier of car
wiring systems to all automobile manufacturers in Pakistan.

The Thermal Systems — which commenced operations in
1996 — manufactures Auto Air Conditioners for Toyota and
Suzuki vehicles manufactured and assembled in Pakistan.
Ever since its establishment, Thal Engineering's Thermal
Systems division has remained progressive with addition of
multiple capabilities unto its fold. To deliver a product range
of excellent quality, the Company entered into a Technical
Assistance Agreement with Denso Japan in 1996 — the
second largest auto parts maker in the world — listed on the
Fortune 500 and the largest in Japan. The strategic alliance
has acquired and obtained world class assistance in
manufacturing car air conditioners, heater blowers & now
aluminum radiators, enabling the business to continue

in its growth trajectory.

The Engine Components — although a relatively newer
addition to Thal Engineering Limited — manufactures
Starters and Alternators for Toyota vehicles. The business
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was established with a clear vision to localize and
manufacture automobile engine parts and components for
different automobile OEMs in Pakistan. The business has
the unique distinction of being the first and foremost
manufacturer of Engine Starters and Alternators for
passenger cars in Pakistan under a foreign collaboration.

In addition, Thal Limited also owns and operates the
building material & packaging business which consists of
the Jute business known as Thal Jute Mills Limited. The
Company bears the honor of being the first industrial project
that was undertaken by House of Habib. Located in the
heart of Punjab, nestled between the banks of River Indus
and Chenab, the Company is involved in manufacture of
grain sacks in various grades including food grade, and
Hessian yamn & twine for domestic and export markets.

The Laminates business was established in 1980 as the
first of its kind manufacturing unit for the production of
high-pressure decorative laminates in Pakistan under the
brand name of FORMITE. Today, the Company remains a
market leader for its range of decorative and electrical grade
compact laminates. Over the years, the business has
successfully integrated upstream and downstream facilities
to maintain its competitive edge and remain a partner

of choice for a wide variety of stakeholders both locally

and abroad.

Lastly the Papersack business which has been in operation
since 1970s, is the pioneering multi-ply manufacturing unit
in Pakistan and has remained a market leader in the
business since its inception. With strategic locations of its
plants situated in Hub (Baluchistan) and Gadoon
(Khyber-Pakhtunkhwa), the Company has an annual
production capacity of 150 million sacks and provides
packaging solutions to various industries that include
cement, chemicals and dyes, bonding adhesives, industrial
salt, calcium, gypsum, carbon black, milk powder and guar
gum amongst others. With close to five decades of world
class product leadership, the papersack business not only
fulfills local demand but also exports to key international
markets including Middle East, India, EU and the UK
amongst other avenues.

Since our inception we continue to touch and redefine life
through the spectrum of our businesses that continue to
impact a broad category of stakeholders in innumerable

ways. In order to provide further impetus to our growth
philosophy we continue to diversify our investments with

an ever-expanding footprint in subsidiaries such as Noble
Computer Services (Private) Limited, Pakistan Industrial Aids
(Private) Limited, Habib METRO Pakistan (Private) Limited,
A-One Enterprises (Private) Limited, Thal Boshoku Pakistan
(Private) Limited and Thal Power (Private) Limited. In addition
the Company also shares investments in associates like
Indus Motor Company Limited, Habib Insurance Company
Limited, Agriauto Industries Limited, Shabbir Tiles and
Ceramics Limited.

Cognizant of our responsibility to the country and mapping
our investments with solving the critical issues the economy
faces, our recent most investment has been in Sindh Engro
Coal Mining Company (SECMC) — a landmark project to fuel
the growth of Pakistan’s economy and develop indigenous
energy resources. To bolster this investment Thal Limited

has also entered into a Joint Venture Agreement with

Novatex Limited to develop a 330 MW coal-fired power

plant at Thar — an investment we feel will curtail the energy.
crisis and help bring positive impact to the communities
around us. In October 2018 Hubco joined ThalNova as &
38.3% shareholder.



Thal Limited
Operating Businesses
Thermal Systems & Engine Makro-Habib Pakistan Indus Motor
Components Systems Limited Company Limited
Habib Insurance
Company Limited
Agriauto Industries
Limited

Habib METRO Pakistan
Electric Systems (Private) Limited

Noble Computer Services

Jute (Private) Limited

Pakistan Industrial Aids
Papersack (Private) Limited

Shabbir Tiles &
Ceramics Limited

A-One Enterprises ThalNova Power Thar
Laminates (Private) Limited (Private) Limited
Thal Boshoku Pakistan Sindh Engro Coal Mining
(Private) Limited Company Limited

Thal Power
(Private) Limited

Thal Electrical
(Private) Limited
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

Rafiq M Habib

Chairman

Mr. Rafig M. Habib is one of the founding
members and Chairman of Thal Ltd. He also
serves as the Group Chairman of the renowned
‘House of Habib’. He has served on the Board
of Governors of ‘Pakistan Institute of
Management’. Having a wide business
experience in a variety of Industries, he also
leads the team towards success as the
Chairman of Habib Insurance Company Ltd.

He provided his visionary leadership to many
public limited companies including the iconic
Toyota — Indus Motors Company Ltd. and
served as a consultant to Habib Bank AG
Zurich.
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Muhammad Tayyab Ahmad Tareen
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Muhammad Tayyab Ahmad Tareen joined
as CEQ of Thal Limited on 1st July 2019. He has
more than 25 years of experience mainly with
multinationals and private equity, covering areas
of business tumarounds, transformations and
entrepreneurial experience in general manage-
ment, financial management and business
acquisitions.

Before joining House of Habib, he was associated
with K-Electric, the largest vertically integrated
power utility in Pakistan, serving as its CEO and
Chairman of the Board, CFO and Chief Strategy
Officer. He led the operational tumaround of this
ailing utility company, tuming it into profitable
enterprise after 17 years of losses.

Prior to K-Electric, he served in private equity
having global operations & investments in
different sectors. He has also served as the CFO
of the The Coca-Cola Company managed
bottler in UAE and OMAN, a business that saw
successful turnaround from losses to sustained
profitability within two years.

He is a Member of Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

Asif Qadir

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Asif Qadir joined the Board in March 2013
as an Independent Director. He has over 30
years of experience with Exxon and Engro
Corporation and held positions as Worldwide
Business Advisor Exxon Chemicals, CEO Engro
Polymer & Chemicals, Senior Vice President —
Engro and part of the key management team in
Engro Corporation.

He has also been President of the Management
Association of Pakistan, and a member of the
Executive Committee of the OICCI. He also
serves as Director on the boards of Tripack
Films, Descon Oxychem, Unicol Limited, Cherat
Cement and Liaguat National Hospital.

Ms. Aliya Saeeda Khan

Independent Non-Executive Director

Aliya Saeeda Khan is a Partner at the law firm of
Orr, Dignam & Co. and is based at the Firm’s
Karachi office. She is an Advocate of the High
Court of Sindh and a Barrister from Gray’s Inn.
As with other Partners of the Firm, she deals
with a wide range of corporate, financial and
commercial matters. Her focus areas are M&A,
project work, joint ventures and energy sectors.
She is a graduate of the University of Cam-
bridge. She joined Thal Limited’s Board in
September 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

Ali S Habib

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ali S. Habib was appointed as the Director
of Thal Limited in February 1980. He also serves
as the Chairman of Indus Motor Company Ltd.,
and as a member of the Board of Directors of
Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Ltd. and Habib
Metropolitan Bank Ltd. He is a graduate in
Mechanical Engineering from the University of
Minnesota, USA. He has also attended the PMD
Program at Harvard University
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Mohamedali R Habib

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib was appointed as the
Director of Thal Limited in December 1990.
Since 2004, he has been an Executive Director
of Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd. He also serves
as a member on the Board of Indus Motors
Company Ltd. and Habib Insurance Company
Ltd. He was appointed as Joint-President &
Division Head (Asia) & Member of General
Management of Habib Bank AG Zurichin 2011.

He is a graduate in Business Management —
Finance from Clark University, USA.

Salman Burney

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Salman Burney joined the Board in February
2016 as a Non-Executive Director. He also
served as the VP/Area GM for GSK Pakistan,
Iran and Afghanistan.

He began his career with ICl Pakistan in Sales &
Marketing within various roles in Pakistan &
African / Eastern Region at ICl plc, London and
as General Manager of ICI's Agrochemicals &
Seeds Business. He joined the company in
1992, was appointed MD, SmithKline Beecham
in 1997 with additional responsibility for Iran and
the Caspian Region. He was holding the
position of MD for GSK in Pakistan and he was
responsible for GSK’s Pharmaceutical business
in Pakistan, Iran & Afghanistan.

He has a degree in Economics from Trinity
College, University of Cambridge, UK. Mr.
Salman Burney has been the President of
Pakistan’s foreign investors Chamber and as
Chairperson of the MNC Pharma Association
has led the industry interface with the govern-
ment on various issues.
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BOARD COMMITTEES AND
THEIR TERMS OF REFERENCES

Committees of the Board
The Board is assisted by the following two Committees to
support its decision making.

Audit Committee

The Board Audit Committee meets multiple times through the
year to determine appropriate measures to safeguard the
Company’s assets and review quarterly, half yearly and financial
statements of the company, prior to their approval by the Board
of Directors. In addition the Board Audit Committee is also
responsible for:

a) determination of appropriate measures to safeguard the
company’s assets

b) review of annual and interim financial statements of the
company, prior to their approval by the Board of
Directors, focusing on

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from the audit

(i) going concern assumption

(iv) any changes in accounting policies and practices

(

(

=
=

v) compliance with applicable accounting standards;
vi) compliance with these regulations and other
statutory and regulatory requirements; and

(vii) related party transactions

c) review of preliminary announcements of results prior to
external communication and publication

d) facilitating the external audit and discussion with
external auditors of major observations arising from
interim and final audits and any matter that the auditors
may wish to highlight {in the absence of management,
where necessary}

e) review of management letter issued by external auditors
and management's response thereto

f)  ensuring coordination between the internal and external
auditors of the company

g) review of the scope and extent of internal audit, audit
plan, reporting framework and procedures and ensuring
that the internal audit function has adequate resources
and is appropriately placed within the company

h) consideration of major findings of internal investigations
of activities characterized by fraud, corruption and
abuse of power and management's response thereto;

i) ascertaining that the internal control systems including
financial and operational controls, accounting systems
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for timely and appropriate recording of purchases and
sales, receipts and payments, assets and liabilities and
the reporting structure are adequate and effective;

i) review of the company's statement on internal control
systems prior to endorsement by the board of directors
and internal audit reports

k) instituting special projects value for money studies or
other investigations on any matter specified by the
board of directors in consultation with the chief
executive officer and to consider remittance of any
matter to the external auditors or to any other external body

[y determination of compliance with relevant statutory
requirements

m) monitoring compliance with the these regulations and
identification of Significant violations thereof

n) review of arrangement for staff and management to
report to audit committee in confidence concerns if any
about actual or potential improprieties in financial and
other matters and recommend instituting remedial and
mitigating measures;

o) recommend to the board of directors the appointment
of external auditors their removal audit feels the
provision of any service permissible to be rendered to
the company by the external auditors in addition to audit
of its financial statements. The board of directors shall
give due consideration to the recommendations of the
audit committee and where it acts otherwise it shall
record the reasons thereof.

p) consideration of any other issue or matter as may be
assigned by the board of directors

Members:

Mr. Asif Qadir — Chairman (Independent)
Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib — Member
Mr. Salman Burney— Member

Human Resources &

Remuneration Committee:

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Board Human Resources & Remuneration Committee

meets at least once in a year to review and recommend all

elements of the Human Resource Management framework

including but not limited to the following:

i)  recommend to the board for consideration and approval
a policy framework for determining remuneration of
directors (both executive and non-executive directors

and members of senior management). The definition of
senior management will be determined by the board
which shall normally include the first layer of management
below the chief executive officer level;

i) undertaking annually a formal process of evaluation
of performance of the board as a whole and its
committees either directly or by engaging external
independent consultant and if so appointed, a
statement to that effect shall be made in the directors'
report disclosing name, qualifications and major terms
of appointment;

i) recommending human resource management policies
to the board

iv) recommending to the board the selection, evaluation,
development, compensation (including retirement
benefits) of chief operating officer, chief financial officer,
company secretary and head of internal audit;

v)  consideration and approval on recommendations of
chief executive officer on such matters for key
management positions who report directly to chief
executive officer or chief operating officer; and

vi)  where human resource and remuneration consultants are
appointed, their credentials shall be known by the
committee and a statement shall be made by them as to
whether they have any other connection with the company.

Members:

Mr. Asif Qadir — Independent Chairman

Mr. Salman Burney — Member

Mr. Ali S. Habib — Member

Mr. Muhammad Tayyab Ahmad Tareen - Member

Internal Control Framework:

The Board is ultimately responsible for internal control and its
effectiveness. To provide reasonable assurance a system is
designed to manage the risk to achieve business objectives.
The internal audit function carries out reviews on the
financial, operational and compliance controls.

Internal Control Framework:

Internal control framework is comprised of effectiveness and
efficiency of operations including performance and profitabili-
ty goals and safeguarding of resources, reliability of financial
reporting including interim and condensed financial
statements and selected financial data, and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

The Company maintains clear structured and established
control framework that contains authority limits, accountabili-
ties and sound understanding of policies and procedures.

The Board has overall responsibility to oversee the internal
control processes. Internal control compliance is monitored
by an internal audit which ensures that the Company and its
employees are compliant with internal control policies and
procedures.

Control Environment:

The control environment sets the tone of an organization,
influencing the control consciousness of its people. It is the
foundation for all other components of internal control,
providing discipline and structure.

Risk Assessment:

Risk assessment is the identification and analysis of relevant
risks to achieve the objectives, forming a basis for determin-
ing how the risks should be managed.

Control Activities:

Policies and procedures for control activities ensure that
management directives are carried out. These activities
ensure necessary actions are taken to address risks to
achieve entity's objectives. Control activities occur
throughout the organization, at all levels and in all functions.

Information and Communication:

Pertinent information must be identified, captured and
communicated in a form and timeframe that enable people
to carry out their responsibilities. Information systems
produce reports, containing operational, financial and
compliance-related information, required to run and control
the business.

Monitoring:

Internal control system is monitored to assess the quality of
the system's performance over time. This is accomplished
through ongoing monitoring activities, separate evaluations
or a combination of the two.
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Thal Limited began its journey as a humble Jute Mill 53 years ago. It is indeed
with the grace of the Almighty that today we stand proudly before you as a
diverse business entity comprising of Thermal Systems, Electric Systems,
Engine Components, Paper sack and Laminates businesses. We would not be
here today without your unwavering support for which we are thankful.

With a clear vision to align ourselves with the macroeconomic
objectives of the country and the needs of our people, our plans
are to align with national priorities such as CPEC and Pakistan’s
urgent desire to be energy sufficient for the future. Therefore, the
Company has partnered in developing Pakistan’s first open pit
coal mining project at Thar by investing in the Sindh Engro Coal
Mining Company (SECMC) and remains engaged in setting up a
330 MW coalfired power generation plant at Thar, Sindh
through its subsidiary Thal Power (Private) Limited. We also
continue to scale up our sustainable packaging solutions in
Paper and Jute packaging to help Pakistan’s policy objective of
reducing plastic pollution in the country.

Pakistan’s recent agenda for economic restructuring has posed
challenges across the countries’ business landscape. Despite
this, your company was able to achieve steady growth in its
overall profitability for the year ended June 30, 2019.

During the course of the year, the Company’s Engineering
Segment, completed a new facility to cater to expansion in its
automotive wire harmness business in technical collaboration with
Yazaki Corporation, one of the world’s largest automotive parts
manufacturers. In addition, Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private)
Limited, also completed its new facility to cater to the production
of car seats, and commercial production is expected to
commence by the end of 2019. Thal’s Jute business also made
a significant investment in capital equipment to improve &
update operational capability and enhance quality. To tap new
markets, Thal’s Pakistan Papersack Division, recently diversified
its product range to include retail & food packaging. These
investments and initiatives are expected to provide growth
opportunities in the coming years.

Since its inception, the very backbone of Thal Limited has been
a steady investment in human capital. The Company continues
to take tangible steps to provide training and development
opportunities for its employees across the board. To meet our

succession needs we maintain the highest standards of
selection from the country’s best institutions for young talent
and future potential leaders through our Management Trainee
Program. We are confident that consistent investment in our
people shall continue to pay us qualitative dividends in

the future.

The Board of Directors of Thal Limited comprises of highly
experienced business leaders who, together, bring over 150
years of expertise to our board. All Board members are aware of
their fiduciary & governance responsibilities and fulfill these by
providing strategic direction to management and necessary
guidance for compliance with global policies and standards.

The role and contribution of the members of the Board of
Directors remains critical to the formulation & achievement of
our plans and operations. Board Members have exercised the
required strategic oversight for us to continue on our path to
success. | am grateful to the Board’s Committees on Audit and
on Human Resources & Remuneration for their valuable
contributions in providing requisite leadership, support and
guidance.

During the year, the Chief Executive of the Company — Mr.
Mazhar Valjee resigned and the Board has appointed Mr.
Mohammad Tayyab Ahmed Tareen as his replacement effective
from July 1st, 2019. On behalf of the Company, | wish to
acknowledge Mr. Mazhar Valjee for the valuable contributions
made in his 30-year association with our Group.

| would also like to advise that Mr. Sohail P. Ahnmed has, after a
very long association with the Company, resigned from the
Board with effect from 20th September, 2019. In his time with
the Company Mr. Ahmed has made a very significant contribu-
tion towards developing Thal's auto parts business. The Board
expressed its sincere appreciation and gratitude to himin
recognition of this valued contribution.

In closing, | would like to thank our shareholders, customers,
dealers and business partners for their continued patronage
and trust.

[ would also like to thank all our staff members for their contribu-
tion to the growth of the Company and trust that together we
shall rise to even greater heights in the future.
4
Lot
Rafig M Habib
Chairman







DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

| am pleased to present the Fifty Third Annual Report along with the Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Economic Overview
During the year, Pakistan has faced many
challenges, especially on the economic front.

The GDP growth rate clocked in at 3.3 percent
against the 5.8 percent last year, caused by lower
than expected growth across all sectors of the
economy; the agriculture sector grew by 0.85
percent, manufacturing grew by 1.4 percent and
services grew by 4.7 percent.

Since taking office in August 2018, the new
government made economic structural reforms
its highest priority and undertook the following
major initiatives:

Monetary tightening: Discount rate increased
from 7.50 percent to 13.25 percent, an increase
of 575 bps.

Currency devaluation: During the year, PKR
parity with US Dollar adjusted by approximately
34 percent.

Lower intervention for Currency: State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP) reduced FX intervention to
support the PKR against the US Dollar.

Restrictive Import Policies: Increase in
Regulatory Duty and Customs Duties (especially
on non-essential items) together with strict
vigilance and crackdown on market practices of
under-invoicing and undocumented imports.
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As a result of these measures, the government
managed to reduce the trade imbalance
successfully; the current Account deficit for the
fiscal year clocked in at USD 10.3 billion down 43%
on a year on year basis. While these measures
have created some fiscal space, the government
continues to face significant headwinds created by
weakened local demand, increased international
borrowing and financing costs and reduced

FX reserves.

During the outgoing year, the Country has entered
into a program with International Monetary Fund
(IMF) for budgetary support. The current IMF
Program is designed to help the government achieve
sustainable economic growth through increasing
revenue and reducing expenses simultaneously.
The USD 6 billion 3-year program hinges on bringing
further structural reforms in the economy, which
largely include debt sustainability, reduction in

core budget deficit reducing the fiscal deficit,
strengthening the Central Bank and better
management or privatization of State-Owned
Enterprises.

Overview of Financial Results

Despite significant macro-economic challenges, the
Company continued its’ strong performance during
2018-19. Sales revenue grew 16% year on year to

Sales and Profitability
30% — I

Sales Gross Profit Net Profit

25% —

15.6% 18.9% 22.1%

20% —
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5% —
15,266
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2014 2015 2016

Financial Performance

2017

2018

22,374

2019

PKR 22.4 billion. Profit after Tax recorded at PKR
3.15 billion (up 17% year on year) compared to PKR
2.69 billion during 2017-18.

25,000
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Rupees in Million

Standalone Consolidated
2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18
Net Revenue 22,374 19,293 23,545 20,308
Profit Before Taxes 4,335 3,804 5,611 5,100
Taxation 1,180 1,118 1,648 1,548
Profit After Taxes 3,155 2,686 3,962 3,652
Earnings Per Share - Rupees 38.93 33.15 44.20 39.14
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OVERVIEW OF
BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company has two major business segments — the Engineering
Segment and the Building Material & Allied Products Segment.

Engineering Segment

The Company’s Engineering segment comprises of the Thermal Systems and Electric
Systems. These businesses are primarily focused on manufacturing parts and components
for the auto industry.

The turnover of the Engineering Segment for 2018-19 was recorded at PKR 14.9 billion,
registering a growth of 18.4% year on year.

During the outgoing year, Thal Engineering segment continued to enhance its business with
the OEMs.

Despite the potential to create more value for the local auto industry, we remain wary of the
overall conditions for the domestic Auto Industry. During the outgoing year, Automotive sales
volumes registered a decline of 7% for passenger cars and light commercial vehicles. High
interest rates, weaker PKR and increased duties and taxes remain the usual suspects leading
the contraction in the industry.

While we anticipate immediate and short-term demand to remain weak we expect that
increased localization of parts will create potential opportunities in coming years as local auto
manufacturers look increasingly within Pakistan to source their materials and equipment.

The Government’s initiative to reduce import of used vehicles has yielded some positive
opportunities for the local auto industry with a significant year on year decline of 48% in used
car imports. We anticipate some of the consumer demand for vehicles to be captured by the
local industry.

The management will continue its focus on improving quality, health, safety and environment
initiatives while enhancing cost efficiencies through continuous process improvement.
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Outlook Packaging, Building Materials & Allied Products Segment

During the upcoming fiscal year, we anticipate that vehicles are expected to provide breathing space to The Company has three businesses in this segment During the outgoing year, the segment turnover
the auto sector will continue facing significant local industry volumes. The Company is expected —the Jute (known as Thal Jute), Papersack (known registered a year on year increase of 11.3% (PKR
pressures on the back of weak economic growth, to reap the benefits of some of these changes by as Pakistan Papersack) and Laminates (known as 7.4 Billion compared to PKR 6.6 Billion last year).
increased emphasis to improve tax base and capitalizing on localization opportunities in the midst Baluchistan Laminates).
collections. However, restrictions on imported of steep PKR devaluation.
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Jute Business

The outgoing year was challenging for the jute industry, both with
respect to the domestic and the international markets. Production
and sales were lower during the outgoing year, primarily due to lower
volume purchased for the wheat crop.

The business also faced considerable cost pressures from
depreciating currency, higher international prices of raw jute, and
the increasing cost of power. Despite these challenges, the Jute
Business remained profitable and one of the leading manufacturers
and suppliers of jute products in the country.

To improve its capability and resilience to face such challenges, the
business has invested in new capital equipment to improve both
operational capability and enhance quality. Significant efforts in cost
reduction through improving productivity have also borne fruit.
Moreover, management is focusing on product diversification and
enhancing its customer base in local as well as in export markets.

The business espouses a strong Health, Safety & Environment
(HSE) culture across the organization. More emphasis was placed
on training & development of human resources and improving
production efficiencies.

Outlook
In the coming season, the jute crop in Bangladesh and India has
shown signs of improved availability.

In order to face the challenges ahead with the operation geared to
improve product quality, enhance productivity, expand customer
base and diversify product portfolio both in local as well as in
export markets.
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Papersack Business

During the outgoing year, the paper sack business faced slow demand from
the cement sector on the back of a stagnhant construction industry. Howev-
er, the impact of lower volumes was mitigated partly by improved sales in
other sectors. The business focused on lowering cost of production which
together with improved paper sourcing and timely selling price adjustments
sustained profitability.

The business now faces a major negative impact due to increased
difference in Custom duty between paper and polypropylene despite
paper being the more environmentally friendly product. The Management
continues to remain engaged with regulatory authorities for rationalization
of custom duties in order to create a level playing field.

In order to capitalize on the demand for sustainable packaging, the
company has diversified into manufacturing of shopping bags. Whilst this is
an untapped market, largely fed by the undocumented suppliers, we remain
committed to its potential and are focused on improving efficiency and cost
reduction activities to compete effectively.

Volumes of food grade packaging have steady healthy growth year on year
with a focus on quality standard, and we maintain our status as a supplier to
almost all global food chains operating in the Country. In compliance with
the primary packaging requirements, the business has acquired ISO 22000
certifications, which was audited and re-certified during the year.

Outlook

The coming year is expected to remain challenging on the back of a further
slowdown in demand from the cement industry. The increase in additional
custom duty and exchange rate devaluation are also expected to adversely
affect margins. To mitigate these risks, management is committed to tight
cost controls and aiming for higher volumes in both domestic and export
markets

A new production line for cement sacks will be functional in the 2nd half of

the year which will have a positive impact on our capacity and production
flexibility.
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Laminates Business

The Laminates Business operates under the brand name “Formite” in
three major segments. HPL (High Pressure Laminates), Compact
Laminates and Lamination Boards (LPL). The Brand is known for its
quality and adherence to corporate values, competing in a largely
undocumented market environment.

The current year remained challenging for the laminates business with
declining demand & volatility on the economic front (fluctuation in
exchange rate, increase in gas and electricity tariffs). Frequent price
adjustments to compensate for increasing costs led to depressed
market sentiment and purchase indecisions by the market during the
outgoing year.

Our new short cycle press for Low Pressure Laminates also became
operational which supports higher efficiency and lower costs. Company
also increased focus on exports, which showed an encouraging
increase.

The business continued to promote its new product range and
participated in “Il am Karachi Public Art Festival” as well as IAPEX.

Outlook

The Government’s thrust towards documentation of all sectors and the
curtailment of undocumented sales is undoubtedly positive for the
business in the long term. The company has always complied with all
required tax and other statutory regulations sometimes leading to a
price disadvantage against the undocumented sector. Should the
efforts by the Government bear fruition the business will gain from a
level playing field, though measures to document the sector are still
being resisted by the retailers and expected to depress sales in the

first quarter.
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Thal Boshoku Pakistan
(Private) Limited

Thal Limited holds 55% of the shareholding in Thal Boshuko Pakistan (Pvt)
Ltd, while 25.4% is held by Toyota Boshoku Asia Corporation, 9.6% is
held by Toyota Boshoku Corporation Japan and a further 10% shares are
held by Toyota Tsusho Corporation Japan.

During the current year, construction of the new seat plant at Port
Qasim-Karachi, was completed, along with the commissioning of all plant
and machinery. The Company successfully completed all milestones of
the project as set by the OEM and capitalized the plant in June 2019.
Volume production is scheduled to commence from November 2019.

The turnover of the company during 2018-19 registered a growth of 22%
on year on year basis, owing primarily to price variance resulting from
devaluation of PKR.

Contribution to profit will improve post December 2019 as the business
starts volume production.

On the existing operations side, all customer supplies requirements were
met in time with “ZERO DEFECT” and the customers rated the business in
the “GREEN ZONE” throughout the year. Focus remained on improving
production efficiency, Kaizen and towards providing a healthy and safe
working environment to our team members.

Outlook

Overall, the auto sector remains under pressure due to declining
OEM offtake volumes which is expected to negatively impact the
Company’s top line. High inflationary environment is also expected to
keep pressure on operating expenses. However, due to high quality
products manufacturing in TBPK, OEMs are inclined to increase
localization, which shall support business expansion.
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Property Business

Makro-Habib Pakistan Limited

Makro Habib Pakistan Limited (MHPL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Thal
Limited and owns the Makro Saddar store. On September 11, 2015 the
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan dismissed MHPL'’s Review Petition and
consequently the Saddar Store was closed down.

On December 9, 2015, the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan accepted
Army Welfare Trust’s (AWT) request for restoration of its Review Petition. In its
hearing held on February 2, 2016, the Honorable Chief Justice commented
that while reviewing AWT’s review petition, both MHPL and Ministry of
Defence will also get a chance to argue their points on merit as they are
respondents in AWT’s petition.

AWT’s review petition was fixed for hearing on October 17, 2017 before a new
bench. However, there were no proceedings during the hearing on account of
adjournment filed by counsel representing Shehri & KWSB.

Habib METRO Pakistan (Private) Limited

The main business of Habib METRO Pakistan (Private) Limited (HMPL) is to
own and manage properties. Thal Limited holds 60% shareholding in HMPL
while 40% is held by Metro Cash & Carry International Holding B.V. The
company is exploring various business opportunities to complement the
cash & carry retail rental business and to enhance enterprise value from its
store locations.

During the year ended June 30, 2019, HMPL paid interim dividends of
PKR 403 million to Thal Limited.
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Investments in
Energy Sector

Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company Limited (SECMC)

Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company (“SECMC”) achieved commercial
operations on 10th July 2019; which marks a historic milestone for
Pakistan’s Energy sector. Phase | of the Thar mining and power generation
projects comprise Pakistan’s first indigenous open pit coal mine which
supplies 3.8 million tons of lignite coal per annum to a 2x330 MW power
generation plant set up by (Engro Powergen Thar Private Limited) EPTL.

For Phase | of SECMC, the Board of Directors of Thal Limited approved a
total exposure of Pak Rupee equivalent of US$ 36.1 million, which includes
equity investment of US$ 24.3 million, SBLC of US$ 5 million for cost
over-run and US$ 6.8 million for debt servicing reserve (adjustable due to
LIBOR/KIBOR movement). Phase | of SECMC mining project has been
completed within time and with significant cost savings.

Phase Il of SECMC is on course to achieving Financial Close. The tariff has
been determined by Thar Coal & Energy Board while the financing docu-
ments are in the process of being executed.

SECMC has entered into Coal Supply Agreements with ThalNova Power

Thar (Pvt) Ltd and Thar Energy Ltd to supply additional 1.9 million tons of
lignite per annum to each 330 MW power plant respectively.
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Investments in
Energy Sector

Thal Power (Private) Limited

ThalNova Power Thar Private Limited (“ThalNova”) is a joint venture between Thal Power
Limited, Nova Powergen Ltd (subsidiary of Novatex Ltd) and Hub Power Company to set up
a 330 MW mine mouth coal-fired power generation plant located at Thar, Sindh. This power
plant will be run on indigenous coal extracted from the mine operated by SECMC.

ThalNova has obtained the Letter of Support (LOS) from the Private Power Infrastructure
Board (PPIB). National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) has issued the
Generation License and awarded the Upfront Tariff on Thar coal to the project company.
ThalNova has also been issued a No Objection Certificate (NOC) by the Sindh Environmental
Protection Agency (SEPA).

China Machinery & Engineering Corporation has been appointed as the EPC Contractor.
ThalNova has entered into Coal Supply Agreement (CSA) with SECMC to supply 1.9 million
tons per annum of lignite. It has also entered into a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with
the Central Power Purchase Agency (Guarantee) Ltd (CPPA) and the Implementation
Agreement (“IA”) with Private Power Infrastructure Board (PPIB).

China Development Bank (“CDB”) and Habib Bank Limited (“HBL”) have been engaged for
arrangement of foreign and local currency project debt respectively. ThalNova executed key
financial agreements with project lenders in July this year and is on course for achieving
financial close.

ThalNova (through shareholder’s equity) has given Mobilization Advance along with Limited
Notice to Proceed (LNTP) to the EPC contractor i.e. China Machinery and Engineering
Corporation to initiate work on the site and expedite the achievement of Commercial
Operations Date of the Project.
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Human Resources

Thal Limited continues to actively focus on providing growth opportunities to high
potential people and to prepare them for future leadership positions; development plans
are being implemented through rotations, international and local trainings and enriched
assignments

Keeping our commitment with the culture of developing and enabling our employees to
reach their full potential, a Learning Fair with a motto to educate, evolve and enlighten
employees was again held this year. This one-week long intervention, conducted by
renowned local and international trainers delivered 12 different training programs (which
included both soft skill development and technical skill development).

International Trainings and exposure is a critical part of people development where
employees get a chance to learn global best practices and execute them locally. Staff
from Thal Boshoku Pakistan and Thal Electrical, visited Toyota Boshoku and Yazaki to
learn machine operations and implement best practices at our plants.

To strengthen our robust and transparent recruitment system, a new online
game-based talent assessment tool with the name of Mission Believe was launched
and implemented during the outgoing year. The program aims to acquire the best
suited talent for our Management Trainee Program and our Graduate Trainee Engineer
Program and builds the company-wide pipeline of emerging leaders. In total 17 MTOs
were hired for HOH and 2 Trainee Engineers were hired for Thal Engineering after a
thorough cognitive and behavioral assessment process.

Thal Engineering takes pride in having a diverse and inclusive workforce, where every
individual has an equal opportunity to represent and contribute. We remain committed
to hiring talent irrespective of any disabilities. During the year, 31 persons with disabili-
ties (PWDs) were hired and Thal continues its culture of acceptability.
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Health, Safety &
Environment (HSE)

Across all business segments, we desire a working environment in which
safety is deeply embedded in operations and business culture. Our goal is
to prevent any injuries and ensure that Thal Engineering remains a safe
place to work. Throughout the year the businesses undertook significant
initiatives to incorporate a strong consideration for the safety of our people,
plants and the planet and consequently we were able to reach 2.8 million
safe man hours.

Moreover, we maintained our focus on safety management systems
keeping in view international best practices including Occupational

Safety and Health Administration (OHSAS) and were duly recognized by
Employers Federation of Pakistan, who awarded Thal Engineering 2nd
prize on ‘Best Practices award for OSH&E 2019’ in the Processed & Allied
sectors.

Thal Engineering possesses and maintains a range of certificates to remain
compliant with international best practices. These are the ‘signs on the
wall’ of the efforts we make to improve our HSE level in a continuous way.
Recently, Thal Engineering undertook a transition from OHSAS 18001 to
ISO 45001, a new standard to strengthen its HSE policies and capability.

We are also cognizant of our responsibility to the planet both as a socially
caring organization and as an entity that is signatory to the United National
Global Compact. Throughout the year, by maintaining focus on this area,
we were able to reduce our Carbon Footprint at Thal Engineering by 2.23%
as against a targeted reduction of 2%. These best practices were
recognized by National Forum for Environment and Health, who awarded
Thal Engineering with the Environment Excellence award 2019.
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Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR)

As part of our continuing commitment towards improving the quality of life
of our stakeholders, our communities and the underprivileged sections of
the society, we contributed PKR 51.2 million under our social investment
commitments in 2018-19, as compared to PKR 45.4 million in 2017-18.
These programs, which span all our business segments are primarily
focused in the broad areas of education, healthcare, employee welfare,
community development, environment and disaster relief.

We truly believe that access to quality primary and secondary healthcare is
a basic right of every individual. Cognizant of this responsibility to our
communities throughout the year, we endeavored to support leading
healthcare institutions through direct monetary support — this included
contribution to Indus Hospital, Northern Area Eye Hospital, Masoomen
Hospital Trust, Huseini Hematology & Oncology Trust and Mohammadi
Blood Bank amongst others.

In the category of education, we continued to support our flagship Habib
University Foundation that offered scholarships and financial aid to a large
number of deserving students. In addition, the various business segments
continued to support institutions including TCF, Thar Foundation, Habib
Education Trust, Gulaman-e-Abbas School and HELP amongst others

to help improve provision of education to under-privileged sections of

the society.

As an organization, we pride ourselves on our deep understanding of our
responsibility to the society and our people - who remain our core enduring
advantage. With this guiding principle, this year again we ran programs that
aimed to enhance employee welfare and support them in multiple causes.

In the CSR ambit, Thal Engineering organized two Blood Donation Camps

on different occasions in 2018-19 to facilitate Husaini Blood Bank and
Indus Hospital
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Other Subsidiaries

Noble Computer Services (Private) Limited

The Company continues to provide services related to Internal
Audit, IT, Advisory, HR and other management related services
to group companies of House of Habib. The Company is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Thal Limited.

Pakistan Industrial Aids (Private) Limited

Through its trading operations, the Company continued its
business of supplying auto parts, such as compressors,
condensers, cooling units and gas to automobile assemblers
and auto parts manufacturers. It is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Thal Limited.

A-One Enterprises (Private) Limited
A-One Enterprises Private Limited is a fully owned subsidiary of
Thal Limited. It is currently evaluating new investments options.

Information Technology (IT)

The increasing complexity in business environments and rapid
development of information systems worldwide has positioned
IT to increasingly play a strategic role in the organization. The
Company’s management is actively engaged in continuously
evaluating the robustness of its IT systems to meet the daily
demands of its business.

During the year, management conducted successful
implementation of the SAP Supply Chain modules in its
Building and Allied Segment - to support robust decision-
making through a common platform across its businesses.

The Paper sack business of Thal Limited also implemented
Customer Relationship Management module and SAP
Production Planning Module to allow real-time conversion of
customer requirements and augment supply chain efficiency.
The Company also implemented Materials Requirement
Planning and Plant Maintenance module of SAP which shall
be integrated with the sales, inventory and financial modules
of SAP.

As different businesses operate from different locations, it is
critical to ensure that all sites are connected and accessible
through a common business application platform. The
Company deployed Multi-protocol label switching (MPLS)
to ensure secure and reliable connections for real-time
applications, speed, availability of network, centralized
monitoring and cost saving.
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Related Party Transactions

All transactions with related parties have been executed in
accordance with applicable regulations and have been
disclosed in the financial statements under relevant notes.

Internal Financial Controls

The Company and its subsidiaries have deployed an effective
system of Internal Financial Controls to safeguard its assets
and ensure the accuracy and reliability of its records. Senior
management reviews financial performance of the Company
and its subsidiaries through detailed monthly financial reports
and analysis while the Board also carries out its own review at
each quarter and probes into any variation versus budgets.
Detailed examinations are regularly carried out by the internal
audit function in adherence to internal procedures; the internal
audit function reports its findings to the Board Audit Committee
as per best practice.

Forward-looking Statement

Under the prevailing economic and business environment,
corporates in Pakistan are faced with a myriad of challenges.
Thal Limited is also striving to reposition itself to sustain existing
businesses as well as take advantage of growth opportunities
in the coming years. The Company is already diversified across
multiple manufacturing sectors, each with their own dynamics,
risks and opportunities.

The largest business segment of the Company is its Engineering
segment. Under the current Auto Investment Policy, several new
OEM entrants have commenced work on establishing their
assembly plants in Pakistan. The auto vendor industry will remain
under pressure in the medium term since the new entrants are not
required to localize in the near future. However, in the long term
this segment remains well-poised for growth.

The Building & Allied Products Segment plays a significant role
in the growth of the Company. The businesses are focusing
on increasing customer base, cost controls, improving
productivity and investing in new more efficient machinery to
counter tough economic conditions.

The Company continues to see huge potential in the China-
Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC). The Company further
diversified its interests by being engaged in developing
Pakistan’s first open pit coal mining project at Thar — a flagship
CPEC project, through its investment in the Sindh Engro Coal
Mining Company (SECMQC).

The Company has further ventured into the power generation
sector in a joint venture with Hub Power Company, Novatex
Ltd and other Chinese partners and is pursuing financial close
of its 330 MW coal-fired power generation plant at Thar, Sindh.

Risks and Uncertainties facing the Company

The Management is cognizant that the Company faces various
types of risks to the business - both internal and external. The
Company has established an Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) system. ERM is the process of identifying, assessing,
prioritizing, evaluating and mitigating the risks and challenges
faced by the business. Risk management is the primary
responsibility of the management of the Company. It is
overseen and assisted by the Internal Audit Function and the
Board of Directors in line with policies & procedures that are in
place to counter any potential risks.

The Company has enumerated these risks as:
- Strategic Risk
Financial Risk
Foreign Currency Risk
Credit Risk
Interest Rate Risk
Internal Control Risk
Operational / Commercial Risk
Competitors Risk / Technological & Innovation Risk
Regulatory Risk
Health Safety and Environment

Mitigating strategies are in place and the Company continues
to monitor and re-evaluate them through the ERM system.

Contribution to National Exchequer

During the year 2018-19, the Company contributed a sum of
Rs. 7.08 billion (2017-18, Rs. 5.55 billion) towards the National
Exchequer by way of taxation (including super tax), custom
duties, levies, excise duty and WWEF.

Remuneration Policy of Non-Executive Directors
The fee of the Non-Executive and Independent Directors for
attending the Board and Committee meetings of the Company
is determined by the Board from time to time.

Auditors
The current auditors Messrs. EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered
Accountants, retire and being eligible offered themselves for

re-appointment as auditors for the year 2019-20. Their
reappointment has also been recommended by the Board
Audit Committee.

Pattern of Shareholding
The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2019 is attached to
this report.

The Board has determined the Chief Executive Officer, the
Chief Financial Officer, the Head of Internal Audit and the
Company Secretary, as those executives whose reporting is to
be made to the PSXin respect of trading in Company shares.

Reconstitution of the Board’s Sub Committee
Mr. Muhammad Tayyab Ahmad Tareen was appointed as
member of the Board’s Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee with effect from July 1, 2019.

Directors training program

Mr. Rafig M. Habib, Mr. Ali S. Habib, and Mr. Salman
Burney are exempted by SECP from the Directors Training
Program as each has requisite qualification and experience
of serving on the Boards. Mr Asif Qadir, Ms Aliya Saeeda
Khan and Mr Mohamedali R. Habib are certified by PICG

Compliance with the Code of Corporate

Governance Statement on Corporate and

Financial Reporting Framework

- Thefinancial statements prepared by the Management of
the Company present fairly its state of affairs, the results of
its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.
Proper books of account have been maintained.
Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently
applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting
estimates based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
International Accounting Standards, as applicable in
Pakistan have been followed in preparation of financial
statements.
The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to
M/s. Noble Computer Services (Pvt) Ltd., who are
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the
purpose and are conversant with the policies and
procedure of the Company.
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The system of internal control is sound in design and has
been effectively implemented and monitored.

All members of the Audit Committee are indepenent/
non-executive Directors.

There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

There has been no material departure from the best
practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the
listing regulations.

The value of investment of provident fund and retirement
fund stands at Rs. 552 million and Rs. 62 million
respectively as at June 30, 2019.

The key operating & finance data for the last 6 years are
annexed to the report.

The names of the Board members during the year are as
stated below, along with their respective attendance in the
seven (7) Board meetings that were held during the year:

Sr. No. | Names of Directors Meeting Attended
1 Mr. Rafig M. Habib (Chairman) 3/7
2 Mr. Sohail P. Ahmed* 6/7
3 Mr. Ali S. Habib 7/7
4 Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib 2/7
5 Mr. Asif Qadir 7/7
6 Mr. Salman Burney 7/7
7 Mr. Mazhar Valjee* * 7/7
8 Ms. Roshan B. Mehri

(Alternate Director) 4/7
9 Ms. Aliya Saeeda Khan

(Appointed on Sept 14,2018) 4/7

(i)  During the year the Audit Committee met 4 times and
attendance of the Directors was as follows:

Sr. No. | Names of Directors Meeting Attended
1 Mr. Asif Qadir (Chairman) 4/4
2 Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib 2/4
3 Mr. Sohail P. Ahmed* 4/4
4 Mr. Salman Burney 4/4

* Mr. Sohail P. Ahmed has resigned with effect from September 20, 2019.
** Mr. Mazhar Valjee has resigned with effect from June 30, 2019.
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(iii)  During the year Human Resources & Remuneration
Committee met once and the attendance of the Directors
was as follows:

Sr. No. | Names of Directors Meeting Attended
1 Mr. Asif Qadir (Chairman) 1/1
2 Mr. Ali S. Habib 1/1
3 Mr. Salman Burney 1/1
4 Mr. Mazhar Valjee 1/1

Dividend and Appropriations
The Directors propose following appropriations out of the profit
for the current year:
Final cash Dividend declared of Rs. 5.50 per share, i.e.,
110% in addition to interim dividends of Rs 2.50 per share,
i.e., 50%.
Recommends appropriating a sum of Rs 2.5 billion from
un-appropriated profits to General Reserve.
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| wish to express sincere gratitude to our shareholders,
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growth of our Company under the challenging business
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Dated: September 20, 2019. Chief Executive Officer

Karachi.
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STATEMENT OF
VALUE ADDITION

2019 2018
WEALTH GENERATED Rs. 000 % Rs. 000 %
Gross Revenue 26,073,129 94.49% 22,181,339 93.88%
Other Income 1,521,134 5.51% 1,446,166 6.12%
27,594,263 100.00% 23,627,505 100.00%
Bought in Material, Services and Other Expenses 14,776,087 53.55% 12,984,524 54.96%
12,818,176 46.45% 10,642,981 45.04%
WEALTH DISTRIBUTED Rs. 000 % Rs. 000 %
Employees
Salaries, Wages & Other Benefits and WPPF 2,255,762 17.60% 2,148,690 20.19%
Society
Donations towards Education, Health and Environment 51,236 0.40% 45,414 0.43%
Providers of Finance
Finance Costs 9,805 0.08% 8,869 0.08%
Government
Contribution to National Exchequer 7,076,057 55.20% 5,555,431 52.20%
Shareholders
Dividend 648,241 5.06% 1,093,906 10.28%
Retained within the Business for Future Growth 2,777,075 21.67% 1,790,671 16.82%
12,818,176 - 10,642,981 -

Wealth Distribution - 2019
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE

Summary of Balance Sheet
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets

Investment Property

Long Term Investments

Long Term Loans

Long Term Deposits

Long Term Prepayments
Deferred Tax Asset

Net Current Assets

Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Deposits

Net Assets Employed

Financed by
Issued , Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
Reserves

Shareholders' Equity

Summary of Profit & Loss
Sales

Gross Profit

Profit Before Taxation
Profit After Taxation

Summary of Cash Flows

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Year End
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION
SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

2019

Rs in 19Vs. 18

million %
BALANCE SHEET
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 18,631 13.3%
Non-Current Liabilities 1 -50.0%
Current Liabilities 2,590 4.6%
Total Equity & Liabilities 21,222 12.2%
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets 8,752 18.9%
Current Assets 12,470 7.9%
Total Assets 21,222 12.2%
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Turnover - net 22,374 16.0%
Cost of Sales 18,217 16.5%
Gross Profit 4,157 13.5%
Distribution Costs 288 31.7%
Administrative Expenses 754 -1.4%
Other Income (1,521) 5.2%
Other Charges 292 11.4%
Operating Profit 4,344 14.0%
Finance Costs 9.81 8.9%
Profit Before Taxation 4,334 13.9%
Taxation 1,180 5.5%
Profit After Taxation 3,154 17.4%
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2018

Rsin 18 Vs. 17

million %
16,438 6.5%
2 0.0%
2,477 24.35%
18,917 8.5%
7,358 27.2%
11,559 -0.7%
18,917 8.5%
19,293 12.7%
15,632 15.9%
3,661 0.8%
219 18.0%
814 9.7%
(1,446) -53.3%
262 24.1%
3,812 -30.1%
9.00 5.7%
3,804 -30.2%
1,118 -24.5%
2,686 -32.3%

2017

Rsin 17 Vs. 16

million %
15,433 26.2%
2.0 23.15%
1,992 36.8%
17,427 27.3%
5,786 7.8%
11,641 40.0%
17,427 27.3%
17,124 12.2%
13,491 13.4%
3,633 7.8%
186 -25.5%
742 29.5%
(8,096) 165.1%
345 -52.9%
5,457 82.9%
8.51 122.8%
5,448 82.9%
1,481 85.0%
3,967 82.1%

2016

Rsin 16 Vs. 15

million %
12,228 13.5%
1.62 -5.3%
1,456 7.4%
13,686 12.8%
5,370 12.5%
8,316 13.0%
13,686 12.8%
15,266 -1.8%
11,897 -5.6%
3,369 14.4%
249 25.6%
OIES 20.3%
(1,168) 30.1%
732 236.7%
2,983 1.1%
3.82 -19.6%
2,979 1.2%
800 0.5%
2,179 1.4%

2015

Rsin 15Vs. 14

million %
10,772 14.4%
2 0.0%
1,356 -8.9%
12,130 11.2%
4,771 10.3%
7,359 11.8%
12,130 11.2%
15,549 33.7%
12,605 28.4%
2,944 62.7%
199 25.6%
476 29.4%
(898) 43.7%
217 69.8%
2,950 65.6%
4,75 3.0%
2,945 65.8%
796 92.1%
2,149 57.8%

2014

Rsin 14 Vs. 13

million %
9,419 4.2%
2 0.0%
1,489 2.7%
10,910 4.0%
4,326 3.6%
6,584 4.2%
10,910 4.0%
11,626 -8.9%
9,816 -5.8%
1,810 -22.7%
158 -10.2%
368 7.8%
(625) 6.3%
128 -25.9%
1,781 -20.5%
4.61 -63.3%
1,776 -20.2%
414 -31.2%
1,362 -16.1%
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS

BALANCE SHEET
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Non-Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Total Equity & Liabilities

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Current Assets

Total Assets

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Turnover - net

Cost of Sales

Gross Profit

Distribution Costs
Administrative Expenses

Other Income

Other Charges

Operating Profit
Finance Costs

Profit Before Taxation

Taxation
Profit After Taxation
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2019
Rsin

million %
18,631 87.8%
1 0.0%
2,590 12.2%
21,222 100.0%
8,752 41.2%
12,470 58.8%
21,222 100.0%
22,374 100.0%
18,217 81.4%
4157 18.6%
288 1.3%
754 3.4%
(1,521) -6.8%
292 1.3%
4,344 19.4%
10 0.04%
4,334 19.4%
1,180 5.3%
3,154 14.1%

2018
Rsin

million %
16,438 86.9%
2 0.0%
2,477 13.1%
18,917 100.0%
7,357 38.9%
11,560 61.1%
18,917 100.0%
19,293 100.0%
15,632 81.0%
3,661 19.0%
219 1.1%
814 4.2%
(1,447) -7.5%
262 1.4%
3,813 19.8%
9 0.05%
3,804 19.7%
1,118 5.8%
2,686 13.9%

2017
Rsin

million %
15,433 88.6%
2 0.0%
1,992 11.4%
17,427 100.0%
5,786 33.2%
11,641 66.8%
17,427 100.0%
17,124 100.0%
13,491 78.8%
3,633 21.2%
186 1.1%
742 4.3%
(3,096) -18.1%
345 2.0%
5,456 31.9%
9 0.05%
5,447 31.8%
1,481 8.6%
3,966 23.2%

2016
Rsin

million %
12,228 89.3%
2 0.0%
1,456 10.6%
13,686 100.0%
5,370 39.2%
8,316 60.8%
13,686 100.0%
15,266 100.0%
11,897 77.9%
3,369 22.1%
249 1.6%
573 3.8%
(1,167) -7.6%
732 4.8%
2,983 19.5%
4 0.03%
2,979 19.5%
800 5.2%
2,179 14.3%

2015
Rsin

million %
10,772 88.8%
2 0.0%
1,356 11.2%
12,130 100.0%
4,771 39.3%
7,359 60.7%
12,130 100.0%
15,549 100.0%
12,605 81.1%
2,944 18.9%
199 1.3%
476 3.1%
(898) -5.8%
217 1.4%
2,950 19.0%
5 0.03%
2,945 18.9%
796 5.1%
2,149 13.8%

2014
Rsin

million %
9,419 86.3%
2 0.0%
1,487 13.6%
10,908 100.0%
4,324 39.6%
6,584 60.4%
10,908 100.0%
11,626 100.0%
9,816 84.4%
1,810 15.6%
158 1.4%
368 3.2%
(625) -5.4%
128 1.1%
1,780 15.3%
5 0.04%
1,776 15.3%
414 3.6%
1,361 11.7%
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SIX YEARS' RATIO ANALYSIS

Profitability Ratios

Gross Profit

EBITDA Margin to Sales
Net Profit Margin

Return on Equity

Return on Capital Employed

Liquidity Ratios

Current Ratio

Quick Ratio

Cash to Current Liabilities

Cash Flow from Operations to Sales

Activity/Turnover Ratios

Inventory Turnover

Inventory Turnover

Inventory Turnover - Finished Goods
Inventory Turnover - Finished Goods
Inventory Turnover - Raw Material
Inventory Turnover - Raw Material
Debtors Turnover

Average Collection Period

Creditors Turnover

Payable Turnover

Operating Cycle

Total Assets Turnover

Fixed Assets Turnover

Investment/Market Ratios
Earnings Per Share

Price Earnings Ratio

Cash Dividend Per Share
Dividend Yield

Dividend Payout

Dividend Cover

Market Value Per Share - June 30
Market Value Per Share - High
Market Value Per Share - Low
Market Capitalization

Breakup Value - Net Assets Per Share
- Without Surplus on Revaluation
on Fixed Assets

Capital Structure Ratios
Financial Leverage

Debt Equity Ratio
Interest Cover
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%
%
%
%
%

times
times
times
times

times
days
times
days
times
days
times
days
times
days
days
times
times

Rs.
times
Rs.
%

%
times
Rs.
Rs
Rs

2019

18.58
20.63
14.10
16.93
23.32

4.82
2.59
0.64
0.02

3.80
96.07
32.17
11.35

3.95
92.33
13.48
27.07
27.07
13.48

109.66

1.05

9.82

38.93
9.35
8.00
2.20

20.55
4.87

364.06
471.98
347.85

Rs. 000 29,499,749

Rs.

%
%
times

229.98

13.91
0.01
443.08

2018

18.98
20.79
13.92
16.34
23.19

4.67
3.02
0.54
0.07

4.55
80.18
31.10
11.74

4.85
75.21
17.32
21.07
29.93
12.20
89.06

1.02
13.54

33.15
14.41
13.50

2.83

40.73

2.46
477.53
590.23
477.53
38,694,212

202.86

15.09
0.01
429.85

2017

21.22
32.61
23.16
25.70
35.35

5.84
4.33
2.49
0.10

4.75
76.81
27.89
13.09

5.27
69.23
19.25
18.96
50.12

7.28
88.49

0.98
16.64

48.95
12.38
19.75

3.26

40.35

2.48
606.03
697.12
317.81
49,106,556

190.46

12.92
0.01
640.99

2016

22.07
20.30
14.27
17.82
24.39

5.71
3.75
2.78
0.05

4.70
77.61
33.36
10.94

5.29
68.96
16.62
21.96
49.29

7.41
92.16

112
23.12

26.89
10.58
10.00

3.58

37.19

2.69
283.02
321.99
230.98
22,933,085

150.90

11.92
0.01
780.85

2015

18.93
19.72
13.82
19.95
27.38

5.43
3.67
2.65
0.13

4.68
77.99
35.54
10.27

4.86
75.07
17.85
20.45
38.15

8.93
89.50

1.28
25.60

26.52
10.76
12.50

4.38

4713

2.12
285.43
329.62
187.33
23,128,367

132.94

12.61
0.02
621.18

2014

15.57
16.27
11.71
14.45
18.90

4.43
2.29
1.43
0.07

3.54
103.15
30.42
12.00
3.64
100.31
14.038
26.02
31.60
12.24
116.92
1.07
19.10

16.80
12.34

7.50

3.62

44.64

2.24
207.39
218.00
107.15
16,804,793

116.24

15.81
0.02
386.13

GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION

OF RATIOS

Profitability Ratios

35.00

30.00
22.07

20.79
18.93 20.30 20.63

< 25.00

xX

23.16
82000 1557
©

A
16.07 ~—~———_18.98 18.58

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
- Gross Profit Ratio -l EBITDA Margin to Sales Net Profit Rati

Acitivity / Turnover Ratios

1201

=

103.15

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

io

109.66

2019

Inventory Turnover M Debtor Turnover B Creditor Turnover B Operating Cycle

Investment / Market Ratios

5231 4464 4713 48.95

Rupees

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

55.0%
50.0%
45.0%
40.0%
35.0%
30.0%
25.0%
20.0%
15.0%
10.0%
5.0%

0.0%

Percentage (%)

B CashDividend M Bonus Shares -l Earnings Per Share @~ Dividend Payout

Liquidity Ratios

6.00

5.71 5.84 4.82
5.00 s 5.43 4.67

Times
w
o
o

1.43

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Current Ratio - Quick Ratio == Cash to Current Liabilities

Profitability Ratios

40.00 -
35.00 A
30.00 -
25.00 4
20.00 4
156.00 -
10.00 -

5.00 4

0.00 4

35.35

Percentage (%)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
B Return on Equity

Acitivity / Turnover Ratios

30.00 1 3

©
©
Y

23.12

25.00 A

20.00 A

156.00 -

Times

10.00

5.00 A

0.00

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

W Total Asset Turnover M Fixed Asset Turnover

Investment / Market Ratios

700.00 - 14.41

600.00 A
1076 4053

500001 45y 1

400.00 4

Rupees

300.00 A

200.00 A
100.00 -]
0.00

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

B Market Value Per Share -~ Price Earning Ratio

Capital Structure Ratio

2019

W Return on Capital Employed

2019

r 156.00

- 12.00

F 9.00

- 6.00

2019

0.020% 1 4 18%
= 0.015%
©
o
8 0.013%
< 0.010%
g 0.011%
& 0.008%
0.005%
0.000%
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

-l Debt Equity Ration

Annual Report 2019 | 63

Times







NOTICE OF THE
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Fifty-third Annual General Meeting of the
Members of the Company will be held on Saturday, October 26, 2019 at
10:15 AM at Khursheed Mahal, Avari Towers, Fatima Jinnah Road, Karachi
to transact the following business:

A
1.

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019,
together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Report thereon.

To approve a final cash dividend of 110% (i.e. Rs. 5.50 per share) for the year 2018-19 as recommended by the Board of
Directors. This is in addition to the Interim Dividend, of 50% i.e. Rs 2.50 per share already paid. The total dividend for
2018-19 will thus amount to 160% i.e. Rs. 8.00 per share.

To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2020. The present auditors — Messrs EY Ford
Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment.

To elect 07 (seven) directors of the Company as fixed by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on September 20, 2019
for a term of three years commencing from December 01, 2019, in accordance with the provisions of Section 159(1) of the
Companies Act, 2017. The names of the retiring Directors who are eligible for re-election are:

1. Mr. Rafig M. Habib 2. Mr. Ali S.Habib

3.  Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib 4.  Mr. Muhammad Tayyab Ahmad Tareen
5. Ms. Aliya Saeeda Khan 6. Mr. Asif Qadir

7.  Mr. Salman Burney

SPECIAL BUSINESS.

To consider, and if thought fit, pass the following resolutions as Special Resolution, with and without modification, to obtain
consent from the Members for granting loan by the Company to its subsidiary company Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private)
Limited (TBPK):

RESOLVED as and by way of Special Resolution THAT the Company do provide to Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private) Limited
a loan up to a maximum aggregate principal sum of Rs. 275 million (Rupees Two hundred seventy five million only), all on
such terms and subject to such conditions and for such consideration as may be determined by the Board of Directors of
the Company or by such person or persons as may be authorised by the Board of Directors of the Company, with each such
person as may be authorised by the Board of Directors of the Company being authorised to do all such acts deed and things
and to execute and deliver all such deeds, agreements, declarations, undertakings, assurances, guarantees, indemnities for
and on behalf and in the name of the Company as may be necessary or required or as they or any of them may think fit for
or in connection with the loan aforesaid or any one or more of them, including without limiting the generality of the foregoing
the negotiation and finalization of the terms and conditions relating to such loan and preparation, finalization, execution and
delivery of all agreements, guarantees, indemnities and other undertakings.

By Order of the Board
Karachi. Salman Khalid
Dated: September 20, 2019 Company Secretary
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N
1,

OTES:

Closure of Share Transfer Books

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from October 19, 2019 to October 26, 2019 (both days inclusive)
for the purpose of the Annual General Meeting and payment of the final dividend. Transfer requests received by our Share
Registrar, M/S. FAMCO Associates (Private) Ltd., 8-F, Next to Hotel Faran, Nursery, Block-6, PECHS, Sharea Faisal
Karachi. Tel:009-21-34380101-5,0092-21-34384621-3 (Ext-103) Fax: 0092-21-34380106 at the close of business on
October 18, 2019 will be treated in time for the purpose of determining above entitlement to the transferees for payment of
final dividend and to attend the Annual General Meeting.

Proxy

A member entitled to attend and vote at this General Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend, speak and vote in
his/her place at the Meeting. Instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at
least forty eight hours before the time of the meeting.

To facilitate identification for right to attend the Annual General Meeting, Shareholder whose holdings are on the Central
Depository System (CDS) or his/her Proxy should authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC or original
Passport at the time of attending the meeting; along with the Participant’s Identity Number and Shareholder’s account
number allocated by the Central Depository Company.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee
shall be produced at the time of the meeting.

Change of Address
The Shareholders are requested to promptly notify change in their address, if any, to the Company’s Share Registrar.

Submission of copies of CNIC not provided earlier

Individual Shareholders are once again reminded to submit a copy of their valid CNIC, if not provided earlier to the Compa-
ny’s Share Registrar, FAMCO Associates (Private) Limited. In case of non-availability of a valid copy of the Shareholders’
CNIC in the records of the Company, the company shall withhold the Dividend under the provisions of Section 243 of the
Companies Act 2017.

Withholding Tax on Dividend
Currently, the deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies under section 150 of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, are as under:

(@) For persons appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL): 15%
(b) For persons not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL).  30%

Shareholders who have filled their return are advised to make sure that their names are entered into latest Active Tax Payers
List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR at the time of dividend payment, otherwise they shall be treated as persons not
appearing in ATL and tax on their cash dividend will be deducted at the rate of 30% instead of 15%.

Withholding tax on Dividend in case of Joint Account Holders

In order to enable the Company to follow the directives of the regulators to determine shareholding ratio of the Joint Account
Holder(s) (where shareholding has not been determined by the Principal shareholder) for deduction of withholding tax on
dividend of the Company, shareholders are requested to please furnish the shareholding ratio details of themselves as
Principal shareholder and their Joint Holders , to the Company’s Share Registrar, enabling the Company to compute
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10.

withholding tax of each shareholder accordingly. The required information must reach the Company’s Share Registrar
by October 18, 2019, otherwise each shareholder will be assumed to have equal proportion of shares and the tax will
be deducted accordingly.

Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (E-mandate)

In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Companies (Distribution of Dividend)
Regulations, 2017, it is mandatory that dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the
bank account designated by the entitled shareholder. Notice in this regard has already been published earlier in newspapers
as per Regulations. All shareholders are once again requested to provide details of their bank mandate specifying: (i) title of
account, (i) account number, (i) IBAN number (iv) bank name and (v) branch name, code & address; to Company’s Share
Registrar. Shareholders who hold shares with Participants / Central Depository Company of Pakistan (CDC) are advised to
provide the mandate to the concerned Broker / CDC.

Distribution of Annual Report through Email (Optional)

Pursuant to the provision of section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017, the companies are permitted to circulate their
annual financial statements, along with auditor’s report, directors’ review report etc. (“Annual Report”) and the notice of
annual general meeting (“Notice”), to its shareholders by email. Shareholders of the Company who wish to receive the
Company’s Annual Report and Notices of annual general meeting by email are requested to provide the completed
Electronic Communication Consent Form (available on the Company’s website), to the Company’s Share Registrar.

Consent for the Facility of video-link

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 2017, the company may on the demand of members at least 7 days before
the general meeting, residing in a city except Karachi, who hold at least 10% of the total paid up capital of the Company,
provide the facility of video- link to such members enabling them to participate in its annual general meeting. If you wish to
take benefit of this facility, please fill the form available on the Company’s Website and submit it to the Company at its
registered address at least 10 days prior to the date of the meeting.

The Company will intimate members the venue of the video conference facility, if required criteria have been fulfilled, at least
7 days before the date of general meeting along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

Election of Directors

Any person who seeks to contest the election of directors shall, whether he is a retiring director or otherwise, file with the
Company at its Registered Office, 4th Floor, House of Habib, 3-JCHS, Block 7/8, Shahrah-E-Faisal, Karachi - 75350, not
later than fourteen days before the date of the meeting, the following documents:

(i)  Notice of his/her intention to offer himself/herself for election of directors in terms of Section 159(3) of the Act, together
with the consent to act as a director in Form 28 prescribed under the Companies Act, 2017;

(i) A detailed profile along with mailing address and other contact details as required under SECP’s SRO 634 (1)/2014
dated 10 July 2014;

(i) A candidate consenting for the election as director must be a member of the Company at the time of filing of his/her
consent except a person representing a member, which is not a natural person.

(iv) A declaration confirming that:
1) He/she is aware of his/her duties and powers under the relevant laws, Memorandum & Articles of Association of the
Company and listing regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange;

2) He/sheis notineligible to become a director of a listed company under any provisions of the Act, the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 and any other applicable law, rules and regulations.
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Independent Directors will be elected through the process of election of directors in terms of Section 159 of the Act and they
shall meet the criteria laid down under Section 166(2) of the Act.

Pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulation 2018, for the purpose of election of Directors and for any other agenda
item subject to the requirements of Section 143 and 144 of the Companies Act, 2017 members will be allowed to exercise
their right of vote through postal ballot, that is voting by post or through any electronic mode, in accordance with the require-
ments and procedure contained in the aforesaid Regulations.

Statement of Material Facts under Section 166(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 in respect of Election of Directors

Independent Directors will be elected through the process of election of directors in terms of Section 159 of the Companies
Act, 2017 (“the Act”) and they shall meet the criteria laid down under Section 166(2) of the Act.

The present Directors are interested to the extent that they are eligible for re-election as Directors of the Company.
Statement under section 134(3)(B) of the Companies Act, 2017 regarding the Special Business.

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business given in the agenda item no. 5 of the notice,
intended to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting of Thal Limited to be held on October 26, 2019.

Item 5 of the Notice
Loan to Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private) Limited

Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private) Limited is a joint venture Company of Thal Limited and Toyota Boshoku Corporation, Kariya
— Shi, Japan, Toyota Tsusho Corporation, Nagoya — Shi, Japan and Toyota Boshoku Asia Corporation. Thal Boshoku
Pakistan (Private) Limited, is engaged in the development, production and marketing of automotive parts including automo-
tive seats, seat frames, seat adjusters, seat covers, rails, automotive pressed parts, welded parts, and painted parts, air
cleaner and any other related automotive products and offering after-sales services for such products.

Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private) Limited has recently completed expansion of its seat project. Due to devaluation of Pak
Rupee and consequent cost overrun of the expansion project, Company requires finances to meet its capital and operating
expenses. Thal Limited proposes to provide a loan for the aggregate amount of Rs. 275 Million (Rupees Two hundred
seventy-five Million only). The other shareholders mentioned above will also provide loans. The loans to be provided by each
shareholder is proportionate to their shareholding.

Set out below are the required details of the loan proposed to be extended by the Company, to Thal Boshoku Pakistan
(Private) Limited:
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S. No. | Description Information Required

13. Salient features of the agreement(s), if any, entered into with | The agreement to be extended into will be based on the
its associated company or associated undertaking with facts as per para 9, 11 and 12 above.
regards to the proposed loan

14. Direct or indirect interest of directors, majority shareholders | The shares in TBPK are held by Thal Limited itself and
and their relatives, if any, in the associated company or the directors, shareholders and their relatives, therefore
associated undertaking or the transaction under consideration} have no direct interest in TBPK, only indirect interest by

virtue of their shareholding in Thal Ltd.
15. In case any investment in associated company or associated | Equity investment already made of Rs. 104.5 million in

undertaking has already made, the performance review of
such investment including information/justification for any

2013 and Rs. 275 million in 2018 for the expansion
project. The Company has been profitable for the last

impairment or write offs. 3 years however due to overrun in its expansion project,
needs financial support from its shareholders. There
have been no impairments or write-offs of Thal Limited’s

equity investment.

S. No. | Description Information Required

01. Name of the associated company or associated undertaking | Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private) Limited a private
along with criteria based on which the associated relationship | company in which Thal Limited holds 55% of the issued
is established. share capital.

02. Amount of loans or advances Aggregate amount of term loan of Rs. 275 million

(Rupees Two hundred seventy five million only)

03. Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the investing company The purpose of Loan to allow Thal Boshoku Pakistan
and its members from such loans or advances and period (Private) Limited to meet its financing needs.
of Loan.

The investing company will earn mark-up income on
the Loan.

The period of loan would be initially for a one year and
extendable for further four period’s of one year each,
if required by TBPK.

04. Earnings per share for the last three years Year ended June 30, 2017: Rs 5.02 per share

Year ended June 30, 2018: Rs 4.52 per share
Year ended June 30, 2019: Rs 0.19 per share

05. Break-up value per share, based on latest audited Rs. 14.96 as at June 30, 2019
financial statements

06. Financial position, including main items of financial position | Total Assets: Rs. 1,444,668,000
and profit and loss account on the basis of its latest
financial statements of the associated company or Issued Share Capital: Rs. 690,000,000
associated undertaking

Current Liabilities: Rs. 409,573,000
Profit after Tax: Rs. 13,396,000

07. In case of investment in relation to a project of associated | N.A.
company or associated undertaking that has not
commenced production

08. Average borrowing cost of the investing company or in 3 months KIBOR plus 0.75% p.a.
case of absence of borrowing the Karachi Inter Bank
Offered Rate for the relevant period

09. Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or commission etc. 3 months KIBOR plus 0.75% p.a.
to be charged

10. Sources of funds from where loans or advances will Thal Limited has adequate retained earnings and cash
be given balances to extend a loan to Thal Boshoku Pakistan

(Private) Limited.

11. Particulars of collateral or security to be obtained in No collateral will be obtained since a proportionate loan

relation to the proposed investment will be granted by the other shareholders also and no
shareholder will be taking any security/ collateral.
Therefore all shareholders will be in the same position
to the benefit of TBPK.

12. Repayment schedule and terms and conditions of loans The loan will be repaid with markup after one year of
or advances to be given to the associated company or disbursement. If the loan is extended by further period(s)
associated undertaking. of one year, repayment of principal and mark-up will be

due at the end of each such period.
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The Directors of the Company have carried out the necessary due diligence in relation to the proposed loan to Thal Boshoku
Pakistan (Private) Limited and the due diligence report signed by the Directors will be available at the Annual General
Meeting.

For the purpose of seeking the approval of the shareholders of the Company to the loan discussed above, the Board of
Directors have proposed that the resolution set forth at item 5 of the notice convening the Annual General Meeting of the
Company be passed as and by way of a Special Resolution.

Statement under Regulation 4 (2) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings)
Regulations 2017

Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company Limited

In the annual general meeting held on October 2nd 2018 the members of the Company had approved investment in Sindh
Engro Coal Mining Company Limited (“SECMC”). SECMC achieved commercial operations on 10th July 2019; which marks
a historic milestone for Pakistan’s Energy sector. Phase | of the Thar mining and power generation projects comprise
Pakistan’s first indigenous open pit coal mine which supplies 3.8 million tons of lignite coal per annum to a 2x330 MW power
generation plant set up by EPTL. For Phase | of SECMC, the Board of Directors of Thal Limited approved a total exposure
of Pak Rupee equivalent of USD 36.1 million, which includes equity investment of USD 24.3 million, USD 5 million for cost
over-run and USD 6.8 million for debt servicing reserve (adjustable due to LIBOR/KIBOR movement). Phase | of SECMC
mining project has been completed within time and with significant cost savings. The Company had invested USD 17.49
million as of June 30, 2019 in SECMC

Phase Il of SECMC is on it course to achieve Financial Close. The tariff has been determined by Thar Coal & Energy Board
while the financing documents are in the process of being executed.

SECMC has entered into Coal Supply Agreements with ThalNova Power Thar (Pvt) Ltd and Thar Energy Ltd to supply
additional 1.9 million tons of lignite per annum to each 330 MW power plant respectively.
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Thal Power (Private) Limited

ThalNova Power Thar (Private) Limited (“ThalNova”) is a joint venture between Thal Power, Nova Powergen Ltd (subsidiary
of Novatex Ltd) and Hub Power Company to set up a 330 MW mine mouth coal-fired power generation plant located at Thar,
Sindh. This power plant will be run on indigenous coal extracted from the mine operated by SECMC. In the extraordinary
general meeting held on March 22, 2018, the members of the Company had approved a total exposure of USD 129.9
million, which includes equity investment of USD 58.7 million, cost overrun support in the form of equity and subordinated
debt of USD 23.2 million each, debt servicing reserve LC and commercial risk LC of USD 12.4 million each in ThalNova. The
Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Thal Power (Private) Limited, had invested USD 5.8 million as of June 30,
2019 in ThalNova.

ThalNova has obtained the Letter of Support (LOS) from the Private Power Infrastructure Board (PPIB). National Electric
Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) has issued the Generation License and awarded the Upfront Tariff on Thar coal to the
project company. ThalNova has also been issued a No Objection Certificate (NOC) by the Sindh Environmental Protection
Agency (SEPA).

China Machinery & Engineering Corporation has been appointed as the EPC Contractor. ThalNova has entered into Coal
Supply Agreement (CSA) with SECMC to supply 1.9 million tons per annum lignite. It has also entered into a Power Purchase
Agreement (PPA) with the Central Power Purchase Agency (Guarantee) Ltd. and the Implementation Agreement (“IA”) with
PPIB. China Development Bank (“CDB”) and Habib Bank Limited (“HBL”) have been engaged for arrangement of foreign
and local currency project debt respectively. ThalNova executed key financial agreements with project lenders in July this
year and is on course for achieving financial close.

ThalNova (through shareholder’s equity) has given Mobilization Advance along with Limited Notice to Proceed to the EPC
contractor i.e. China Machinery and Engineering Corporation to initiate work on the site and expedite the achievement of
Commercial Operations Date of the Project.
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COMBINED PATTERN OF CDC AND

PHYSICAL SHAREHOLDING

AS AT JUNE 30, 2019

Size of Holding
No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
1,409 1 100 49,483
1,268 101 500 329,258
536 501 1000 376,470
842 1001 5000 1,770,749
157 5001 10000 1,139,623
59 10001 15000 747,200
27 15001 20000 467,785
16 20001 25000 345,997
13 25001 30000 367,123
12 30001 35000 390,443
15 35001 40000 561,180
5 40001 45000 213,556
10 45001 50000 477,066
11 50001 55000 586,886
3 55001 60000 174,213
2 60001 65000 126,121
3 65001 70000 203,401
3 75001 80000 234,400
2 80001 85000 167,521
3 85001 90000 263,225
1 90001 95000 93,432
1 95001 100000 98,900
2 100001 105000 204,751
2 110001 115000 225,885
5 115001 120000 590,687
2 120001 125000 249,583
5 130001 135000 657,076
4 135001 140000 549,409
1 140001 145000 140,900
1 145001 150000 146,333
2 150001 155000 308,929
1 155001 160000 157,986
1 165001 170000 168,198
1 175001 180000 179,216
2 195001 200000 400,000
2 200001 205000 405,330
1 210001 215000 212,800
4 220001 225000 889,698
2 225001 230000 454,402
3 235001 240000 717,229
2 255001 260000 512,346
2 270001 275000 545,150
1 275001 280000 280,000
2 280001 285000 561,430
1 300001 305000 304,386
1 305001 310000 305,416
2 315001 320000 634,480
1 325001 330000 325,920
6 330001 335000 1,987,887
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COMBINED PATTERN OF CDC AND

PHYSICAL SHAREHOLDING

AS AT JUNE 30, 2019

COMBINED PATTERN OF CDC AND
PHYSICAL SHAREHOLDING

Size of Holding

No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
1 345001 350000 346,800
2 350001 355000 703,969
1 365001 370000 367,334
1 370001 375000 374,668
1 385001 390000 388,231
1 390001 395000 393,098
1 405001 410000 406,600
5 420001 425000 2,108,547
1 485001 490000 490,000
3 495001 500000 1,495,629
1 585001 590000 585,007
1 600001 605000 601,052
2 605001 610000 1,214,735
1 710001 715000 711,503
1 725001 730000 726,392
1 800001 805000 800,400
1 810001 815000 810,233
1 830001 835000 830,269
1 840001 845000 843,547
1 850001 855000 851,137
1 945001 950000 949,800
2 1095001 1100000 2,198,016
1 1145001 1150000 1,145,133
1 1150001 1155000 1,153,170
1 1185001 1190000 1,189,452
1 1245001 1250000 1,245,403
1 1340001 1345000 1,340,202
1 1405001 1410000 1,405,639
1 1815001 1820000 1,818,017
1 2395001 2400000 2,398,908
1 2890001 2895000 2,894,306
4 3790001 3795000 15,170,103
1 5415001 5420000 5,419,050
1 6350001 6355000 6,354,100

4,503 81,029,909
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AS AT JUNE 30, 2019
No. Categories No. of Category-wise Category-wise | Percentage
of Shareholders Shares Held No. of Folios / Shares Held (%)
CDC Accounts
1 Individuals 4,267 16,448,918 20.30
2 Investment Companies 4 3,334 0.00
3 Joint Stock Companies 35 1,884,803 2.33
4 Directors, Chief Executive Officer and
Their Spouse and Minor Children 26 7,626,347 9.41
ALI SULEMAN ALI HABIB 2,091,099
ALIYA SAEEDA KHAN 1,000
ALIZEH ALI HABIB 4,991
ASIF QADIR 5,000
ATTIQA RAFIQ 733,120
JAMILA RAFIQ 961,231
MASTER IMRAN 13,703
MAZHER VALJEE 20,754
MEHER AFROZE 367,334
MOHAMEDALI R. HABIB 1,566,834
RAFIQ HABIB 1,340,202
MUHAMMED SALMAN BURNEY 5,000
MUNIZEH ALI HABIB 200,530
RUBINA SOHAIL 2,500
SAYYEDA MOHAMED ALI 280,715
SOHAIL P. AHMED 32,334
5 Executives 6 19,068 0.02
6 Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Partigs 1 500,000 0.62
HABIB INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Public Sector Companies and Corporations 1 304,386 0.38
Banks, DFl's , NBFls, Insurance Companies,
Takaful, Modarabas's and Pension Funds 30 13,109,668 16.18
Financial Institutions 5,822,468
Insurance Companies 6,946,087
Modaraba 18,438
Pension Funds 322,675
Holding 5% or more voting intrest
JUBILEE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 6,354,100
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 5,419,050
9 Mutual Funds 59 7,672,284 9.47
GOLDEN ARROW SELECTED STOCKS FUND 4,149
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE JS VALUE FUND 39,200
GOLDEN ARROW SELECTED STOCKS FUND LIMITED 280,000
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AS AT JUNE 30, 2019 AS AT JUNE 30, 2019

CDC - TRUSTEE PICIC INVESTMENT FUND 212,800 CDC - TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC ASSET
CDC - TRUSTEE PICIC GROWTH FUND 406,600 ALLOCATION FUND 38,950
CDC - TRUSTEE JS ISLAMIC FUND 27,300 CDC - TRUSTEE LAKSON TACTICAL FUND 14,531
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP VALUE FUND 50 MCBFSL TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC DEDICATED
CDC - TRUSTEE UNIT TRUST OF PAKISTAN 54,050 STOCK FUND 37,250
CDC - TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND 7,171 CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ISLAMIC
CDC - TRUSTEE AKD OPPORTUNITY FUND 270,500 DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 1
CDC - TRUSTEE UBL STOCK ADVANTAGE FUND 325,920 CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST HABIB ASSET
CDC - TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN SHARIAH STOCK FUND 274,650 ALLOCATION FUND 21,100
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA STOCK FUND 132,389 MCBFSL - TRUSTEE AKD ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 25,000
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP BALANCED FUND 11 CDC - TRUSTEE UBL DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 214
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL - STOCK FUND 204,800 MCBFSL - TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC DEDICATED
MC FSL - TRUSTEE JS GROWTH FUND 11,500 EQUITY FUND 10,850
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL MULTI - ASSET FUND 8,000 10 Foreign Investors 48 33,613,059 41.48
CDC - TRUSTEE NIT-EQUITY MARKET Holding 5% or more voting intrest
OPPORTUNITY FUND 45,900 ASAD LIMITED 7,517,613
CDC - TRUSTEE ABL STOCK FUND 79,550 ALIREZA LIMITED 7,561,504
M C F S L-TRUSTEE ASKARI ISLAMIC ASSET MUSTAFA LIMITED 8,282,214
ALLOCATION FUND 4,600 SHAKIR LIMITED 5,397,558
CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST HABIB STOCK FUND 1,650
CDC - TRUSTEE LAKSON EQUITY FUND 87,250 11 Co-Operative Socities 2 6,814 0.01
CDGC-TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 53,050 12 Charitable Trust 15 1,094,599 1.35
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL EQUITY FUND 20,400 13 Others 23 586,953 0.72
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL IPF EQUITY SUB FUND 13,050
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL PF EQUITY SUB FUND 13,100 TOTAL 4,503 81,029,909 100.00
CDC - TRUSTEE ASKARI EQUITY FUND 800
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE PAK OMAN ISLAMIC
ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 11,800
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 44,050
CDC - TRUSTEE UBL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 21,250
CDC - TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC
ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 112,200
CDGC-TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC RET. SAV.
FUND-EQUITY SUB FUND 67,650
CDC - TRUSTEE UBL RETIREMENT
SAVINGS FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND 35,150
CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST 2,398,908
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND 21,950
CDC - TRUSTEE NIT ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND 136,800
CDC - TRUSTEE AL AMEEN ISLAMIC
DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 255,866
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FINANCIAL STATENI ENTS



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH LISTED COMPANIES

(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

Name of Company: Thal Limited (The Company)
Year ended: June 30, 2019

01. The company has complied with the requirements of the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) in the following
manner:

The total number of directors are 8 as per the following:

Male 7

Female 1

02. The composition of board is as follows:

a. |Independent Directors Mr. Asif Qadir
Ms. Aliya Saeeda Khan

b. | Other Non-Executive Director | Mr. Rafiq M. Habib

Mr. Ali S. Habib

Mr. Mohammedali R. Habib
Mr. Sohail P. Ahmed

Mr. Salman Burney

C. | Executive Director Mr. Mazhar Valjee
(Effective July 1, 2019,
Mr. Muhammad Tayyab
Ahmad Tareen has been
appointed as Chief
Executive Officer in place

of Mr. Mazhar Valjee).

03. The directors have confirmed that none of them is
serving as a director on more than five listed companies,
including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries
of listed holding companies, where applicable).

04. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has
ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its
supporting policies and procedures.

05. The board has developed a vision / mission statement,
overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
Company. A complete record of particulars of significant
policies along with the dates on which they were
approved or amended has been maintained.

06. Allthe powers of the board have been duly exercised
and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
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07.

08.

09.

10.

11.

12.

13.

board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and
these Regulations.

The meetings of the board were presided over by the
Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by
the board for this purpose. The board has complied with
the requirements of Act and the Regulations with
respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes
of meeting of board.

The board of directors have a formal policy and
transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

All of the Directors of the Company have undertaken
Directors’ Training Program or are exempted from the
same by SECP.

The board has approved appointment of CFO,
Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment and complied with relevant requirements of
the Regulations.

CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the board.

The board has formed committees comprising of
members given below:

Audit Committee

Mr. Asif Qadir Chairman
Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib Member
Mr. Sohail P. Ahmed Member
Mr. Salman Burney Member

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Asif Qadir Chairman
Mr. Salman Burney Member
Mr. Ali S. Habib Member
Mr. Mazhar Valjee Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees
have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

The frequency of meetings (quarterly / half-yearly /
yearly) of the committee were as per following:

Audit Committee 4 meetings
HR and Remuneration Committee 1 meeting

The board has outsourced the internal audit function to
Noble Computer Services (Private) Limited who are
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the
purpose and are conversant with the policies and
procedures of the Company.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed
that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the
quality control review program of the ICAP and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that
they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and
minor children do not hold shares of the company and
that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guide-
lines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with
them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or
any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in
this regard.

We confirm that all other requirements of the Regula-
tions have been complied with.
y.
) ..I-r-}"t 'L_nl
Karachi Rafig M Habib
Chairman
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e g STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

- AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REVIEW REPORT + STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the members of Thal Limited

Revivw Report on the Statemant of Compliance contamad in Linted Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Hegulatians, 2017

We have reviewad [he énciosed Statement of Compllaices with the Listed Companies (Coge of
Larporate Dovermancel Reguiationg, 2017 (hi Regulstions) prepared by the Board of Directors of
Thal Limited {the Companyd [or (he yoe ented 30 June 20190 scoordinee with [he FEguiramens
of regialation 40 ol [he Reauldiiory

The respomsiblity for comgdiance with the Regulationg i that ol the Board of Dliectors of 1hs
Company. Our responaibility Fispiids thar e Siate ! of Complinmco rediocts She slaius
& the Cormpaiy’s campliance with the-provisions of The Regulations ang reporl i1 11 dee not amd ba
Righiight any non-com plapce with the Sequitarsents of the Hogulalions. A review (8 timlle

1o inquiries of the Comnpany's persorinel andd revies of warlous dog urnadkl s g egared by | e .._r.rr-r.um,-
to camply with the Regulatipns.

.I".'.ﬂ i FLIIr. r_Iﬂ QU Uit of ”Il,'. ||rI|_|||I,'||_1| yigtemiEnty Wit B e ”,||J||ir|_:-_1 I |-||'|!:'|||-. i wiiist '..||.'IF||‘||I'I|; |-_|| “'IE'
ercounting and internal controd systems sulficient to plan the aydil and develop an effectivie auill
approach, We sn el redquicred te cansldel wiviklhier the Board ol Dire * slatersenl on intarmal
con ol covars all risks-and coptrols of 2 lorm an apidion on the cfis ok bl ek indernal
controfs, the Cormpany's corparaba governinces procedures and risks,

The Regulatisns require the Campany o plvce before the Audil Commitice, and e
racammenidation of 1ho & o 3 Lok for Vhoir review and

rrlatod party Iransact|ons ond als surc compllanco wilh the roquirements of
seubion 208 of Lhe Companies Act, 2017, Wa gre onby reguired snd b npllantiE ol this
requirement [g the extant of the appraval of the redated parly Jransa i by the Beard of
Qiractcds upan recemmendation af he sudil Cormmi L We fave nal Cadriod oot procediurss Lo
As0ss and determing The Campary’'s prociss Tor idenlks ¥ 1 pir | s e Ehat ] s hie e
Eheie relatidgd phrdy transactlons s unde

Bl o our seview, nolhing kas comie to ours .- = A fi Dty Thal the
statemeit of Compliance doss nod sppropr ; comeliance, In & malarial
ricspects, with bhe requiremonts contamed in Lhs F'uuul.n.ruh = applicabiie (o (e Company for L
e Endad 30 Junds 2019,

'l. ‘f P"" -w-1£."-.

Chartered Ac counfanis
Plage: Karachl

Date. 25 So pisindr 2019




IMDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Ta the members of Thal Limited (the Company)

Beport on the Audit of the Unconsofidated Financial Séatements
Tpinion

We have gudited Llhe apnaxed uncensadldatad lnanclsl statements of Thal Limited {thve Comparmy), which
compriee the uncontolidated statemant of financiaf position as al 30 June 2019, a5l The ancontolidated
staternant of profit or oss and other comprebansive Incomie, he uncansolidatsd statement of changess in
gguity, the wuncoragiidaled stelemenl al cash lows for the year then ended, ond noles 1o Lhe
uncantolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accaunting polickes and ather
axplanatory Information, and we state Hhat we have obiained sl the information and explanations which, 1o
the hest of oiir knowtedae and belesd, wers necassary tor the purposas of the gudit

in our gpinion and to the best of our infermation and afcording t& the explanstions given to us. the
urcantalldated statement of financial position, uncerdalidated statemsat of profil of |Sss and other
camprahenzive income, [he unconsplidated statament of changes in equity and Ihe unconsolldated
statement of cash Mows together with the not=s forming part thersof conferm with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and glve the infarmation required by the Companies Act.
2017 (4% af 20170, Inthe mannar 46 raquirad and respectivaly give a Lrue and lalr vlew of the state ol
the Company's afpirs a8 ol 30 June 2019 and of the profit and other comprefensive income, the
chamges in equlty and -5 cesh MNows for tha yeaf then ended.

Basls for Oplnlen

e conductsd our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing {15453 a3 applicable in
Pikistap. Owr resgonsibiiilies wnder [hose standards are forther described In the Audifor's
Fesponsibilitics for the Audit of the Unconselidated Financial Statements section of cur report, We are
independent of the Company [n accordance with 1he Inbernational Ethics Standards Bogrd for
Aecountants’ Code of Ethics For Professions) Accountants as adopted by the institute of Charteres
Accountants of Pakistan (the Coded and we have fullllled our ather ethicsl réspansibllities Inaccardance
with tha Code, We balleve that the audil avidencs we have abtalned iz suffident and appropriafe o
provide a bazis Tor our opnion,

Koy Audit Matters

iay audit matters are thoss matlers that, (n our professional Judgmaent, were of most skaniticance in our
audit of the unconsalidated financial statements of the current peried, Thisse mafters were adoressed in
the context of ouraudit of he unconsolideted financiasl statements a3-a whaole, and in forming pur opinien
thargon, and w2 do nal provide & seperale oplnian an these "1@2‘&'5.

1




EY

g & btk
worhing wan

Fallowing are the Key audit matter{s}

Kty il f iy

1. Revenumr fovy and fiom of IFRS 15 'Rovenue from contracts with cusfamers”

| LA

the maller eat addreuied n pur audk

The Company earns revenug from multiple
bisiness lnes which operate &s  distinct
barsiness  wnits with significant  volums ol
ravenie fransactions. The recognitian of
revense relabing to each business ling depend
on the nature of confraclual arrangements
with bhe eustormess.

IFRS 1% "Revenus from coalractis with
customers' has become effective In Pakistan
for accounting periods beginning an or aftar L
July 2018 and aceacdingly 1he same has bagn
adopted by the Company during tha year.

IFRS 15 provides comprohendye moded of
raverse  recogniblion and  reguires.  the
Company [0 exercise judgemaent, taking into
consideration 88l of the relevant lacts and
circumstances whan agplying the model to
contracts with cusbemars.

‘We jdenfified revenuse recognition as a kaoy
Autgit malier dus to adoption of (FRS 15,
slgnificant waluma of transactions and the
amount of audit efforts in relation to bhis area.

Koy audit matinrs
2. Caplital erpendifure on few prodects

Wa

peeformed @ ranga of audit procedurss. in

relation to revenue including the folbowing:

Fie reviewsed the terms ang conditions aof
distingl sale transaction: and - assecsad the
appragriatensse of the ravenus recognition
prlicios and practices followed by tho Campany,

e evaluated the impact af the new sccainting
requirement are In sccordance with FRS 15,
We reyviewst the assessment prepared by the
managmment relating b the application of Mve-
abeg model for cevemied Fecognition.

We teated conbrals gvar revenuse recognition
and reporting process within 2ach businass undl
ingluding  key 1T  application contrats, 1T
dependent manpal contrals and IT general
controly for the relevant T systems veed foe
revenue  fransaction  processing by the
Comgpany.

We parformed analytical review procedures and
ather lost of datails over various favanug
streams ncluding Lhe cut-all procedieras o
chack that revenie has besn recognized in the
appropriaie ecocouniing period.

W asiessed he pdeguacy of The disclosores &
per the guidelines sel put in the appilcabls
fimanclal reporting reguiremeants.

bho matier was acdsressgsd inoor audll

As refarred te in note T to the sccompanylng
vncanselidated  financial - =iatements, the
Company has incurred significant amouni ol
capital axpenditure during the y=ar for new
projacls boanfance Lhe production capacity al
its engneering dividen.

Capital sxpenditdres Incurred during the yesr
rapresents  a  significant  transaction and
[hergfore, we have (dentified the same a5 8
kigy audlk matter,

Dur

procedures, amongst othaes, Included the

folloaving:

Diteining an understanding of the Company's
process with respect o capital expenditure
Including project budgeting, ssscullon of
contracts snd accumulation of cost

We reviewsd the ralswant conlracls and
documants supporting various companents af
the capitallsed cost.

We cordidered whathor the ilems ol cosd
capitalised, mest Lhe recagnitlan critesia of an
assels  in #ccordance  with the applicabis
financial reporting slandards

We alss evafupted the basis used by the
management for depreciatien charged in
remtion & (he assels, by congldering Taclom
such a5 the current ussful life estimates and
timing of capifalisatian.

Wi assiased the adeguacy of the digclogsuced is
per the guldelines set oul in the applicabis
fitancial reporting requiremants.
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infarmation Other than the Unconsalldated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management s responsible for the oftber information. The other information comprises the Information
Inefuded In the Anncal Report, but does nob Relude the uncansaiidated tinancial atatements and our
auditors' raport thereon.

Dur oplnien on the unconsolldaled francial stalements dogs nod cover The otber mformalion and we da nol
express any form ol assurance conciusioh therspn,

In eannecton with sur audlt of the uneonsolldated financiad statemants, our responsibility s to read the
othar information and, i deing s0, consider whather the ather infarmation |5 materially Inconsistent with
the unconsofidated fmancial stalementz ar our krowledge sbtained in the audil or otherwise appears bo
be materially missloted. If, bazed on the work we have performed, we concluds thal thereis a material
mizstatement al this obher Information, we are reguired ks report that fack. We have nothing (o reoart in
this regard.

Responsibilities ol Management and Bosrd of Directors far the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Managemenl is responsible for the preparstion and falr pressntation of the unconsolidated financial
statements In accardance with the acoounting and repoarting standards a5 applicable in Pakiztan and L
requirsments of Companies &ct, 2017 (K10 of 20172 and for such internal conbrol 25 manegement
detarmines ls necedsary bo enable Lhe preparstion of unconsalldated financial statement= that sre frea
fram malenial mizstatemant, whether due to fraud or error.

I preparing the unconsolidated financial stabemants, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s abliity to continue as.a going concern, discissing, asapplicable, matters ratated o going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unléss management elthar intends to liguidate the
Company of Lo eaate operalioni. or het o realkstle alternative buat fo da 5o,

Baoard of directors are responside for ovarseeing the Comgamy's financial reporting process
Auditors' Respensibliities for the Audit of the Unconsolldated Financlal Statements

Cur pbjeclives are Lo obtaln reasonable asserance aboul whether the unconsolldated financiad statemanis
&4 a whola are free from material misstatemnent, whaethes due (g fraud or errar, and te lssus an audibsrs'
regart that inchedes our opinion, Reascnable assurance is o high leved of assurance, butb is not & guarantes
thal an audit conducted In accordance with ISA% ae spplicably in Pakistan will always detect a material
missiatleament when i exigts. Misstatements can arls= trom fravd or error and a2 considered material &,
individealiy or in the eggregate, they could reasanably be eapected to influgnce the economic deckions of
usary takan on the besls of Lhese uncantalidated lindncial stalementa.

As-part of an audit In sccordance with 1545 as apphicabie m Pakiston, wi gEersise professional judgmant
pnd mainlaln professionsl skeptlcism theaugnoal the gudll. We aisar

=« |dentity and assess the nicks of material misztatemant of the unconselidated financial statemants,
whaethor due fo freud of error, design and perform sudlf procedures Fespansive bo those risks, and
aptain audly evidence that 15 sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinian, The risk
af nob detecting & material mlsstatement resuliing from frowd is higher than for one fosdiling from
errar, as froud may invalve eallusion, fargery, Intentlondl amilssions, misreprazentations, or Lhe
awirrlde 8f Internal control,

# [Obfatn an understanding of internal control rebevant b ihe audil in order Lo deslan avalt procedures
that are appropriate in the glrcumstances, bul not for the purposs of exprazsing an apinlan an the
effactiveness of the Company’s internaf control.

& Ewaluate the sppropriateness of accounting policles wsed and the reasonablensss o accounting
aalimates &nd related disclnsueres made by management, 45‘-"- t..t
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« Conclude ob the appropriateness of management's wse of the godng toncern basis ol accouniing
and, besad on the audlt swdence oblained. whether 3 matarial ncertainty axists refaled 1o svenls
or condibons that may cast significant doubi on the Company’s abillly to continue 35.a going
concern, |f we conclude [hal 8 malarlsl Uneesrtatinty exists, we are reguired to draw attention in owe
aufitars' réport tothe related disclosures in the unconsolidated Mnancldl statéments or, it 5wch
disclosures are inadequale, e modily our apinion, Dur concluslans ars basad on the audit evidencs
otiained up to the dabe of our auditors' repert. Howevar, future events or condilions enay chuse the
Company o ceaze by coatinive as 4 going doncedn,

# Evaluste tha overall presentation, stfucture and contenl of the umconsoifidated financial
slatwmants, including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated fmancial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in 4 manner thal schioves Tair presentation.

Wa commiunicats with the bodrd of difeelars regarding, among sther matters, the planned =ope and Hming
of the sodit and significant audit findings, incloding any significant deficiencias in intarnal confrol that
wa idenfify during oter sl

We atze provide the board of directors with a siatement ihat we have complisd with relevant ethical
requirements regarding Independence, and (o communlcate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonatdy be thought ta bear on'our independence, and where appiicable, related saleguards.

Frpm (he malbors commundcated with the board of directors, we determing thosa matters that were of mast
siyiificance in the zudit of the unconsoildsted financial statements of the cusrent period snd are
therafore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in oor auditors” report unless law or
reguiation preciudas public disclesurs about tha matter or when, In exiremedy rane clroumskancas, we
detarmine that a metter should nat be communicated Ines report becsuse the adverse conseguances of doing
s0 woulld reasonably be expected to cutwaigh the public inferest benaflits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audst, we further repart that in our opinion:

#) proper books of sccount have besn kept by the Company a3 required by the Compenies Acl, 2017
LRIX of 2017

b} e uncensolidaled siatement of fingncial position. the unconsplidated statement of profit or ioss
and other compretensive mcome, the unconsolldates statemanl of changes in eguity and the
unconsolidated statement of cash fiows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
cemfarmity with the Compenies Act, 2007 (XK of 2017) ond are Inagresmant with the books of
account and returns!

61 Investments mede, expencliurs incurred and quarantess extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company's bisiness; and

d}, zakst deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XY of 19800, was
deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund sstablished wider seclion 7 ol
ital Crdinancs.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this indepandent auditars' report i3 Arslan Khalid,

e Pred Blradan

Chartwred Accountants
Plaze: [Larachi
Dete: 25 September 2019
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2019

Note 2019 2018
———————— (Rupees in ‘000’)--------
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 7 2,187,780 1,410,212
Intangible assets 8 90,745 15,094
Investment property 9 995 1,002
Long-term investments 10 5,431,550 4,938,387
Long-term loans 11 861,282 788,428
Long-term deposits 12 14,861 13,396
Deferred tax asset 13 165,194 191,151
8,752,407 7,357,670

Current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 14 124,710 131,572
Stock-in-trade 15 5,635,305 3,953,914
Trade debts 16 2,347,946 1,519,728
LLoans and advances 17 21,860 72,696
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 18 316,623 141,318
Interest accrued 3,699 2,088
Other receivables 19 71,168 35,611
Short-term investments 20 2,943,298 4,847,238
Income tax - net 21 93,918 62,828
Sales tax refundable 300,186 91,517
Cash and bank balances 22 611,509 701,283

12,470,222 11,559,793
TOTAL ASSETS 21,222,629 18,917,463
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised capital
200,000,000 (2018: 200,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.5/- each 23 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 23 405,150 405,150
Reserves 24 18,226,309 16,032,520

18,631,459 16,437,670
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term deposits 25 1,463 2,379

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 26 2,483,601 2,379,148

Unclaimed dividend 56,697 49,712

Unpaid dividend 49,409 47,954

Short-term running finance 27 = 600
2,589,707 2,477,414

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 28

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 21,222,629 18,917,463

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

'FIT -~ -
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR

90 | Thal Limited

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 2019 2018

Revenue - net 29 22,374,364 19,292,959
Cost of sales 30 (18,217,120)  (15,631,677)
Gross profit 4157,244 3,661,282
Distribution and selling expenses 31 (288,353) (219,219)
Administrative expenses 32 (753,584) (814,266)
Other charges 33 (291,994) (261,582)
(1,333,931) (1,295,067)
Other income 34 1,521,134 1,446,166
Operating profit 4,344 447 3,812,381
Finance costs 35 (9,805) (8,869)
Profit before taxation 4,334,642 3,803,512
Taxation 36 (1179,977) (1,117,542)
Net profit for the year 3,154,665 2,685,970
—————— (Rupees) --—-
Basic and diluted earnings per share 37 38.93 33.15

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

i ."h o
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR

Annual Report 2019 | 91



UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 2019 2018

Net profit for the year 3,154,665 2,685,970
Other comprehensive income
[tem that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
in subsequent periods;
(Loss)/gain on revaluation equity instrument at fair value through
other comprehensive income 10 (69,545) 20,251
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,085,120 2,706,221
The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
|
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

RESERVES
Issued, Capital General |Unappropr-| Gainon Total
subscribed | reserves reserves | iated profit | revaluation equity
and paid-up of investment
capital at fair value
through other
comprehen-
sive income
(Rupees in ‘000’)
Balance as at June 30, 2017 405,150 55,704 11,165,499 3,662,302 143,925 15,433,080
Transfer to general reserve - - 2,366,000 (2,366,000) = =
Final dividend @ Rs. 16/- per share
for the year ended June 30, 2017 - - - 11 (1,296,479) - |1 (1,296,479)
First Interim dividend @ Rs. 2.50/- per share
for the year ended June 30, 2018 - - - (202,576) - (202,576)
Second interim dividend @ Rs. 2.50/- per share
for the year ended June 30, 2018 - - - (202,576) - (202,576)
- - - (1,701,631) - (1,701,631)
Net Profit for the year - - - || 2,685,970 - 1| 2,685,970
Other comprehensive income - - - - 20,251 20,251
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 2,685,970 20,251 2,706,221
Balance as at June 30, 2018 405,150 55,704 13,531,499 2,281,141 164,176 16,437,670
Transfer to general reserve - - 1,692,000 (1,592,000) - =
Final dividend @ Rs. 8.5/- per share
for the year ended June 30, 2018 - - - (688,755) - (688,755)
Interim dividend @ Rs. 2.50/- per share
for the year ended June 30, 2019 - - - (202,576) - (202,576)
- - - (891,331) - (891,331)
Net Profit for the year - - - || 3,154,665 - || 3,154,665
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (69,545) (69,545)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 3,154,665 (69,545) 3,085,120
Balance as at June 30, 2019 405,150 55,704 15123,499 2,952,475 94,631 18,631,459
The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
=t }
<yt J B - .
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
2019 2018
-------- (Rupees in ‘000’)--------
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
QaSh generated from operations 395,769 1,424,992 11 Thal Limited (the Company) was incorporated on January 31, 1966 as a public company limited by shares and is listed on the Pakistan
Finance costs paid (9,805) (8,870) Stock Exchange Limited.
Retirement benefits paid (4,901) (4,038)
Income tax paid (1,185,110) (1,112,610) The Company is engaged in the manufacture of engineering goods, jute goods, papersack and laminate sheets.
Long-term loans 3,996 2,997
Long-term deposits - net (2,381) 1,323 1.2 Geographical location and address of business units
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (802,432) 303,794
Head Office
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES The registered office of the Company is situated at 4th Floor, House of Habib, 3-Jinnah Co-perative Housing Society, Block 7/8, Sharae
Fixed capital expenditure (1,129,061) (599,751) Faisal, Karachi.
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 42,938 14,149
Long-term investments made during the year (562,708) (774 ,150) Plants:
Short-term investments - net 2,263,083 (1,854,877) Engineering operations are located at Korangi and Port Qasim, Karachi, Sindh.
Long-term loans to subsidiaries - net (76,850) (380,000) . .
Dividends received during the year 1,333,170 1,102,243 The Jute operations are located at Muzaffargarh, Punjab.
Interest received during the year 129,815 236,857 . .
Net cash generated / (used in) from investing activities 2,000,387 (2,255,529) Papersack operations are located at Hub, Balochistan and Gadoon, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa.
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES LLaminates operations are located at Hub, Balochistan.
zlv;dendhs pal((:; in fi . tiviti (222231 ) (12;221 2) 1.3  These unconsolidated financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company in which investments in subsidiaries and
et cash used In financing activities ( ’ ) (. ’ ) associates are accounted for on the basis of direct equity interest and are not consolidated or accounted for by using equity method of
accounting.
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 315,064 (3,628,253) ?
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,342,144 4,970,397 2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANGE
Q ’ ’ ’ ’ 21  These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 1,657,208 1,342,144
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017 (the Act);
The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under
the Act; and
Provisions of and directives issued under the Act
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs, the provision of and directives issued under the Act have
been followed.
3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
3.1 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain investments which
have been disclosed in the accounting policies below.
. 3.2 These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is also the Company’s functional currency.
,f;_t}rﬂ" } R T —
- 8 = P
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR
94 | Thal Limited Annual Report 2019 | 95




4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Company’s unconsolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at
the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, estimates and assumptions which
are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements:

Notes
determining the residual values, useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment and investment property 52,54,7&9
- determining the residual values, useful lives and impairment of intangibles assets 53&8
- impairment of financial and non-financial assets 55&5.27
- net realizable value estimation 5.6,5.7,14 & 15

- Allowance for expected credit loss
- provision for tax and deferred tax

5.8,56.2716 & 19
512,13,21 & 36

- provision and warranty obligation 5.23&26.3
- contingencies 519&28
- compensated absences 5.22 & 26

5.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

51 New / Revised Standards, Interpretations and Amendments
The Company has adopted the following accounting standards, the amendments and interpretations of IFRSs which became effective for
the current year:

IFRS 2 Share based Payments: Classification and Measurement of Share Based Payments Transactions (Amendments)
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (Amendments)
IFRS9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments)

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

Improvements to IFRSs Issued by IASB in December 2016
IAS 28 — Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures: Clarification that measuring investees at fair value through profit or loss in an
investment-by-investment choice.

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and improvements to accounting standards did not have any material effect on these
unconsolidated financial statements except for IFRS 15 and IFRS 9. The impact of adoption of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 are described below:

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and related Interpretations and it applies to all revenue arising from
contracts with customers, unless those contracts are in the scope of other standards. The new standard establishes a five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration

to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

The standard requires entities to exercise judgment, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying
each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining
a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.

The Company generates its revenue from sale of goods. The Company’s contracts with customers for the sale of goods generally include
one performance obligation (delivery of goods) and generally do not provide volume rebate to customers. The Company therefore, recognizes
revenue from sale of goods at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.
This revenue recognition methodology is in line with the requirements of IFRS-15, therefore, the adoption of new standard has not resulted
in any change in the revenue recognition policy of the Company.
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IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
The Company has applied the IFRS 9 using the modified retrospective approach. On adoption of IFRS 9, the Company reassessed the
classification of its investment portfolio and concluded as under.

(a) investment in equity instruments previously classified as available for sale (AFS), are now measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

(b) investment in term deposit receipts continue to be measured at amortised cost as they are held with the objectives to hold and collect
all contractual cashflows;

(c)investment in mutual funds continue to be classified under the category fair value through profit or loss as allowed under IFRS 9; and

(d) financial assets other than those mentioned in point (a),(b) & (c), previously classified as loans and receivable are now measured at
amortised cost.

Hence, the classification and measurement of financial assets is not impacted by the adoption of IFRS 9.

Further, the adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Company's accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing
the incurred losses model approach with a forward looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach.

Considering the nature of the financial assets, the Comapny has applied the standard's simplified approach and has calculated ECL based
on life time ECL. However, it has not resulted in any additional material impact on these unconsolidated financial statements.

The financial asset subject to credit risk such as trade and other receivables are recoverable within the short period of time. Further, bank
balances and other deposits accounts are held with A1+, A-1+ and A1 rated institutions. Accordingly the ECL impact on such assets is
not material to these unconsolidated financial statements.

The Company has not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss. There are no changes in classification and
measurement for the Company's financial liabilities.

The new accounting policy in respective of financial instrument and impairment of financial assets is stated in note 5.27 to these unconsolidated
financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortisation and impairment loss, if any, except for freehold land and capital
work-in-progress which are stated at cost.

Depreciation / amortisation is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method except for leasehold land
which is amortised in equal installments over the lease period and computer equipment and jigs and fixtures which are depreciated /
amortised on straight line method at the rates specified in note 7 to these unconsolidated financial statements. Depreciation / amortisation on
additions is charged from the month asset is available for use and in case of deletion, up to the month preceding the month of disposal.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are
capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

An item of operating fixed assets and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected fromits use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of operating fixed assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
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5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

Capital work-in-progress
All expenditures connected to the specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress.
These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.

Intangibles

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any.

Costs in relation to intangible assets are only capitalized when it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to that asset will flow
to the Company and the same is amortized applying the straight line method at the rates stated in note 8 to these unconsolidated financial
statements.

Investment property
Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Depreciation is charged to the statement
of profit or loss on reducing balance method at the rate specified in note 9 to these unconsolidated financial statements.

Impairment of Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each statement of financial position date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. Animpairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the assets’ carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Impairment losses are recognized
in the statement of profit or loss.

Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued at lower of cost, determined using weighted average method, and Net Realisable Value (NRV), less provision for obselete
items (if any). ltems in transit are valued at cost comprising purchase price, freight value and other charges incurred thereon upto the
reporting date. Provision is made for items which are obsolete and slow moving and is determined based on management estimate
regarding their future usability.

Stock-in-trade
Stock-in-trade, except goods-in-transit, is stated at the lower of cost or Net Realisable Value determined as follows:

Raw and packing materials
Purchase cost on weighted average basis

Work-in-process
Cost of materials, labour cost and appropriate production overheads

Finished goods
Cost of materials, labour cost and appropriate production overheads

Goods-in-transit are valued at cost comprising purchase price, freight value and other charges incurred thereon upto the reporting date.

NRV signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete items as and when identified.

Trade debts and other receivables

These are recognized and carried at original invoice amount being the fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Provision
is made on the basis of lifetime ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the trade debts and other receivables.
Bad debts are written off when considered irrecoverable.

Exchange gains or losses arising in respect of trade debts and other receivables in foreign currency are added to their respective carrying
amounts.

Loans, advances, deposits and short term prepayments
These are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. Subsequent to initial recognition, assessment is
made at each statement of financial position date to determine whether there is an indication that a financial asset or group of assets may
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beimpaired. If such indication exists, the estimated recoverable amount of that asset or group of assets is determined and any impairment
loss is recognised for the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying value.

ljarah rentals
ljarah payments for assets under ljarah (lease) agreements are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight line
basis over the ljarah term.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, bank balances and short-term investments
with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition net of short-term borrowings. The cash and cash equivalents are readily
convertible to known amount of cash and are therefore subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Taxation

(@) Current

The charge for current taxation in respect of certain income streams of the Company is based on Final Tax Regime at the applicable tax
rates and remaining income streams at current rate of taxation under the normal tax regime after taking into account tax credits and rebates
available, if any,1% of turnover or 17% alternate corporate tax, whichever is higher. The Company had also availed Group tax relief under
the provisions of Section 59AA and 59B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 as explained in note 21 to these unconsolidated financial
statements.

(b) Deferred
Deferred tax is provided using the statement of financial position liability method, on all temporary differences at the statement of financial
position date between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each statement of financial position date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Unclaimed dividend
Dividend declared and remain unpaid from the date it is due and payable.

Unpaid dividend
Dividend declared and remain unpaid for the period of 3 years from the date it is due and payable.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payable are carried at amortised cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for
goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.
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5.20

5.21

5.22

5.23

5.24

Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective
liabilities.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to
the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when

Thereis a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

There is a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measure with sufficient reliability.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of assets and incurred during the period in connection
with the activities necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are capitalised as a part of the cost of related asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Staff retirement benefits
Defined contribution plan

Provident fund

The Company operates a recognised provident fund for its permanent employees. Equal monthly contributions are made to the fund by
the Company and the employees in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The Company has no further obligation once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions made by the Company are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

Retirement benefit fund
The Company operates an approved funded scheme for retirement benefits for all employees on the basis of defined contribution made
by the Company on attaining the retirement age with a minimum qualifying period of ten years which is managed by a Trust.

Compensated absences
Accrual is made for employees’ compensated absences on the basis of accumulated leaves and the last drawn pay. No actuarial valuation
of compensated absences is carried out as the management considers that the financial impact is not material.

Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised in the statement of financial position where the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past event,it is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect current
best estimate.

Warranty obligations

The Company recognizes the estimated liability to repair or replace products under warranty at the statement of financial position date.
These are recognised when the product is sold or service provided to the customer. Initial recognition is based on historical experience.
The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is reviewed annually and adjusted, if required.

Revenue recognition
During the year, the Company has adopted IFRS 15 which became applicable on July 01, 2018. This has resulted in change in accounting
policies of the Company for revenue recognition. The changes are discussed in note 5.1 to these unconsolidated financial statements.
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5.25

5.26

5.27

Revenue is recognised at amounts that reflect the consideration that the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and is recognised when
control of goods have passed to the customer which coincide with the dispatch of goods to the customers. The normal credit period
ranges between 30 to 75 days.

Other income
Otherincome is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and amount can be measured
reliably. Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised on the following basis:

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Interest on Term Deposit Receipts is recognised on constant rate of return to maturity.

Interest on bank deposits are recognised on accrual basis.

Rental income arising from investment property is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Gain on disposal is recognised at the time of disposal of operating fixed assets.

Scrap sales are recognised on an accrual basis.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined. Exchange gains or losses are included in statement of profit or loss of the current period.

Financial instruments
Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Under IFRS 9 Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition , as subsequently measured at following:

(@) atamortised cost
(b)  at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); and
(c) atfairvalue through profit or loss (FVTPL).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the
business model for managing them.

(@)

(b)

At amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

At fair value through other comprehensive income

A debt instrument is measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling; and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Oninitial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent

changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-byinvestment basis. The company has irrevocably
elected to carry its quoted investments in equity instruments under this category.
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(c) At fair value through profit and loss
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be
measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that is initially measured at the transaction

price) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

Susbequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into following categories;
. Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition
(equity instruments); and
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCl is recycled
to profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses (equity instruments)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss.
Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when
the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded
in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.
removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:
The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model. The new impairment model applies to financial
assets measured at amortised cost, contract assets and debt investments at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Company.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Loss allowances
for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the respective asset.

The Company uses the standard’s simplified approach and calculates ECL based on life time ECL on its financial assets. The Company
has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the financial assets and the economic environment.

i)  Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Allfinancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss. Financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if
the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost
After initial recognition, borrowings and payables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amorized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in profit or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of borrowings in foreign currency are
added to the carrying amount of the borrowing.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
anew liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

iiiy  Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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5.28 Research and development expenditure
Research expenditure is recognised as an expense when incurred. Costs incurred on development projects are recognised as intangible
assets to the extent that such expenditure is expected to generate future economic benefits. Other development expenditure is recognised
as an expense when incurred.

5.29 Dividends and appropriation to reserves
The Company recognises a liability for dividend to equity holder when it is authorized as per corporate laws in Pakistan. The transfer of
reserves within the equity are recognized when these are approved as per the applicable laws.

6. STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be
effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation:

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or after)
Standard or Interpretation

IFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Amendments) 01 January 2020
IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Previously held interests in a joint operation 01 January 2019
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4

Insurance Contracts (Amendments) 01 July 2019
IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments) 01 January 2019
IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements and IAS 28 Investment in Associates and

Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment) Not yet finalised
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Previously held interests in a joint operation 01 January 2019
IFRS 16 Leases 01 January 2019
IAS 1/1AS 8 Definition of Material (Amendments) 01 January 2020
IAS 12 Income Taxes: Income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments

classified as equity 01 January 2019
IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments) 01 January 2019
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation 01 January 2019
IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments) 01 January 2019
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 01 January 2019

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any materialimpact on the Company's unconsolidated financial statements
in the period of initial application except for IFRS 16 - 'Leases'. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on the
unconsolidated financial statements of the Company.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards have also been issued by the IASB
in December 2017. Such improvements are generally effective for annual reporting period beginning on or after January 01, 2019. The
Company expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any material impact on the Company's unconsolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application.

The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual Framework)in March 2018 which is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020 for preparers of unconsolidated financial statements who develop
accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework. The revised Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts
override those in any standard or any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist IASB in developing
standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to
understand and interpret the standards.

Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in
Pakistan.
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IASB effective date
(annual periods

beginning
Standard or Interpretation on or after)
IFRS 1 First time adoption of IFRSs January 01, 2004
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 01, 2016
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2021

The Company expects that above new standards will not have any material impact on the Company's unconsolidated financial statements
in the period of initial application.

Note 2019 2018
-—--—-(Rupees in ‘000’)--------
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 74 2,047,233 1,218,787
Capital work-in-progress 7.5 140,547 191,425
2,187,780 1,410,212
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7.3  The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Note
Cost of sales 30
Distribution and selling expenses 31
Administrative expenses 32

2019 2018
———————— (Rupees in ‘000’)--------
250,902 179,633

2,032 1,959
7,434 10,049
260,368 191,641

7.4 There were no disposals of operating fixed assets having written down value in excess of Rs. 5 million.

7.5 Capital Work-In-Progress

Note
Civil Works
Plant and machinery
Office and mills equipment
Furniture and fittings
Vehicles
Computer equipment
Jigs and fixtures
7.6 Details of the Company's immovable fixed assets
S.No. Locations
1 Thal Limited (Jute Division), D.G. Khan Road, Muzaffargarh, Punjab
2 Plot #448 & 449 Sundar Industrial Estate Raiwin Road, Lahore, Punjab.
3 Plot 1, 2, 25 & 26 Sector 22 Korangi Industral Area Karachi, Sindh.
4 DSU-14 sector Il Downstream Industrail estate Bin Qasim, Karachi, Sindh.
5 Shop number 6, Clifton Pride, G -3/18, Clifton, Karachi, Sindh.
6 Plot # 35, 36, 37, 38, 39, 39A, 40, 40A, 41, 42, 69, 69A, 70 and 71,
Zila Moza Pathra, Hub, Balochistan
7 Plot C-49-58, Sector C, Hub Industrial Area. Hub, Balochistan
8 Plot # 38, Road # 3, Industrial Estate, Gadoon Amazai, Swabi, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa.
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2019 2018
———————— (Rupees in ‘000’)--------
41,258 124,661
84,362 18,998
3,391 1,349
1,379 49
- 3,190
7,082 5,881
3,075 37,297
140,547 191,425
Building

Land Area Covered Area
(square yards) (square feet)

862 647
8 39

51 229
24 32
0.50 0.50
92 211

6 12

19 40

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

8.

WRITTEN
DOWN
VALUE

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION

COST

As at June As at June

On

(Note 7.1.2) disposals

As at July Charge for Transfers

01,2018

As at June

Transfers

01,2018 Additions (Note 7.1.2) Disposals

As at July

30,2019 30, 2019

the year

Rate

30, 2019

weeeeee———(Rupees in ‘000")

Note

(Rupees in ‘000°)

%

2,092

8,789

218

7,557 1,014

20

10,881

1,500 218

9,163

Softwares
Licenses

18,433
70,220

17,476

(43)

9,449 8,070

35,909
71,411

(265)

13,237
71,411

22,937

- Software
- Product

1,191

1,191

20

8.2

90,745

27,456

10,275 218 (43)

17,006

86,148 218 (265) 118,201

32,100

2019

9,788

10,047

6,959

10,047

19,835

12,265

19,835

2018




8.1

8.2

91

9.2

The amortisation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Note 2019 2018
———————— (Rupees in ‘000’)--------
Cost of sales 30 5,223 1,834
Distribution and selling expenses 31 825 18
Administrative expenses 32 4727 5,107
10,275 6,959

Represents product licenses and patent rights acquired from Yazaki Corporation and Denso Corporation
during the year for a period of 5 years.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
As atJune  Asat July Charge for  As atJune Written down Depreciation
30, 2019 01,2018 the year 30, 2019 value as at Rate %
(Note 32) June 30, 2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Freehold land 891 - - - 891 -
Building on freehold land 694 583 7 590 104 5
2019 1,585 583 7 590 995
2018 1,585 576 7 583 1,002

Investment property comprises of godown held at Multan. The forced sales value of the property determined on the basis of a valuation
carried out by an independent professional valuer, as at June 30, 2019 amounts to Rs. 98.481 million (2018: Rs. 93.371 million). The
valuation was arrived on the basis of market intelligence, indexation of the original cost, year of construction and present physical condition
and location. The rental income from investment property is disclosed in Note 35 to these unconsolidated financial statements.

Details of the Company's immovable investment property

Location Building
Land Covered
Area Area
(square yards) (square feet)
(in ’000)

Industrial Property bearing khewat number 861, 862, 890, 895, 905,
khatooni number 1086,1087,1116, 1121,1133, Mouza Taraf Ravi, Multan, Punjab. 5 20
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10.

1041

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

Note 2019 2018 2019 2018

Investments in related parties Holding % --—--—---(Rupees in ‘000’)--------

Subsidiaries, unquoted — at cost

Noble Computer Services (Private) Limited 100 100 1,086 1,086
Pakistan Industrial Aids (Private) Limited 100 100 10,000 10,000
Habib METRO Pakistan (Private) Limited (HMPL) 60 60 2,789,223 2,789,223
A-One Enterprises (Private) Limited (A-One) 100 100 61,395 61,395
Thal Power (Private) Limited 100 100 100 100
Thal Electrical (Private) Limited 100 100 100 -
Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private) Limited 515 59 379,500 104,500
Advance against issuance of Shares of
Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private) Limited - 275,000
Makro-Habib Pakistan Limited (MHPL) 100 100 223,885 223,885
Less: Provision for impairment (2283,885) (223,885)
3,241,404 3,241,304
Associates — at cost 101
Quoted
Indus Motor Company Limited 6.22 6.22 48,900 48,900
Habib Insurance Company Limited 4.63 4.63 561 561
Agriauto Industries Limited 7.35 7.35 9,473 9,473
Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Limited 1.30 1.30 21,314 21,314
80,248 80,248
Unquoted
Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company
Limited (SECMQ) 10.2 11.9% 11.9% 1,960,619 -
Sub-Total 2,040,867 80,248
Other investments
Quoted - At fair value through OCI
Habib Sugar Mills Limited 55,447 75,610
GlaxoSmithKline (Pakistan) Limited 160 278
GlaxoSmithKline Healthcare (Pakistan) Limited 97 203
Dynea Pakistan Limited 57,181 103,839
Allied Bank Limited 19,095 18,755
Habib Bank Limited 7,376 10,839
TPL Properties Limited 9,923 9,300
149,279 218,824
Un- Quoted - At cost
Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company
Limited (SECMQ) 10.2 11.9% 11.9% - 1,398,011
TOTAL 5,431,550 4,938,387

Although the Company has less than 20% equity interest in all of its associates, the management believes that
significant influence over these associates exists by virtue of the Company’s representation on the Board of
Directors of the respective companies.
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10.2 Represents investment in an associate established for the construction of coal mine. Atlhough the Company has less than 20% equity Note 2019 2018

interestin the associate, the management believes that it has significant influence due to the contractual agreement with the shareholders. | e (Rupees in ‘000)-—-—---
The Company undertook to invest USD 24.3 million in PKR equivalent and upto the statement of financial position date it has invested Rs. 15. STOCK-IN-TRADE
1,960.619 million acquiring 132,295,445 ordinary shares having face value of Rs. 10 each, at a price of Rs. 14.82 per share. The balance Raw material
commitment of the investment is USD 6.81 million. - In hand 15.1 4.260,842 2 586,886
. - In transit 496,245 639,192
11. LONG-TERM LOANS - considered good 4.757.087 3.206.078
Note 2019 2018 Work-in-process 246,731 226,833
———————— (Rupees in ‘000)-------- Finished goods 631,487 501,003
Employee - secured 15.2 5,635,305 3,953,914
Interest free 111 7,992 11,988
Current portion 17 (3,996) (3,996) 151 Raw materials amounting to Rs. 6.422 million (2018: Rs. 8.342 million) are held with the sub-contractors.
3,996 7,992
Wholly owned subsidiaries - unsecured 15.2 Includes items amounting to Rs. 183.123 million (2018: Rs. 38.284 million) carried at net realisable value. [Cost Rs. 276.755 million (2018:
Thal Power (Private) Limited 11.2&11.3 857,286 780,436 Rs. 93.422 million)].
861,282 788,428 Note 2019 2018
———————— (Rupees in ‘000)--—-—----
111 The loan is secured against mortgage of property. The maximum aggregate amount due from employee at the end of any month during 16. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured
the year was Rs. 11.655 million (2018: Rs. 14.652 million). During the year amount of Rs. 3.996 million was repaid to the Company. Considered good 16.1&16.2 2,399,686 1,536,012
Allowance for expected credit losses 16.3 (51,740) (16,284)
11.2  The maximum aggregate amount due from Thal (Power) Private Limited at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 857.286 million 2,347,946 1519,728
(2018: Rs. 780.436 million). During the year, an amount of Rs. 76.850 million was disbursed to Thal Power (Private) Limited.
11.3  Represents interest free loan given for purchase of shares of ThalNova Power Thar (Private) Limited (ThalNova). The loan is likely to be 161 This includes amount d‘ue. from the following associates / related parties:
converted into Share Capital based on the progress achieved by ThalNova for its underlying project. Indus l\l/lot.or Company L|m|teq ) 660,235 508,551
Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited 17,252 23,076
677,487 531,627
2019 2018
"""" (Rupees in ‘000)--—---- 16.2 The maximum aggregate amount due from the related parties at the end of any month during the year outstanding was
12. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS Rs. 878.206 million (2018: Rs. 746.755 million).
Secu rity deposits 9,503 8,068 Note 2019 2018
Utilities 4,867 4,837 | (Rupees in ‘000)-———
Others 491 491 16.3 Movement - Allowances for expected credit losses
14,861 13,396 Balance at the beginning of the year 16,284 13,941
) ) Charge for the year 31 35,456 2,787
12.1 These deposits are interest free. Bad debts written off during the year _ (444)
Balance at the end of the year 51,740 16,284
13. DEFERRED TAX ASSET
Deferred tax asset arising in respect of provisions 332,664 293,002
Deferred tax liability arising due to accelerated tax depreciation allowance (167,470) (101,851)
165,194 191,151
14. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores
In hand 27,766 32,477
In transit - 4,030
27,766 36,507
Spares in hand 96,739 94,851
Loose tools 205 214
124,710 131,572
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Note 2019 2018 Note 2019 2018
———————— (Rupees in ‘000)------- -——-——-(Rupees in ‘000)-------
17.  LOANS AND ADVANCES 19. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Loans Duty drawback 2,971 2,106
Considered good - secured Insurance claims - 7
Employees - interest free 171 & 17.2 = 20,000 Receivable from A-One Enterprises (Private) Limited under group taxation 21 4,089 4,625
Current portion of long term loans 11 &17.2 3,996 3,996 Others 191 64,108 28,873
3,996 23,996 71,168 35,611
Considered doubtful - unsecured
Makro-Habib Pakistan Limited (MHPL) 17.3 264,552 264,552 191  This includes receivable from the following related parties which are neither past due nor impaired:
Provision for doubtful loan (264,552) (264,552)
= = Indus Motor Company Limited 21 -
3,996 23,996 Agriautos Industries Limited 14 4
Advances - considered good - unsecured Habib Metro Pakistan Private Limited 287 2,568
Suppliers 17,106 43,240 Noble Computer Services (Private) Limited = 4,550
Employees 615 5,460 Thal Boshuko Pakistan (Private) Limited 405 583
Others 143 - 727 7,705
17.4 17,864 48,700
21,860 72,696 19.2 The maximum aggregate amount due from related parties at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 5.860 million (2018: Rs. 11.594
million).
171  Theloan is secured against mortgage of property. The maximum aggregate amount due from employees at the end of any month during
the year was Rs. 12 million (2018: Rs. 20 million). 20. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
Note 2019 2018
17.2 The maximum aggregate amount due from employees at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 3.996 million (2018: Rs. 3.996 | (Rupees in ‘000)--------
million). During the year an amount of Rs. 20 million was repaid to the Company. At amortised cost
) ) . Term deposit receipts 201 1,045,699 346,737
17.3 The maxmlu.m aggregate amount due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 264.552 million (2018: Rs. Accrued interest 3,395 1,217
282.756 million). 1,049,094 347.954
17.4 These advances are interest free. Treasury ,blHS 202 i Al
Accrued interest - 3,683
Note 2019 2018 ) 299,445
"""" (Rupees in ‘000)-———- At fair value through statement of profit or loss
18. TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS Atlas Money Market Fund 101,310 54,897
Trade deposits UBL Liquidity Plus Fund 105,051 805,388
Tender / performance guarantee 283,690 78,710 NAFA Money Market Fund 510,971 822,424
Margin against letter of credit 255,525 2,227 NAFA Government Securities Liquid Fund - 301,426
Deposit against custom duty 7,182 7,182 ALFALAH Money Market Fund 204,092 177,873
Container deposits 6,977 24,065 MCB Cash Optimizer Fund 205,648 479,201
181 293,374 112,184 HBL Cash Fund 411,758 720,152
Short-term prepayments ABL Cash Fund 355,374 838,478
Insurance 18.2 11,665 14,023 1,894,204 4199,839
Others 11,584 15,111 2,943,298 4,847,238
23,249 29,134
316,623 141,318
18.1 These deposits are interest free.
18.2 This includes prepayments amounting to Rs. 9.866 million (2018: 11.604 million) made to Habib Insurance Company Limited,
a related party.
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20.1 These include deposits amounting to Rs. Nil (2018: Rs. 1.081 million) with Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited, a related party Note 2019 2018

and carry interest at the rate of: Nil (2018: 4.35% to 6.20%) per annum. Included in the above investment, Rs. 345.699 million | e (Rupees in ‘000)--------
(2018: Rs. 346.737 million) is under lien against a letter of guarantee issued by the banks on behalf of the Company. These 220. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
balances carry maturity of up to three months. Cash in hand 451 2162
20.2 These carry interest at the rate of Nil (2018: 6.22% to 6.24%) per annum. Bank balances
Note 2019 2018 Current accounts 221 158,076 198,062
———————— (Rupees in ‘000)-------- Deposit accounts 22.2 452,982 501,059
21. INCOME TAX - net 611,058 699,121
Group Tax Relief adjustments 21.1 632,681 593,466 611,509 701,283
Group Taxation adjustments 21.2 (15,645) 512
Income tax provision less tax payments — net 21.3 (523,118) (5631,150) 22.1 These include accounts maintained with Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited, a related party amounting to Rs. 70.062 million
93,918 62,828 (2018: Rs. 50.887 million).
211 In terms of the provisions of Section 59B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance), a subsidiary company may 22.2 These include accounts maintained with Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited, a related party amounting to Rs. 204.229 million
surrender its tax losses in favour of its holding company for set off against the income of its holding Company subject to certain (2018: Rs. 323.154 million) and carry markup ranging from 5% to 10.75% (2018: 4.25% to 5.75%) per annum.

conditions as prescribed under the Ordinance.
23. SHARE CAPITAL
Accordingly, the Company adjusted its tax liabilities for the tax years 2008 to 2010 by acquiring the losses of its subsidiary

company and consequently an aggregate sum of Rs. 593.466 million equivalent to the tax value of the losses acquired has 23.1 Authorized Capital

been paid to the subsidiary company. The Company has authorised capital of 200 million ordinary shares of Rs. 5/- each amounting to Rs. 1,000 million.

The original assessments of the Company for the tax years 2008 to 2010 were amended under Section 122(5A) of the Ordinance 23.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

by the tax authorities by disallowing Group Relief claimed by the Company under Section 59B of the Ordinance aggregating

to Rs. 593.466 million. The Company preferred appeals against the said amended assessments before the Commissioner 2019 2018 2019 2018

Inland Revenue (Appeals) who vide his orders dated 10th June 2011 and 11th July 2011 has held that the Company is entitled Number of ordinary e (Rupees in ‘000)------

to Group Relief under Section 59B of the Ordinance. However, the tax department filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal shares of Rs. 5/- each

Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeal) (CIR) Order. The ATIR has passed an order in favour

of the Company for the above tax years; the Tax department filed reference application / appeal against the order of ATIR 5,149,850 5,149,850 Fully paid in cash 25,750 25,750

before the High Court of Sindh and with the Chairman ATIR which are under the process of hearings. 64,640,390 64,640,390 Issued as fully paid bonus shares 323,202 323,202
Shares issued under the Scheme of

In addition to the above, the Company has decided to acquire tax losses incurred by Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private) Limited 11,239,669 11,239,669 Arrangement for Amalgamation 56,198 56,198

(TBPK) during the year amounting to Rs. 39.215 million for set off against its tax liability. The amount of tax losses acquired 81,029,909 81,029,909 405,150 405,150

are yet to be paid to the subsidiary.
28.3 As at June 30, 2019, 7,026,267 (2018: 7,013,869) ordinary shares are held by related parties.

21.2 Interms of the provision of Section 59AA of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance), the Company, MHPL and A-One

have irrevocably opted to be taxed as one fiscal unit with effect from tax year 2017. Accordingly, the tax loss of MHPL for the 23.4 Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to the shareholding.

tax year 2019 has been adjusted against the taxable income of the Company which resulted in a reduction of tax liability of 2019 2018

Rs. 2.966 million (2018: Rs. 5.653 million) for the current year. Moreover, the tax income transferred by A-One under group | (Rupees in ‘000)———
taxation opted by the Company amounted to Rs. 18.614 million (2018: Rs. 5.141 million). 24. RESERVES

Capital reserves

21.3 Includes adjustment of tax challans acquired from MHPL and A-One amounting to Rs. 0.110 million (2018: Rs. 0.291 million) Reserve on merger of former Pakistan Jute and Synthetics Limited

and Rs. 14.525 million (2018: Rs.2.651 million) respectively.

and former Thal Jute Mills Limited 183,240 13,240
Reserve on merger of former Pakistan Paper Sack
Corporation Limited and former Khyber Papers (Private) Limited 42,464 42,464
55,704 55,704
Revenue reserves
General reserve 15,123,499 13,531,499
Unappropriated profit 2,952,475 2,281,141

18,075,974 15,812,640

Gain on revaluation of investments held at fair value through OCI 94,631 164,176
18,226,309 16,032,520
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25.
251

26.

261

26.2

26.3

26.4

26.5

118 |

LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

Includes security deposits from Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited, an associate, amounting to Rs. 0.708 million (2018: Rs.

Nil) in respect of godown space provided.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors

Accrued liabilities

Custom duty payable

Payable to TBPK against group taxation
Payable to MHPL against group taxation
Salaries payable

Warranty obligations

Advances from customers (Contract liabilities)
Initial technical fee payable

Royalty payable

Security deposits

Payable to retirement benefit fund
Advance against sale of land

Other liabilities

This includes amounts due to the following related parties:

Pakistan Industrial Aids (Private) Limited

Habib Insurance Company Limited

Indus Motor Company Limited

Noble Computer Services (Private) Limited

Metro Habib Cash and Carry Pakistan (Private) Limited

This includes amounts due to the following related parties:

Noble Computer Services (Private) Limited
Habib Insurance Company Limited

Warranty obligations

Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge for the year

Claims paid during the year
Balance at end of the year

Royalty payable

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Paid during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Other liabilities

Tax deducted at source

Employees Old-Age Benefits Institution (EOBI)
Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Workers' Welfare Fund

Others

Thal Limited

Note 2019

2018

26.1 655,368 633,970
26.2 873,708 1,043,210
75,644 51,176
211 39,215 -
21 754 1,328
9,506 5,627
26.3 487,116 395,825
8,084 20,654
8.2 71,411 -
26.4 104,104 87,393
1,395 1,745
7,901 7117
- 3,000
26.5 149,395 128,103
2,483,601 2,379,148
- 109
846 4,749
3,009 1,538
3,438 90
2,074 807
9,367 7,293
188
108 4,370
296 4,370
395,825 320,615
31 106,113 89,396
(14,822) (14,186)
487,116 395,825
87,393 150,102
30 179,910 157,910
(163,199) (220,619)
104,104 87,393
1,202 4,896
62,650 47,875
26.6 6,332 1,255
64,561 56,059
14,650 18,018
149,395 128,103

26.6 Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)
Payable / (receivable from) to WPPF at the beginning of the year
Interest on funds utilised in the Company's business
Allocation for the current year

Paid during the year
Payable to WPPF at the end of the year

27.  SHORT TERM RUNNING FINANCE - secured

Note 2019

2018

1,255 (382)

35 224 -
33 231,332 203,255
232,811 202,873

(226,479) (201,618)

6,332 1,255

Represents utilized portion of available limits of the running finance facilities amounting to Rs. 2,498 million (2018: Rs. 2,498
million). The facilities carry mark-up at rates ranging from one month to three months’ KIBOR plus spreads of 0.5% to 0.75%
(2018: 0.5% to 0.75%) per annum. The facilities are secured by way of joint pari passu charge against hypothecation of the
Company’s stock-in-trade and trade debts. These facilities have maturity till 31 October 2021.

28. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

28.1 Contingencies

28.1.1There were no contingencies other than the tax contingency which is disclosed in note 21.1 to these unconsolidated

financial statements.

28.2 Commitments

28.2.1Post dated cheques have been issued to Collector of Custom in respect of
differential duty between commercial and concessional rate of duty, duty and

tax remission on exports and safe transport requirement under various SRO's.

28.2.2 Letters of credit outstanding for raw material and spares

28.2.3Letter of guarantees issued by bank on behalf of the Company
in respect of financial committments of the Company.

28.2.4Commitments in respect of capital expenditure
28.2.5Commitments for rentals under ljarah (lease) agreements

Within one year
After one year but not later than five years

2019

2018

141,811 24,545
616,156 1,708,273
1,402,908 1,424,711
1,049,042 7,515
21,642 16,084
20,344 13,103
41,986 29,187

Represent ljarah (lease) agreement entered into with a Modaraba in respect of vehicles. Total ljarah payments due under the
agreements are Rs. 41.986 million and are payable in monthly installments latest by June, 2022. These commitments are

secured by on-demand promissory notes of Rs. 81.795 million.

28.2.6 Commitment in respect of investment is disclosed in note 10.3 to these unconsolidated financial statements.
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29. REVENUE - net

Export sales
Local sales

Less:
Sales tax
Sales discount

Add:
Duty drawback

29.1 Represents sales made to the following geographical regions:

Australia
Chile

Egypt
Estonia

[taly

Jordan
Kuwait

Saudi Arabia
Spain

Turkey
United Arab Emirates
Afghanistan
Bangladesh
Malaysia
Oman
Switzerland
Turkmenistan
Others

Note 2019

2018

291 &29.2 486,907 436,245

29.3 25,683,127 21,740,788

26,070,034 22,177,033

3,698,765 2,888,380

1,116 2,602

3,699,881 2,890,982

4,211 6,908

22,374,364 19,292,959

6,649 26,576
3,797 =

180,047 11,922

1,090 1,162

49,673 66,492

8,778 =

1,468 2,998

6,581 =

3,051 762

37,998 9,239

205,386 135,329

= 5,967

= 2,608

= 5,449

= 2,044

= 5,695

= 41,069

3,225 133,775

507,743 451,077

29.2 Export sales are stated net of export related freight and other expenses of Rs. 20.836 million (2018: Rs. 14.832 million).

29.3 Local sales are stated net of freight and other expenses of Rs. 110.063 million (2018: Rs. 100.618 million).

120 | Thal Limited

30.

30.1

30.2

COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed
Salaries, wages and benefits
Stores and spares consumed
Repairs and maintenance
Power and fuel

Rent, rates and taxes
Vehicle running and maintenance
Insurance

Communication

Travelling and conveyance
Entertainment

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional
Computer accessories
Royalty

Depreciation / amortisation
Amortisation

Research and development
ljarah rentals

Technical Assistance fee
Others

Work-in-process
Opening
Closing

Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods

Opening

Closing

Raw material consumed
Opening stock
Purchases

Closing stock

Royalty

Party Name Registered Address

Denso Corporation

Furukawa Automotive
Systems

448-8661 1-1,

ShowaCho, Kariya-city,

Aichi-Pref., Japan

1000, Amago, Koura,
Inukami, Shiga Pref,
522-0242, Japan

Note

3041

30.2

7.3
8.1

Relationship with Company
or its directors

None

None

2019

2018

15,779,709 13,294,331
1,513,398 1,405,964
225,203 168,263
102,923 128,499
216,418 267,232
6,874 7,047
14,343 11,902
11,918 8,998
6,366 6,246
14,158 11,504
634 697

8,576 7,711
3,176 14,677
7,764 6,599
179,910 157,910
250,902 179,633
5,223 1,834
8,281 6,770
8,176 9,365
1,286 114
2,263 3,212
18,367,502 15,698,508
226,833 156,863
(246,731) (226,833)
(19,898) (69,970)
18,347,604 15,628,538
501,003 504,142
(631,487) (501,003)
(130,484) 3,139
18,217,120 15,631,677
2,586,886 1,868,669
17,453,665 14,012,548
(4,260,842)  (2,586,886)
15,779,709 13,294,331
96,037 82,991
83,873 74,919
179,910 157,910
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Note 2019 2018 Note 2019 2018
———————— (Rupees in ‘000)--—--—-—-- -—----(Rupees in ‘000)--------
31. DISTRIBUTION AND SELLING EXPENSES 321 Auditors' remuneration
Salaries and benefits 90,116 74194 Audit fee 2,590 2,345
Vehicle running expense 4,951 3,859 Half-yearly review 357 324
Utilities 1,577 1,676 Taxation services 273 1197
Insurance 3,202 1,927 Other certification 1,148 607
Rent, rates and taxes 8,484 12,241 Out of pocket expenses 604 485
Communication 2,157 2,304 ) ) e e
Advertisement and publicity 11,231 11,170 32.2 Char.lty and dona.tlonsl ) ) ) ) )
Travelling and conveyance 8.556 5616 Charity and donations include the following donees in whom directors or their spouses are interested:
Enltelrtalnment ) ¢ 10 Name of donee Address of donee Name of directors/spouse
Printing and stationery 558 391
Legal and professional 20 251 Mohamedali Habib  2nd Floor, House of Habib, Mr. Rafiq M. Habib - Trustee
Computer accessories 822 509 Welfare Trust 3-Jinnah Co-operative Housing Mr. Ali S. Habib - Trustee
Research and development 94 190 Society, Block 7/8,
Depreciation 7.3 2,032 1,959 Sharae Faisal, Karachi. 14,930 12,820
Amortisation 8.1 26 18
Provision for expected credit loss 16.3 35,456 2,787 Habib Education Trust 4th floor, United Bank building, Mr. Ali S. Habib - Trustee
Repairs and maintenance 2,618 1,691 I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi. ~ Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib - Trustee 10,000 12,536
Export expenses 6,008 5,216
Allowance for warranty claims 26.3 106,113 89,396 Habib University 147, Block 7&8, Banglore Mr. Rafig M. Habib - Trustee
ljarah rentals 3,017 2,734 Foundation Cooperative Housing Society, Mr. Ali S. Habib - Trustee
Others 597 720 Tipu Sultan Road, Karachi. Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib - Trustee 7,500 5,000
288,353 219,219
Ghulaman-e-Abbas Ghulaman-e-Abbas School, Mr. Rafig M. Habib - Trustee 5,000 -
32. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES School Bab-e-Ali, Al-alamdar Building, ~ Mr. Ali S. Habib - Trustee
Salaries and benefits 420,916 465,277 Near Lyari Expressway,
Vehicle running expense 14,385 12,955 Mauripur Road, Karachi
Printing and stationery 3,838 4,964 o ) ) ) )
Rent, rates and taxes 19,746 25,322 Hussaini Heamotology 43-Rehmat Manzn, Bhurlgarl Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib - Trustee 96 96
Utilities 6.517 7209 & Oncology Trust Road, Numaish, Karachi.
nsurance 2019 o Anjuman -e- Behbood- ABSA School 26-C National  Mrs. Rafig M. Habib - 82 34
Entertainment 1,226 1,351 Samat -e- Itefal Highway, Korangi Road, Karachi. Vice President
Subscription 1,334 1,842
Communication 4,192 4,579
Advertisement and publicity 515 1,241 32.3 Charity and donations include the following donees to whom donations exceed 10% of total donation or 1 million whichever
Repairs and maintenance 7,610 26,322 is higher other than already disclosed note 32.2 to these unconsolidated financial statements;
Travelling and conveyance 16,529 19,367
Legal and professional 160,528 157,860 2019 2018
Computer accessories 5,428 4,601
Auditors' remuneration 3241 4,972 4,958 | (Rupees in ‘000)-—---—-
Depreciation / amortization 7.3 7,434 10,049 Name of donee Name of directors/spouse
Depreciation on investment property 9 7 7 HELP None 2,715 1,274
Amortisation 8.1 4,727 5,107 Masoomen Hospital Trust None 2,000 -
ljarah rentals 10,280 9,471 Northern Eye Hospital None 1,000 1,000
Charity and donations 32.2 & 32.3 51,236 45,414 Thar Foundation None 2,000 2,000
Directors' fee and meeting expenses 2,685 1,990 The Citizens Foundation None 2,672 3,000
Others 7,564 4,009 The Indus Hospital None 2,000 2,000
758,584 814,266 School of Leadsership None = 990
12,387 10,264
122 | Thal Limited Annual Report 2019 | 123



Note 2019 2018 Note 2019 2018
-------- (Rupees in ‘000)-------- -----—-—-(Rupees in ‘000)--—------
33. OTHER CHARGES 35. FINANCE COSTS
Workers' profits participation fund 26.6 231,332 203,255 Mark-up on Short-term running finance:
Workers' welfare fund 60,662 58,327 Related party 648 182
291,994 261,582 Others 152 39
34. OTHER INCOME 800 221
Income from financial assets Workers' profit participation fund 26.6 224 -
Dividend income from: Bank charges and guarantee commission 8,781 8,648
Related parties 9,805 8,869
Indus Motor Company Limited. 647,925 635,700 36. TAXATION
Agriauto Industries Limited 24,329 24,329 Current 1,116,699 1,029,836
Habib Insurance Company Limited 4,302 4,302 Prior 37,320 92,215
Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited 1,561 - 1,154,019 1,122,051
Habib METRO Pakistan (Private) Limited 402,897 356,641 Deferred 25,958 (4,509)
1,081,014 1,020,972 36.1 1,179,977 1,117,542
Others
Dynea Pakistan Limited 5,310 3,268 36.1 Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit
Habib Sugar Mills Limited 5,134 3,267 Profit before taxation 4,334,642 3,803,512
Allied Bank Limited 1,455 1,318
Habib Bank Limited 293 358 Tax at the rate of 29% (2018: 30%) 1,257,046 1,141,054
GlaxosmithKline Pakistan Limited S 5 Super tax @ 2% (2018 : 2%) of taxable income 88,209 112,785
Dividend from Mutual Funds 239,961 - 1,345,255 1,253,839
252,156 8,216 Tax effects of:
Interest on: Income taxed at reduced rates (10,491) (12,896)
Deposit accounts 46,037 33,196 Income tax under Final tax regime (200,585) (187,583)
Term deposit receipts 44,803 122,288 Tax effect of inadmissible items 61,900 24,421
Government treasury bills 39,081 58,159 Tax credits (53,422) (52,454)
129,921 213,643 Prior 37,320 92,215
(Loss) / gain on revaluation / redemption of investments at fair value 1,179,977 1,117,542
through profit or loss (43,591) 123,827
Liabilities no longer payable written back 1,82 68 36.2 The Company has filed its return of income up to tax year 2018. These are deemed to be assessed in accordance with the
Reversal of provision for impairment of loan - MHPL - 18,204 requirements of Income Tax Ordinance 2001.
Exchange (loss)/ gain - net (7,150) 1,780
1,413,682 1,386,710
Income from non financial assets
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets and intangibles 37,740 9,345
Rental income 4,047 5,451
Service income 341 26,201 27,720
Scrap sales 17,134 10,408
Claim from suppliers 21,556 6,525
Insurance claim 15 7
Others 759 -
107,452 59,456
1,621,134 1,446,166
341 The Company has a service agreement with Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private) Limited, a subsidiary company. As per the
agreement, the Company provides service and support for production engineering, plant maintenance and engineering,
imports, logistics & material handling, sales administration, HR and general administration and financial, corporate, legal and
tax advisory.
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37. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

38.

39.

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company,
which is based on:
Net profit for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary shares of Rs. 5/- each in issue

Basic and diluted earnings per share

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:

Depreciation and amortisation

Finance costs

Interest income

Liabilities no longer payable written back

loss / (Gain) on revaluation / redemption of investments at fair
value through profit or loss

Dividend income

Provision for ECL

Provision for retirement benefits

Reversal of provision for impairment on loan to MHPL

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short-term prepayments
Other receivables

Sales tax refundable

Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances

Short-term investments

Short-term running finance
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Note 2019

3,154,665

2018

2,685,970

Number of shares
in thousands

81,030 81,030
————————————— (Rupees)----—------—--—-
38.93 33.15
4,334,642 3,803,512
270,650 198,607
9,805 8,869
(129,921) (213,643)
(1,332) (68)
43,591 (123,827)
(1,333,170) (1,029,188)
35,456 2,787
4,901 4,967
- (18,204)
(37,740) (9,345)
(1,137,760) (1,179,045)
3,196,882 2,624,467
6,862 (30,112)
(1,681,391) (1,039,934)
(863,674) (481,116)
50,836 (9,792)
(175,305) (62,997)
(35,557) (12,717)
(208,669) (30,263)
(2,906,898) (1,666,931)
105,785 467,456
395,769 1,424,992
22 611,509 701,283
20 1,045,699 641,461
27 - (600)
1,657,208 1,342,144

40. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties of the Company comprise of subsidiaries, associates, and companies with common directorship, retirement
funds, directors and key management personnel. Detail of transactions with related parties during the year, other than those
which have been disclosed in note 41 and elsewhere in these unconsolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Relationship
Subsidiaries

Associates

Employee benefit plans

Nature of transactions
Professional services acquired
Purchase of assets

Purchase of goods

Sale of goods

Supplies purchased

Rent received

Security Deposit paid

Sale of assets

Service fee

Tax loss and challans acquired

Sales of goods
Insurance premium
Purchase of assets
Supplies purchased
Purchase of goods
Insurance claim received

Mark-up and bank charges paid

Profit received on deposits
ljarah rentals

Rent received

Rent paid

Contribution to provident fund

Contribution to retirement benefit fund

2019 2018
———————— (Rupees in ‘000)--------

164,107 142,050
- 3,907
1,072 7,852
- 318
- 943
3,693 5,451
1,624 -
1,343 1,761
26,201 27,720
4,709 =
11,419,180 10,394,197
383,255 37,367
3,215 1,744
45,796 53,770
5,459 65,051
3,607 689
5,656 3,154
21,798 77,112
21,400 21,835
354 -
- 1,623
45,562 35,634
7,361 4,967

40.1 Other transactions with key management personnel are disclosed in note 41 to the unconsolidated financial statements.

40.2 The receivable / payable balances with related parties as at June 30, 2019 are disclosed in the respective notes to the

unconsolidated financial statements.

40.3 Following are the related parties of the Company with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have

arrangement/agreement in place.
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S.No Company Name

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

Noble Computer Services (Private) Limited

Pakistan Industrial Aids (Private) Limited

Makro-Habib Pakistan Limited

A-One Enterprises (Private) Limited

Habib Metro Pakistan (Private) Limited

Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private) Limited

Thal Power (Private) Limited

Thal Electrical (Private) Limited

Sindh Engro Coal Mining

Company Limited

Indus Motor Company Limited

Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited

Habib Insurance Company Limited.

Metro Habib Cash and Carry

Pakistan (Private) Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

First Habib Modaraba

Thal Limited - Employees'

Provident Fund

Thal Limited - Employees'
Retirement Benefit Fund

Zehra Home Trust
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Basis of
association

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

purchased

Common

directorship

Subsidiary of
an associate

Retirement
benefit fund

Retirement
benefit fund

Trusteeship held

Aggregate %
of shareholding

11.90%

100%

100%

100%

100%

60%

55%

100%

100%

6.22%

1.30%

4.63%

by spouse of Director

Nature of transactions

Professional services acquired /
purchase of assets / sale of
assets / sale of goods

Purchase of goods

Purchase of assets / tax loss and
challans acquired

Tax profit and challans acquired

Purchase of assets

Rent received / service fee and
tax loss acquired

Loan

Advance against issuance

of shares

Issuance of shares

Sales of goods

Sales of goods / supplies
purchased

Insurance premium / Insurance

claim received

Associate of subsidiary company
Purchase of assets / supplies

Mark-up and bank charges paid /

profit received

ljarah rentals

Contribution made

Contribution made

Sale of goods

411

1.2

42.

Managerial remuneration

Bonus

Company's contribution to
provident fund

Company's contribution to
retirement benefit fund

Other perquisites

Number of persons

2019 2018
Chief Chief
executive Directors Executives  executive Directors Executives
(Rupees in ‘000)
16,320 - 243,098 20,257 - 237,319
3,189 - 54,022 7,290 24,691
- - 10,249 807 - 9,719
B - 2,731 - - 4,676
- - 2,977 - - 1,226
19,509 - 313,077 28,354 - 277,631
1 7 44 1 6 36

The chief executive, directors and certain executives of the company are provided with free use of company maintained cars.

Four non executive directors (2018: Five) have been paid fees of Rs.2,585,000 (2018: Rs. 1,870,000) for attending board and other meetings.

PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Annual Capacity
Jute (Metric Tons)

Auto air conditioners (Units)

Paper bags (Nos. 000s)
Alternator (Units)
Starter (Units)

Actual Production
Jute (Metric Tons)

Auto air conditioners (Units)

Wire harness (Units)
Paper bags (Nos. 000s)
Alternator (Units)
Starter (Units)

Reason for shortfall

421 The capacity of wire harness is dependent on product mix.

2019 2018
33,800 33,800
90,000 90,000
251,000 251,000
90,000 90,000
90,000 90,000
22,898 26,748
68,095 63,914
173,532 148,447
123,545 117,243
56,542 51,134
56,542 51,134

Low demand Low demand

42.2 The production capacity of Laminate Operations depends on the relative proportion of various types of products.
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43.

44.

44 1

44.2

45.

451

PROVIDENT FUND

Investments out of provident fund have been made in compliance with the provisions of section 218 the Act and the rules
formulated for this purpose.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Note 2019 2018

Financial assets as per statement of financial position
At amortised cost

Long term loans 11. 861,282 788,428
Long term deposits 12. 14,861 13,396
Trade debts 16 2,347,946 1,619,728
Loans and advances 17 21,860 72,696
Trade deposits 1841 293,374 112,184
Interest accrued 3,699 2,088
Other receivables 19 71,168 35,611
Short-term investments 20 1,049,094 347,954
Cash and bank balances 22 611,509 701,283

At fair value through OCI

Long-term investments 10. 149,279 1,616,835
At fair value through profit and loss

Short-term investments 20 1,894,204 4,199,839
Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

At amortised cost

Long-term deposits 25 1,463 2,379
Trade and other payables 26 2,483,601 2,379,148
Unclaimed dividend 56,697 49,712
Unpaid dividend 49,409 47,954
Short-term running finance 27 - 600

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Company’s financial instruments are subject to credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk. The Board of Directors oversees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
incur a financial loss.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic,
political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to
developments affecting a particular industry.

The Company is exposed to credit risk on long-term investments, long-term loans, long-term deposits, trade debts, loans,
trade deposits, other receivables, short-term investments and bank balances. The Company seeks to minimize the credit risk
exposure through having exposure only to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securities where applicable.
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45.2

Quality of financial assets
The credit quality of financial assets is analyzed as under:

2019 2018

Trade debts
The analysis of trade debts is as follows:
Neither past due nor impaired [includes Rs. 668.145 million

(2018: Rs. 524.373 million) receivable from related parties.] 1,520,103 1,191,146
Past due but not impaired
Less than 90 days [includes Rs. 9.267 million
(2018: Rs. 7.254 million) receivable from related parties.] 702,999 290,359
91 to 180 days 84,506 35,5632
181 to 360 days 40,338 2,691
2,347,946 1,519,728
Bank balances
Ratings
Al+ 542,802 578,358
A-1+ 66,914 120,740
*A1 1,342 23
611,058 699,121
* This includes rating assigned by an international rating agency to foreign banks.
Short term investments
Ratings
Al+ - 150,628
A1+ 1,049,094 496,771
AA(f) 1,484,464 3,241,339
AA+(f) 409,740 657,074
AA-(f) - 301,426
2,943,298 4,847,238

Financial assets other than trade debts, bank balances and short-term investments, are not exposed to any material credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with the
financial instruments. To guard against the risk, the Company has diversified funding sources and the assets are managed
with liquidity in mind. The maturity profile is monitored to ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained.
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45.3

Less
On than 3to12 1to5
demand 3 months months years Total
(Rupees in ‘000)

Year ended June 30, 2019
Long term deposits - - - 1,463 1,463
Short term running finance - secured 30,709 - - - 30,709
Trade and other payables 1,821,109 - - - 1,821,109
Unclaimed dividend 56,697 - - = 56,697
Unpaid dividend 49,409 - - - 49,409

1,927,215 - - 1,463 1,928,678
Year ended June 30, 2018
Long term deposits - - - 2,379 2,379
Trade and other payables 1,866,098 - - - 1,866,098
Short-term running finance - secured 600 - = = 600
Unclaimed dividend 48,712 - - - 48,712
Unpaid dividend 48,954 - - - 48,954

1,964,364 - - 2,379 1,966,743

Foreign Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or a financial liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange
rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currency. The Company's exposure to foreign
currency risks is as follows:

2019 2018
———————— (Rupees in ‘000)--------
Trade receivables (US Dollars) 481 52
Trade and other payables (US Dollars) 165 2,127
Trade and other payables (EUR) 1,232 520
Trade and other payables (JPY) 43,927 -
Trade and other payables (CHF) 20 -
Total (CHF) - payables 20 -
Total (JPY) - payables 43,927 =
Total (EUR) - payables 1,232 520
Total (US Dollars) - receivables 316 2,075

The following significant exchange rates have been applied at the statement of financial position date:

US Dollars 164.50 121.50
EUR 186.99 141.58
JPY 1.53 =
CHF 168.60 =

Sensitivity analysis:
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar, AED, EUR, JPY and CHF's
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s profit before tax and the Company’s equity.
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45.4

45.5

46.

47.

Change in Effect on Effect on
exchange profit or (loss) equity
rate before tax
% 0 (Rupees in ‘000)--—------
2019 +10 (24,897) (17,582)
-10 24,897 17,582
2018 +10 (32,564) (22,996)
-10 32,564 22,996

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest

rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's short-term borrowings
and cash in deposit account. The interest rates on these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes to the unconsolidated
financial statements.

Sensitivity Analysis:
The following figures demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held constant, of
the Company’s profit before tax:

Increase / Effect on
decrease in profit
basis points before tax

2019
KIBOR + 100 4,530
KIBOR -100 (4,530)
2018
KIBOR +100 4,403
KIBOR -100 (4,408)

Equity price risks

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cashflows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company’s quoted equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment
securities. The Company manages the equity price risk through diversification. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the
Company’s Board of Directors on a regular basis. The Board of Directors review and approve all equity investment decisions.

As at the statement of financial position date, the exposure to listed equity securities at fair value was Rs. 149.27 million. At decrease of
10% in the share price of these securities would have an impact of approximately Rs. 14.92 million on the equity or income depending
whether or not the decline is significant and prolonged. An increase of 10% in the share price of the listed security would impact equity with
the similar amount.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital. The Company is currently financing its operations through equity and short term running finance.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. Investment in subsidiary companies and associates are carried at cost. The carrying values of all other financial
assets and liabilities reflected in the unconsolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the statement of financial position
date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered not significantly different from their book value.

Fair value hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method. The different level have been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level1);

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (level 3).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2019 - -—--(Rupees in ‘000)----
Assets
Equity investment at fair value through OCI 149,279
- Short-term investments W T - e m

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2018 -mmmmmmmmmeeeee——————(Rupees in ‘000)
Assets
Equity investment at fair value through OCI 218,824
- Short-term investments © 4199839 - - 4199839

There were no transfers amongst levels during the year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 20, 2019 has approved the following:

(i) transfer of Rs. 2,506.5 million from unappropriated profit to general reserve; and

(i) payment of cash dividend of Rs. 5.50 per share for the year ended June 30, 2019 for approval of the members at the Annual
General Meeting to be held on October 26, 2019.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total number of employees

Total number of Company's employees as at June, 30
Average number of Company's employees during the year

GENERAL

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and reclassified, wherever necessary. However, there were no significant reclassifications
to report.

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousands.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on September 20, 2019 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

o

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR
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INOEPENDENT AURITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Thal Limitsd

Cpinian

We have audited the annaxed consclidated financiol stetaments of Thal Limited and it subsidiaries (| he
Groupgh, which compriga the consolldated statement of faanclal posillan as al 30 Jine 2019, and the
consolldatzd statement of profif ar less, the consolidzted xtatement nf cemprehensive inceme, ke
consofldated statement of changes in eguity. the consolidated staternent of cash fdws far the year hen
endled, and notes fo the consolidated financial statements, including & summary of sigriflcant accounting
policles snd othes sxplanatery information, and we stale thal we have obfained all the infdrmation ard
sxplarations which, ¥ the bast of aur knowledoe and baliel, ware necassory Tor B purposs of Th audit,

i e splnion, conzolldated financlal staiements give a true and falr view of the consolldaled financiad
pazition of the Group a5 31 30 Juns 2019, and of its eonzelldated financhal performance and its conseldated
cakh Naws For ha yaar Ben endd in accordance with the accaunting and Feporting standsrds as applicalilo
i Fakistan,

Bas|s for Opinlan

Wi conducted cur audit in accordance with infernalional Standgards on Auditing (5Aa47 a5 applicable in
Pakistan, Our respensibllities under thase standards are further described In ine Audilors
Respansibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financlal Statements sackion of our report. We ara
indeppndent of the Graup in aceardance with the International Ethice Standards Board lor Accountants’
Code ol Ethics for Frofessiohal Accountants as-adopted by the instiiute ol Chartered Accouniznts of
Fakistan (thir coded, and vig have Tullilled sur other gthical respansibilitios in aceordance with the Code,
We beileve thal the audit evidence we have oblained 1 sulficlent and appropriate to provide a basis o
our spinion

Koy Audit Matters

Kay audit matters are those maltters thal, inour professional judgment, were of most significencs in cuwr
audit of the condolidated Tinancial stalamants of the curront pefiod. These malters were addressed in the
context of our audll of the consalidated flaancial stakements as 3 whole, and i forming aur apinlon
therean, and we do nok provide s separsts opinion en fhese mattars,

e
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Faltowing are tha Kay auifit mattanisk

1. Revenue recognition and adaption of IFRS

How U MalTer waEs addrEssed i our ayei

15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group earns revenus from maltiple
busifess |mes which operafe #s diskinct
business units with sigmificant volume of
rouvanid  fransactiong. The recoqnibion of
revende retsting o 2ach business line depand
arl the nature of confraciual arrangements
with the cusiomars.

IFRS 15 ‘Revenpe from contracts  with
custamers has becoms effective in- Pakatan
fof accounting periods Beginning on or sftar 1
July 2018 and accordingly the sama has basn
adopted by the Group during the year.

IFR% 15 provides comprehensive model of
FEvinsg Fecagnition and requires the Group te
axercise judgement, taking Into consldaration
all of the reievant facts and crcumstances
when agphying the modal to contracts wilh
Customers.

‘We identified revenue recagnition as a key
audit matier due o adoption of IFRE 15,
stgniflcant wolume of trapsactions -and the
armount of audit efforts in relation to this area.

Koy sudit matiess

Z. Capital e LFE 4T New profects

Wa performed a cange of ast procesures in relation o

revence Induding the follewing:

Wa reviswed the lerms and carditions of disfinct
sale Lransections and  assgssed  the
agawrapriatensas @l the reveanus  recepnillon
poicies and practices followed &y the Group.

We evaluated- the impacl of Ehe new accounting
requirement are in accordance with IFRS 1%, \We
reviewed  the assessmeonl  prepared by the
managemsnt refating fo the application af fiveatep
madel for revenue recognition;

Wa lested controls over revenue recoghition and
faporting  procass  withan Eﬂl.‘_.l'l business  unit
inctuding key 1T application cantreds, IT depandant
manual controds and IT genseral contrals far the
raldvant T syalems wied for revenue {ransaction
processing by the Graden,

W performed analyilcal review procedurss and
alber Lkl of delaild sver' virioud revinue siroams
ircheting the cut-ofl procedures b ehech that
revEnus s Baen recoghized a tha apprapriate
accounting period.

Wa zrsesisd the adequaty of the disclesures as per
the guidalines sat oul in the applicabla finsagiat
reparting roquirements,

P Thel misllr was addressed inoour audil

A relferred Lo In nale 8 15 e accomparing
consolldated financial statements, the Group
has incurred . significant amount of capital
oxpanditure during Ehe vear for new peojects
fo enhance the produchion capaclty af the
Group,

Capital expendilures incwmed during tha year
repwresents 8 significanl  transaction and
thecefore, we have ldeatified the same a4 4
kay aodil matter,

Gt procedures, amongdl  others, inclieded  the
tallawing:

Obtaindng an understanding of the Group’s process
with respect to Capitel axpendilure incleding
moject budgeting, evecution of confract: and
accumulation of cost.

Wa roviewed ihe  relevant  conlracts  and
documents supparting various compoanonts of tha
capltabized cost.

Wo considerad whather the tems of cost
capltalised, meet the recagnitlen criteria of an
assets in acoordance with the appliceble financial
reporting standards.

We abso evaluaied the basis used by the
management for degreciation charged in relation
to the asseis, by considering factors such as tha
current  useful e estimiales and fiming of
capitalegation,

We assessed the adeguacy of the disclosures az
par the guidalines set oul in the applicable financial
feparting redaulraments.
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information Other than the Consofidated Financial Statements and Audltors' Report Therson

Mansgement |5 respansible for Lhe other nfermation. The other Information comprises the Informalion
Includad in the &nnyal Report, bull does nofd Include the congolidated inancial stalements and our auditors”
rapart thereon.

Gur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does nok cover the other information and we do nat
SEQrERS any Tarm of assurance conclusion thereon,

In eonngckion with aur sudit of the consolidated financial statements, our respansibility Is to read the other
infarmation and, In doing so, consider whether (he ather Infarmation o materially incoadislent with the
wonsofidated financial statements or our knowledoe ohtained |n the aedil or otherwise appsare o be
matarlally misstiated, IF, bosed on the work we have performed, we conclude thal there i5 8 material
mizctatement af thiz ather nformation, we are required B3 repart (hal fack. Wa have nolhing bo repot in
this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Finsnclal Statements

Management i retponsible for the preparalien and Tair presentation of the consolidated fnancial
stataments (o acoardance with the accounting dnd regaeting standards as appdicable in Pakistan and thea
requirements of Companles Act, 2017 (XX of 20175 and for sdch internal conlrol a5 managemienl
delermings s necesaary Lo anable the praparation of consolldated financial statements that ara free from
matarial misstatement, whather dos 18 frasd ar srrar,

In preparing the consalidated fimrancial statemants, mansgement Is responsible for sssessing the Group's
Atlity 1o continwe 83 4 galng concem, disclosing, a3 eppdicabie, matbers relabed to gaing concern and using
the going concern basls of accodnting uniess managament alther Inlends Lo Hguidate the Group ar o
coase oparationg, or has no realistic aftemative but to da so.

The Board of divectors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process,
Apditers’ Responclbilitbes for the sudlt of the Consalidated Financlal Statements

ur-ohjectives aie (o obitain reasonatile asurance aboul whether the consolidated financial slotements as
g wholeare free from matsrial mizstatement, whether dus 8o fraud or error, and Lo [ssue a0 auditors” repart
that inciudes aur opinion. Ressonatble assursncea |s 2 high lavel-of assurance, but 15 not a guarantee-that
an audid eondycted in accordance with 1545 as applicable in Pakistan will always defecl s material
misstatemeant when It exists. Misstatements Caly Brse from (réud oF érrer and are conslderad matarisl if,
medividually-or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expedcied to influence the economic declslons af
users laken on the basls of theae conaplidated financipd statemants,

As part of an awdit in accordsnce with 1SAs a5 applicable In Pakistan, we exercise professianal judgemant
and malntaln prfofessional skegticlsm ihioughout the sudit, We alsoc

# |dentify and assess the rlsks of material misstalemants of the consolidaled Nnancial statements,
whather dua (o fraud or error, deslgn and parform audlt procedures responsive to those rlsks, and
aotain audil evidence that i sulficlent 4nd appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk
of nat detecting a material misstatément resulting rom fréud 18 higher than Tor ons resulling Irom
errof, as fracd may Invabye collusken, Porgery, intentional aomissions, mdsrepressidations, o Lhe
averride af internal contral,

= [Obfain an understanading of intermat control redevant to the sudlt In order to design audlt procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but nat for the purpose of expressing an opinlan on the
eifectiveness of the Group's Infemal contral,

=  Evluate the spproprlateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimatas and redsted Msclosures made by i'I'II!II‘1ElIHI1I1'Il-l':ll'.1 F{-
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OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2019
& Canclude on the aporopristonsss ol managument™s use of the going concern basie af accaunling Not 2019 2018
anl, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 8 materizl uncertalnty exists related to avents oe o
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's atdlity to continue 8s a gofng concerm,.. | T (Rupees in ‘000°)--------
If we conclude that maberial uncertainty axists, we are required to draw altention in sur auditors’ oSETS o eet
report o the related dizclosueres (0 the consolldated financial statements or, [ such disclosures are Pon—cxrrerp a}[sseds . " 8 3365 205 1947798
inadeguate, to madity our apinion. Our conclusions are bazed on Lhe audit evidence obtained up (o tha Intfgﬁgib}f,egige%n equipmen 9 ’ 94’ 193 ’ 17’521
ﬂ-ﬂ-l:‘iﬂ'r iour ﬂl.ldllll:ll'l roaport Howi'ar, future avents or conditions may cawse the Group to cease bo Investment properties 10 6,422 476 6,702,921
CoRUNuE 838 Qoinyg concern. Long-term investments 11 5,402,004 4,624,862
Long-term loans 12 3,996 9,048
« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contant. of the consolidated financial statements, Long-term deposits 13 23,188 21,433
including the disciosures, and whethér ihe consolidated finoncial statements represent [he Long-term prepayments 14 22,501 22,501
underiying iransaciions and events ina manner thal achieves air presentation. Deferred tax asset 15 139,796 191,145
15,473,359 13,637,159
= Oblaln sufficlent aparopriate audil evidence regarding the financal informatlon of the entitles or Current assets
businass activities within the Group to-exprass an oplnlon en the consolidsted financial statemants, Stores, spares and loose tools 16 134,503 137,465
We are respansible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain soleiy Stock-in-trade 17 5,788,036 4,047,147
responsible for our audit opinian. Trade debts 18 2,431,440 1,593,086
Loans and advances 19 28,224 86,694
We communicate with bhe board of directors regarding. among other mattars; the plannad scope and Biming ;I'rtade ?eposﬂsgmd short-term prepayments 20 3371212 152121;?
of the audit and sighificant audit findings. including any significant daficiancles in internal contrel that we Ontﬁreersreig\:/rggl - o e e
aeniify during our audil, Short-term investments 22 7,649,725 9,069,237
Sales tax refundable 357,073 105,163
We also provide the board of directors with a statament that we have complied with ralevanl sthical Cash and bank balances 23 1.068.600 1.325.900
requiraments regarding Independence, and to communicate with them &l relationships and alher metlers 17.780,323 16,567,864
that may ressanably be thought to bear on ow independence, and where applicable, relsted- safeguaras. TOTAL ASSETS 33,253,682 30,105,023
From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we delermine those matiers that were of mas EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
significance im the sudit of the consolidated financlal statements of the current period and are tharetore SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
the key audil matters. We describe these malters in our sudilors’ reporl unless law or regulation Authorised capital .
preciedes public disclosure aboul i matter ar when, n extremety Are df cumstances, we detzrmine [hal ZO0,000,000.(2018: ZOO,QOO,OOO)Iordlnary shares of Rs. 5/- each 24
& matter should not be communicated in owr report because the adverse conseguences of doing so would Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 24 405,150 405,150
reasonably be expected to outwelgh tha public interest benefits of sch commanécation. Share deposit money 12 12
Reserves 25 22,568,368 19,957,969
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Holding Company 22,973,530 20,363,131
" Non-controlling interest 26 6,596,482 6,484,082
The engagemesnt pariner an the audit resulling In Eels independent auditors® regort |5 Arslan Khalid, Total equity 29570012 26.847 213
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
29 fomd Lilan Long term deposits 07 303,777 319,720
Chartered Accountants CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 28 2,880,445 2,732,729
Placet ILarachi Unclaimed dividend 56,697 49,712
Unpaid dividend 49,409 47,954
Dats: 25 Sepismber 2019 Income tax - net 29 90,706 96,923
Short-term running finance 30 274131 600
Advance rent 8,505 10,172
3,359,893 2,938,090
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 31
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 33,253,682 30,105,023
The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
e |
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 2019

2018

Revenue - net 32 23,544,641 20,308,071
Cost of sales 33 (19,469,021)  (16,619,922)
Gross profit 4,075,620 3,688,149
Distribution and selling expenses 34 (295,684) (225,757)
Administrative expenses 35 (1,265,361) (1,279,721)
Other charges 36 (446,545) (271,159)
(2,007,590) (1,776,637)
Otherincome 37 2,626,166 2,257,252
Operating profit 4,694,196 4168,764
Finance costs 38 (24,842) (10,206)
4,669,354 4,158,558
Share of net profit of associates and joint venture - after tax 1141 941,312 41177
Profit before taxation 5,610,666 5,099,735
Taxation 39 (1,648,356) (1,547,656)
Net profit for the year 3,962,310 3,552,079
Attributable to
- Equity holders of the Holding Company 3,581,312 3,171,847
- Non-controlling interest 380,998 380,232
3,962,310 3,552,079
—————————————— (Rupees)--------------
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the
equity holders of the Holding Company 40 44.20 39.14
The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
<2 .
;_’iﬁfi—}——"_a L‘j%"" T el
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

2019 2018
———————— (Rupees in ‘000°)--------
Net profit for the year 3,962,310 3,552,079
Other comprehensive income
Item that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
in subsequent periods;
Share of actuarial gains / (loss) on remeasurement of defined benefit plans of
associates - net of tax (10,037) 20,383
(Loss)/gain on revaluation equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (69,545) 20,251
(79,582) 40,634
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,882,728 3,592,713
Attributable to
- Equity holders of the Holding Company 3,501,730 3,212,481
- Non-controlling interest 380,998 380,232

3,882,728 3,692,713

The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

P J
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

1. THE HOLDING COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

11 Thal Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated on January 31, 1966 as a public company limited by shares and is listed on the
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

The Holding Company is engaged in the manufacture of jute goods, engineering goods, papersack and laminate sheets. The registered
office of the Holding Company is situated at 4th Floor, House of Habib, 3-Jinnah Co-operative Housing Society, Block 7/8, Sharae Faisal,

Karachi.

1.2 The Group comprises of the Holding Company and the following subsidiaries that have been consolidated in these financial statements:

Date of Total Total Total Total
becoming Holding assets liabilities  assets liabilities
Subsidiary Companies Note subsidiary 2019 2018 2019 2018
% % (Rupees in ‘000s) (Rupees in ‘000s)
Noble Computer Services
(Private) Limited 1.2.1 01-07-2005 100 100 177,980 62,110 174,617 62,984
Pakistan Industrial Aids
(Private) Limited 1.2.2 27-03-2006 100 100 32,511 1,183 31,563 1,768
Makro-Habib Pakistan Limited 1.2.3 01-05-2008 100 100 33,166 3511;3il7 42,749 349,994
A-One Enterprises
(Private) Limited 1.2.4 16-12-2011 100 100 932,977 12,314 879,865 17,278
Habib METRO Pakistan
(Private) Limited 1.2.5 16-12-2011 60 60 10,196,925 682,075 9,942,822 645,757
Thal Boshoku Pakistan
(Private) Limited 1.2.6 03-09-2013 55 55 1,441,813 409,380 1,084,467 65,430
Thal Power (Private) Limited 1.2.7 03-07-2014 100 100 879,178 859,239 760,944 782,887
Thal Electrical (Private) Limited 1.2.8 10-04-2019 100 - 100 = = =

1.21 Noble Computer Services (Private) Limited
Noble Computer Services (Private) Limited (NCSPL) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on May 8, 1983 and is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Thal Limited. The NCSPL provides Internal Audit Services, |.T.related services, Advisory Services, HR Services
and Management Services.

1.2.2 Pakistan Industrial Aids (Private) Limited
Pakistan Industrial Aids (Private) Limited (PIAPL) was incorporated in Pakistan on March 17, 2006 as a private limited company. The
subsidiary is principally engaged in trading activity related to automotive parts, accessories, chemical gases and general goods.

1.2.3 Makro-Habib Pakistan Limited (MHPL)

(@ MHPLwas incorporated in Pakistan on June 29, 2005 as a public limited (unlisted) company. MHPL was an associated undertaking of the
Holding Company until April 30, 2008 and became a subsidiary company with effect from May 01, 2008. The principal objective of the
Company is to operate a chain of wholesale / retail cash and carry stores. The Company was operating one store located at Survey No.
148/1, Abyssinia Lines, Mubarak Shaheed Road, Saddar, Karachi, on the land sub-leased by Army Welfare Trust.

(b)  MHPL had entered into Arrangement with METRO Habib Cash & Carry Pakistan (Private) Limited (MHCCP) (then a wholly owned subsidiary
of METRO Cash and Carry International Holding BV) (the Operator) whereby the Operator had been engaged to operate MHPL's Saddar

Store (the Store) for an operations fee determined under the agreed mechanism.

As a consequence of the dismissal of the Review Petition by the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) the Saddar store of the subsidiary
company, MHPL, was closed down on September 11, 2015. Accordingly, the Operation Agreement with MHCCP was terminated in 2016.

146 | Thal Limited

12.4

125

1.2.6

12.7

1.2.8

1.3

On the application filed by Army Welfare Trust in respect of the cancellation of sub-lease of the Sadder Store Land, the SCP has restored
the review petition in its order dated December 9, 2015.

A-One Enterprises (Private) Limited
A-One Enterprises (Private) Limited (A-One EPL) was incorporated in Pakistan on December 16, 2011 as a private limited company. The
management is considering different strategic plans.

Habib METRO Pakistan (Private) Limited
Habib METRO Pakistan (Private) Limited (HMPPL) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on December 16, 2011 under
the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The main business of the HMPPL is to own and manage properties.

Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private) Limited

Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private) Limited (TBPPL) was incorporated on September 03, 2013 as a private company limited by shares. The
principle activity of TBPPL is to manufacture automobile seats, seat parts, air cleaner and other automobile parts. TBPPL was formed
pursuant to a Joint Venture Agreement between the Holding Company, Toyota Boshoku Corporation, Japan and Toyota Tsusho Corporation,
Japan.

Thal Power (Private) Limited
Thal Power (Private) Limited (TPPL) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on July 03, 2014. TPPL has entered into a joint
venture agreement with M/s Novatex Limited for collaboration to develop a 330 MW Coalfired Power Generation Plant at Thar, Sindh.

Thal Electrical Pakistan (Private) Limited
Thal Electrical (Private) Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on January 12, 2018 as a private limited company.

Geographical location and address of business units

Holding Company

The head office of the Holding Company is situated at 4th Floor, House of Habib, 3-Jinnah Co-perative Housing Society, Block 7/8, Sharae
Faisal, Karachi.

Plants:

Engineering operations are located at Korangi and Port Qasim, Karachi, Sindh.

The Jute operations are located at Muzaffargarh, Punjab.

Papersack operations are located at Hub, Balochistan and Gadoon, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa.

LLaminates operations are located at Hub, Balochistan.

Subsidiaries:

Noble Computer Services (Private) Limited operations are located at 2nd Floor, House of Habib, 3-Jinnah Co-perative Housing Society,
Block 7/8, Sharae Faisal, Karachi.

Pakistan Industrial Aids (Private) Limited operations are located at - Plot number 192 Korangi industrial area, Sector 22, Karachi.
Makro-Habib Pakistan Limited is located at 2nd Floor, House of Habib - 3-Jinnah Co-operative Housing Society, Shara e Faisal, Karachi.

A-One Enterprises (Private) Limited is located at 4th Floor, House of Habib - 3-Jinnah Co-operative Housing Society, Sharae Faisal, Karachi.

Habib Metro Pakistan (Private) Limited operations are located at Mezzanine Floor, House of Habib, 3-Jinnah Co-perative Housing Society,
Block 7/8, Sharae Faisal, Karachi.

Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private) Limited operations are located at - Plot number 192 Korangi industrial area, Sector 22 and plot number
SP-C north western industrial road, Port Qasim, Karachi.

Thal Power (Private) Limited operations are located at 4th Floor, House of Habib, 3-Jinnah Co-perative Housing Society, Block 7/8, Sharae
Faisal, Karachi.

Thal Electrical (Private) Limited operations are located at 4th Floor, House of Habib, 3-Jinnah Co-perative Housing Society, Block 7/8,
Sharae Faisal, Karachi.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as notified under
the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act);

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified
under the Act; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Act

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs, the provision of and directives issued under the Act have
been followed.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain investments which
have been disclosed in the accounting policies below.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is also the Company’s functional currency.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, here-in-after
referred to as “the Group”.

A company is a subsidiary, if an entity (the Holding Company) directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or holds more than fifty percent
of its voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than fifty percent of its directors.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such
control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Holding Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed to conform with accounting policies of the
Group, where required.

Allintra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated
in full.

Where the ownership of a subsidiary is less than 100% and therefore, a non controlling interest (NCI) exists, the NCl is allocated its share
of the total comprehensive income of the period, even if that results in a deficit balance.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line by line basis and carrying value of
investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the subsidiary companies’ shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, estimates and assumptions which
are significant to the consolidated financial statements:
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Notes
determining the residual values, useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment and investment property 6.2,6.4,8&10
determining the residual values, useful lives and impairment of intangibles assets 6.3&9
impairment of financial and non-financial assets 6.5&6.28
net realizable value estimation 6.7,6.8, 16 & 17

6.9,6.28, 18 & 21
6.13, 15,29 & 39

Allowance for expected credit loss
provision for tax and deferred tax

provision and warranty obligation 6.24 & 28.3
contingencies 6.20 & 31
compensated absences 6.23 & 28

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

New / Revised Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

The Group has adopted the following accounting standards, the amendments and interpretations of IFRSs which became effective for the
current year:

IFRS 2 Share based Payments: Classification and Measurement of Share Based Payments Transactions (Amendments)

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (Amendments)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments)

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

Improvements to IFRSs Issued by IASB in December 2016
IAS 28 — Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures: Clarification that measuring investees at fair value through profit or loss in an
investment-by-investment choice.

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and improvements to accounting standards did not have any material effect on these
consolidated financial statements except for IFRS 15 and IFRS 9. The impact of adoption of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 are described below:

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and related Interpretations and it applies to all revenue arising from
contracts with customers, unless those contracts are in the scope of other standards. The new standard establishes a five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration

to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

The standard requires entities to exercise judgment, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying
each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining
a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.

The Group generates its revenue from sale of goods and rendering of service contracts of internal audit services, information technology
services, HR services, advisory services, business planning, merger and acquisition etc. The Group’s contracts with customers for the
sale of goods generally include one performance obligation (delivery of goods) and generally do not provide volume rebate to customers.
The Group therefore, recognizes revenue from sale of goods at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods. Further, revenue from sevice contracts is recognised when services are rendered to the customer.

These revenue recognition methodologies are in line with the requirements of IFRS-15, therefore, the adoption of new standard has not
resulted in any change in the revenue recognition policy of the Group.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The Group has applied the IFRS 9 using the modified retrospective approach. On adoption of IFRS 9, the Group reassessed the classification
of its investment portfolio and concluded as under.
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6.2

6.3

(@) investment in equity instruments previously classified as available for sale (AFS), are now measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

(b) investment in term deposit receipts continue to be measured at amortised cost as they are held with the objectives to hold and collect
all contractual cashflows;

(c) investmentin mutual funds continue to be classified under the category fair value through profit or loss as allowed under IFRS 9; and

(d) financial assets other than those mentioned in point (a),(b) & (c), previously classified as loans and receivable are now measured at
amortised cost.

Hence, the classification and measurement of financial assets is not impacted by the adoption of IFRS 9.

Further, the adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Group's accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing
the incurred losses model approach with a forward looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach.

Considering the nature of the financial assets, the Group has applied the standard's simplified approach and has calculated ECL based
on life time ECL. However, it has not resulted in any additional material impact on these consolidated financial statements.

The financial asset subject to credit risk such as trade and other receivables are recoverable within the short period of time. Further, bank
balances and other deposits accounts are held with A1+, A-1+ and A1 rated institutions. Accordingly the ECL impact on such assets is
not material to these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss. There are no changes in classification and
measurement for the Group's financial liabilities.

The new accounting policy in respective of financial instrument and impairment of financial assets is stated in note 6.28 to these consolidated
financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortisation and impairment loss, if any, except for freehold land and capital
work-in-progress which are stated at cost.

Depreciation / amortisation is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method except for leasehold land
which is amortised in equal installments over the lease period and computer equipment and jigs and fixtures which are depreciated /
amortised on straight line method at the rates specified in note 8 to these consolidated financial statements. Depreciation / amortisation
on additions is charged from the month asset is available for use and in case of deletion, up to the month preceding the month of disposal.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are
capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

An item of operating assets and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of operating fixed assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Capital work-in-progress
All expenditures connected to the specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress.
These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.

Intangible assets
These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any.

Costsin relation to intangible assets are only capitalized when it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to that asset will flow to the
Group and the same is amortized applying the straight line method at the rates stated in note 9 to these consolidated financial statements.
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6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

Investment property
Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Depreciation is charged to the statement
of profit or loss on reducing balance method at the rate specified in note 10 to these consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each statement of financial position date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any. Animpairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the assets’ carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Impairment losses are recognized
in the statement of profit or loss.

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Associates

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method, whereby the investment is initially recorded at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate. The consolidated statement of profit or
loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of the operations of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the same in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Joint Venture

Ajoint venture is a type of a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement which exists only when decision about
the relevant activity require the unanimous consent of parties sharing control.

Investment in joint venture is accounted for using equity method of accounting in the statement of financial position at cost plus post-acquisition
changes in the share of net assets of the joint venture, less any impairment in value, if material. The statement of profit or loss reflects the
investor's (Holding Company's) share of the results of operations of the investee (joint venture) after the date of acquisition. If joint venture
uses accounting policies other than those of the Group, adjustments are made to conform the joint venture's policies to those of the Group,
if the impact is considered material.

Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued at lower of cost, determined using weighted average method, and net realisable value, less provision for obselete items
(if any). ltems in transit are valued at cost comprising purchase price, freight value and other charges incurred thereon upto the reporting
date. Provision is made for items which are obsolete and slow moving and is determined based on management estimate regarding their
future usability.

Stock-in-trade
Stock-in-trade, except goods-in-transit, is stated at the lower of cost or Net Realisable Value (NRV) determined as follows:

Raw and packing materials
Purchase cost on weighted moving average basis.

Work-in-process
Cost of materials, labour cost and appropriate production overheads.

Finished goods
Cost of materials, labour cost and appropriate production overheads.

Goods-in-transit are valued at cost comprising purchase price, freight value and other charges incurred thereon upto the reporting date.

NRV signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete items as and when identified.
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6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

Trade debts and other receivables

These are recognized and carried at original invoice amount being the fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Provision
is made on the basis of lifetime ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the trade debts and other receivables.
Bad debts are written off when considered irrecoverable.

Exchange gains or losses arising in respect of trade debts and other receivables in foreign currency are added to their respective carrying
amounts.

Loans, advances, deposits and short term prepayments

These are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. Subsequent to initial recognition, assessment is
made at each statement of financial position date to determine whether there is an indication that a financial asset or group of assets may
be impaired. If such indication exists, the estimated recoverable amount of that asset or group of assets is determined and any impairment
loss is recognised for the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying value.

ljarah rentals
ljarah payments for assets under ljarah (lease) agreements are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight line
basis over the ljarah term.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, bank balances and short-term investments
with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition net of short-term borrowings. The cash and cash equivalents are readily
convertible to known amount of cash and are therefore subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Taxation

(@) Current

The charge for current taxation in respect of certain income streams of the Group is based on Final Tax Regime at the applicable tax rates
and remaining income streams at current rate of taxation under the normal tax regime after taking into account tax credits and rebates
available, if any, 1% of turnover or 17% alternate corporate tax, whichever is higher. The Group had also availed Group tax relief under the
provisions of Section 59AA and 59B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 as explained in note 29 to these consolidated financial statements.

(o) Deferred
Deferred tax is provided using the statement of financial position liability method, on all temporary differences at the statement of financial
position date between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each statement of financial position date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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6.16

617

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

Unclaimed dividend
Dividend declared and remain unpaid from the date it is due and payable.

Unpaid dividend
Dividend declared and remain unpaid for the period of 3 years from the date it is due and payable.

Trade and other payables
Liabilities for trade and other payable are carried at amortised cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for
goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Group.

Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective
liabilities.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer,
a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when
there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group;or

there is a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measure with sufficient reliability.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of assets and incurred during the period in connection
with the activities necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are capitalised as a part of the cost of related asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Staff retirement benefits

Defined Contribution plan

Provident fund

The Group operates a recognised provident fund for its permanent employees. Equal monthly contributions are made to the fund by the
Group and the employees in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The Group has no further obligation once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions made by the Group are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

Retirement benefit fund
The Group operates an approved funded scheme for retirement benefits for all employees on the basis of defined contribution made by
the Group on attaining the retirement age with a minimum qualifying period of ten years which is managed by a Trust.

Compensated absences
Accrual is made for employees’ compensated absences on the basis of accumulated leaves and the last drawn pay. No actuarial valuation
of compensated absences is carried out as the management considers that the financial impact is not material.

Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised in the statement of financial position where the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past event,it is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect current
best estimate.
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6.25

6.26

6.27

6.28

Warranty obligations

The Group recognizes the estimated liability to repair or replace products under warranty at the statement of financial position date. These
are recognised when the product is sold or service provided to the customer. Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial
estimate of warranty-related costs is reviewed annually and adjusted, if required.

Revenue recognition
During the year, the Group has adopted IFRS 15 which became applicable on July 01, 2018. This has resulted in change in accounting
policies of the Group for revenue recognition. The changes are discussed in note 6.1 to these consolidated financial statements.

Revenue is recognised at amounts that reflect the consideration that the Group expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and is recognised when control
of goods have passed to the customer which coincide with the dispatch of goods to the customers. The normal credit period ranges
between 30 to 75 days.

Other income
Other income is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and amount can be measured
reliably. Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised on the following basis:

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.
Interest on Term Deposit Receipts is recognised on constant rate of return to maturity.
Interest on bank deposits are recognised on accrual basis.

Rental income is accounted for on a accrual basis over the lease term.

Gain on disposal is recognised at the time of disposal of operating fixed assets.

Scrap sales are recognised on an accrual basis.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined. Exchange gains or losses are included in statement of profit or loss of the current period.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

i) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Under IFRS 9 Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition , as subsequently measured at following:
(@) atamortised cost

(o) at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); and

(c) atfair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the
business model for managing them.

(@) Atamortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised if both of the following conditions are met:
The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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(b) At fair value through other comprehensive income
A debt instrument is measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling; and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Oninitial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in the investment's fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-byinvestment basis. The Group has irrevocably elected to
carry its quoted investments in equity instruments under this category.

(c) At fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through
profit orloss, irrespective of the business model. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured
at fair value, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised
cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that is initially measured at the transaction price)
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

Susbequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement , financial assets are classified into following categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity
instruments); and

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at Fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCl is recycled
to profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses (equity instruments)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss.
Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.
removed from the Group’s statement of financial position) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
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(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b)  the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass through arrangement, it evaluates
if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of
the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model. The new impairment model applies to
financial assets measured at amortised cost, contract assets and debt investments at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Loss allowances for
financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the respective asset.

The Group uses the standard’s simplified approach and calculates ECL based on life time ECL on its financial assets. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the financial assets and the economic environment.

i) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Allfinancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss. Financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if
the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost
After initial recognition, borrowings and payables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amorized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in profit or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for

at least twelve months after the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of borrowings in foreign currency are
added to the carrying amount of the borrowing.
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6.29

6.30

6.31

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

iy Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as Chief Executive of the Group.

Research and development expenditure

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense when incurred. Costs incurred on development projects are recognised as intangible
assets to the extent that such expenditure is expected to generate future economic benefits. Other development expenditure is recognised
as an expense when incurred.

Dividends and appropriation to reserves

The Group recognises a liability for dividend to equity holder when it is authorized as per corporate laws in Pakistan. The transfer of reserves
within the equity are recognized when these are approved as per the applicable laws.
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7. STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be
effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation:
Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or after)
Standard or Interpretation

IFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Amendments) 01 January 2020
IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Previously held interests in a joint operation 01 January 2019
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4

Insurance Contracts (Amendments) 01 July 2019
IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments) 01 January 2019

IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements and IAS 28 Investment in Associates and
Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture (Amendment) Not yet finalised

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Previously held interests in a joint operation 01 January 2019

IFRS 16 Leases 01 January 2019

IAS 1/1AS 8 Definition of Material (Amendments) 01 January 2020
IAS 12 Income Taxes: Income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments

classified as equity 01 January 2019

IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments) 01 January 2019

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation 01 January 2019

IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments) 01 January 2019

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 01 January 2019

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements
in the period of initial application except for IFRS 16 - 'Leases'. The Group is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards have also been issued by the IASB
in December 2017. Such improvements are generally effective for annual reporting period beginning on or after January 01, 2019. The
Group expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements
in the period of initial application.

The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual Framework) in March 2018 which is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020 for preparers of consolidated financial statements who develop accounting
policies based on the Conceptual Framework. The revised Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts override
those in any standard or any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist IASB in developing
standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to
understand and interpret the standards.

Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in

Pakistan.
Effective date
(annual periods
Standard or Interpretation beginning on or after)
IFRS 1 First time adoption of IFRSs January 01, 2004
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 01, 2016
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2021

The Group expects that above new standards will not have any material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements in the
period of initial application.
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8.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets
Capital work-in-progress

Note

8.1
8.5

2019 2018

3,224,658 1,634,660
140,547 413,068
3,365,205 1,947,728
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8.2 Operating fixed assets include fully depreciated assets amounting to Rs. 265.417 million (2018: Rs. 725.279 million). < ‘8 o o~ 2 2y
(] 0 — [~
c O <t = A o © o A -
- . . poy Lo [©XNe)] < Lo ~ O ©
8.3 The depreciation / amortization charge for the year has been allocated as follows: 5 Q g 'c;_ ~ 8 ?: c %
Note 2019 2018 oS - T Al o 2 S
-------- (Rupees in ‘000”)-—— < "é § % érg L > g § §
=z [2) 1 ~ ! ~ 1 L L - - - -
Clostlof ;ales . 34 302,507 210,209 o) S 2 2 2oL o G| = o Sl
Distribution and selling expenses 35 2,053 1,986 E S Q | o) N 2|
Administrative expenses 36 14,974 21,412 N o A i '% © ©
319,534 233,607 T °8 !
% B = 9 N~ (SO oy — N~ ©
© © o O [lp) 1e) )
8.4 The following operating fixed assets were disposed off during the year having written down value in excess of < % g = = X = > ‘,Q‘ Q < 1 © "8 —
o 0 To 3 =2 = e] ®» oo @ o
Rs. 5 million: Accum- L §5€ ¢ z o —
Q
ulated Written Sales é " @ 2
depre- down proce- Gain/ S o T 2 g >
‘0 c
Particulars Cost ciation value eds (loss) Mode of disposal Particulars of buyers 8 % 5
----------------- (RUPEES iN *000)-—rrmmmrememmemen > = ©
2019 2w o)) N~ © (o)) 2
Factory building 19,028 6,673 12,355 - (12,355) Asset written off Not applicable S5 8 % ' 8 % g
® € = = =
05 — o
<° O
Note 2019 2018 = o o 2
-------- (Rupees in ‘000’)---—- £ IO 2
8.5 Capital Work-In-Progress = © °
Civil Works 41,258 325,184 ©
Plant and machinery 84,362 40,118 g o N 3= o N S
Furniture and fittings 1,379 49 5 S oo N T T
. T o~ A ~ > I~ Q o o
Vehicles - 3,190 08 5 2 ~ a
Office and mills equipment 3,391 1,349 < S % 8
Computer Equipment 7,082 5,881 8 ! o 9 : 2 o
Jigs and fixtures 3,075 37,297 e p ) ) = §
140,547 413,068 3 § < >
0 5 © €
o o o
H e i H ~ s — o —
8.6 Details of the Group's immovable fixed assets — 25 = = 2 o = s
Building 0 S! ® &% |af o © 3
g Fi & sr |gl ¢ ke =
Land Area Covered Area O 2 | = o
i (@]
S. No. Location (square yards) (square feet) i % ©
1 Thal Limited (Jute Division) , D.G. Khan Road, Muzaffargarh, Punjab 862 647 g1 2 B - ' 3 2
2 Plot #448 & 449 Sundar Industrial Estate Raiwin Road, Lahore, Punjab. 8 39 "@ i b2 2
3 Plot 1, 2, 25 & 26 Sector 22 Korangi Industral Area Karachi, Sindh. 51 229 |‘_£ f *GEJ
4 DSU-14 sector Il Downstream Industrail estate Bin Qasim, Karachi, Sindh. 24 32 3 ks @
5 Shop number 6, Clifton Pride, G -3/18, Clifton, Karachi, Sindh. 0.50 0.50 %’0‘2 Le) o Ny o 3 ” g' ) S
6 Plot # SP-C-I North Western Industrial Zone, Port Qasim Authority, Karachi, Sindh. 21 55 % Q = S)) z- NG = 3 S L E
7 Survey No. 148/1, Abyssinia Lines, Mubarak Shaheed Rd. Saddar , Karachi, Sindh. - 216 <‘f’ 5' . S ~ & :§ gqé ! E 5
8 Plot # 35, 36, 37, 38, 39, 39A, 40, 40A, 41, 42, 69, 69A, 70 and 71, Zila Moza Pathra, C£ 8_) 3 o 2 L o
Hub, Balochistan 92 211 i 5 o3 8 ?5 2
9 Plot C-49-58, Sector C, Hub Industrial Area. Hub, Balochistan 6 12 % ® N S = 5 = E éﬁ
10 Plot # 38, Road # 3, Industrial Estate, Gadoon Amazai, Swabi, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa. 19 40 < <23 o g % % -8 - g o
L = 2 [0) 2 Z S <
— S wc > o W3 x
a o £ 253 2 S28%
(O] 2 5 © O v = + % = T 2
= 5823 5%63¢ 2 053
< €592 o o o %= E S Wox
S g8oc 2 % 2835 § 258§
< ®» 3. & & Fon< r £ 9506
% > > ¢
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10.1.2 Details of the Group's immovable fixed assets
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1

Pakistan), Punjab.

NA-Class 190-219, OKEWARI Near Safari Park, University Road, Karachi, Sindh

Industrial Property bearing khewat number 861, 862, 890, 895, 905, khatooni
Near Star Gate, Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi, Sindh.

number 1086,1087,1116, 1121,1133, Mouza Taraf Ravi, Multan, Punjab.
Main Air Port Road, DHA, Near Divine Garden Scheme, Lahore, Punjab.

G-Block, Link Road, Model Town, Lahore, Punjab.

75 Ravi Road, Lahore (Near Minar-e
Plot 1-A, I-11/4 adjacent Railway Carriage Factory, Islamabad.

2 km. Thokar Niaz Baig, Multan Road, Lahore, Punjab.
Main Sargodha Road, Adjacent FDA City, Faisalabad, Punjab.

D-22, Manghopir Road, S.I.T.E, Karachi, Sindh.

S.No. Location
10

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
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11. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

Investment in associates - stated as per
equity method

Quoted associates

Indus Motor Company Limited

Opening balance

Share of profit - net of tax

Remeasurement loss of post employment
benefit obligation - net of tax

Dividend received during the period

[Market value Rs. 5,887.169 million
(2018: Rs. 6,950.939 million)]

Habib Insurance Company Limited

Opening balance

Share of profit - net of tax

Share of actuarial (loss)/ gains on
remeasurement of defined benefit
plan - net of tax

Dividend received during the period

[Market value Rs. 51.676 million
(2018: Rs.68.825 million)]

Agriauto Industries Limited
Opening balance

Share of profit - net of tax

Dividend received during the period

[Market value Rs. 423.035 million
(2018: Rs. 624.102 million)

Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Limited
Opening balance

Share of profit - net of tax

Dividend received during the period

[Market value Rs. 32.121 million
(2018: Rs. 65.740 million)]

Un-quoted associates

Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company
Limited (SECMC)

Opening balance

Investment made during the year

Share of profit - net of tax
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2019

Note Holding
%

11.2&11.3

6.22

2,234,023

4.63

Rupees
in '000

2,029,092
853,259

(403)
(647,925)

64,704
4,750

(9,634)
(4,302)

7.35

55,5618

331,545
72,716
(24,329)

1.30

379,932

23,884
4,227
(1,561)

2,696,023

11.6 11.9

26,550

1,398,011
562,608
6.273

1,966,892

2018

Holding
%

6.22

2,029,092

4.63

Rupees
in '000

1,769,481
895,430

(119)
(635,700)

39,394
9,110

20,5602
(4,302)

7.35

64,704

201,714
64,160
(24,329)

1.30

331,645

22,747
1137

2,449,225

23,884

Joint Ventures

ThalNova Power Thar (Private)
Limited (TNPTPL)

Opening balance

Investment made during the year

Share of profit / (loss) - net of tax

TOTAL OF ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE

Other investments - at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Quoted - at fair value

Habib Sugar Mills Limited

GlaxoSmithKline (Pakistan) Limited

GlaxoSmithKline Healthcare (Pakistan) Limited

Dynea Pakistan Limited

Allied Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

TPL Properties Limited

Un-Quoted - at cost
Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company Limited

TOTAL

2019

Holding
%

26

Rupees
in '000

558,802
30,921
87

589,810

5,252,725

2,556,702

55,447
160

97
57,181
19,095
7,376
9,923

5,402,004

149,279

2018

Holding Rupees
% in '000

50

312,462
275,000
(28,660)
558,802
568,802

3,008,027

75,610
278

203
103,839
18,755
10,839
9,300
218,824

11.90 1,398,011

4,624,862
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111

11.3

1.4

Share of net profit / (loss) of associates and joint venture - after tax

2019 2018
———————— (Rupees in ‘000)--------
Associates
Indus Motor Company Limited 853,259 895,430
Habib Insurance Company Limited 4,750 9,110
Agriauto Industries Limited 72,716 64,160
Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited 4,227 1,137
Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company Limited 6,273 -
941,225 969,837
Joint venture
ThalNova Power Thar (Private) Limited 87 (28,660)
941,312 Q41177

Although the Group has less than 20% equity interest in all its associates, the management believes that significant influence
over these associates exists by virtue of Group’s representation on the Board of Directors of the respective companies.

As the financial statements of same associates were not available at each reporting period of the Group, therefore the Group
uses the financial statements of the associates with a lag of three months for applying the equity method of accounting.

The summarised financial information of the associated companies and joint venture, based on the audited / un-audited financial
statements is as follows:

2019
Total Total Profit / (loss)
Assets Liabilities Revenues after tax
(Rupees in ‘000)
March 31, 2019
Associates
Indus Motor Company Limited 66,787,366 27,842,315 158,360,564 13,714,975
Agriauto Industries Limited 5,977,128 814,038 9,815,657 989,900
June 30, 2019
Associates
Habib Insurance Company Limited 3,343,692 1,988,776 585,377 102,586
Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited 6,062,423 3,948,804 6,717,608 324,082
Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company Limited 79,928,693 62,490,516 - 52,713
Joint venture
ThalNova Power Thar (Private) Limited 6,841,482 162,956 - 20,083
2018
Total Total Profit / (loss)
Assets Liabilities Revenues after tax

March 31, 2018
Associates
Indus Motor Company Limited 76,526,386 41,357,034 128,115,928 14,392,812
Habib Insurance Company Limited 3,260,144 1,706,843 519,704 196,756
Agriauto Industries Limited 5,253,468 749,078 7,827,450 873,425
Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited 5,555,169 3,645,972 5,431,461 87,185
June 30, 2018
Joint venture
ThalNova Power Thar (Private) Limited 1,295,001 177,396 - (57,318)
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12.

1241

13.

1341

14.

15.

2019 2018

Share in contingent liabilities of associated companies 242,449 115,146

Share in commitments of associated companies 1,846,674 1,166,159

Represents investment in an associate established for the construction of coal mine. Atlhough the Holding Company has less
than 20% equity interest in the associate, the management believes that it has significant influence due to the contractual
agreement with the shareholders. The Holding Company undertook to invest USD 24.3 million in PKR equivalent and upto the
statement of financial position date it has invested Rs. 1,960.619 million acquiring 132,295,445 ordinary shares having face
value of Rs. 10 each, at a price of Rs. 14.82 per share. The balance commitment of the investment is USD 6.81 million.

Represents 26% (2018: 50%) equity interest in ThalNova Power Thar (Private) Limited (TNPTL) comprising 61,842,100 shares
(2018: shares 58,749,995) at Rs. 10/- each. TNPTL is developing a 330 MV coal based project.

During the year, TNPTL has executed Shareholder Agreement (SHA) with the Group and other new shareholders of TNPTL
which resulted in dilution of the Group's shareholding from 50% to 26% in TNPTL. The Financial Close of TNPTL is expected
no later than December 31, 2019 and Commercial Operation on or before March 31, 2021 as per the extended Financial Close
deadline approved by Private Power Infrastructure Board.

Note 2019 2018

LONG-TERM LOANS - secured, considered good

Employees
Interest free loans 9,048 15,5677
Current portion 19 (5,052) (6,529)

121 3,996 9,048

The loan is secured against mortgage of property. The maximum aggregate amount due from employees at the end of any
month during the year was Rs. 11.655 million (2018: Rs. 13.189 million). During, the year an amount of Rs. 7.585 million was
repaid to the Holding Company.

2019 2018

LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

Security deposits 12,790 11,066
Utilities 7,267 7,237
Others 3,131 3,130

1341 23,188 21,433

These deposits are interest free.

LONG TERM PREPAYMENT

Represents unamortised portion of advance rent paid to Army Welfare Trust for the lease of land.
2019 2018

DEFERRED TAX ASSET - net

Deferred tax asset arising:

In respect of provisions 400,799 291,985
Deferred tax liability arising:

Due to investment in associates (20,171) -

Due to accelerated tax depreciation allowance (240,832 (100,840)

(261,003) (100,840)

139,796 191,145
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Note 2019 2018

16. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores
- Inhand 31,213 34,269
- Intransit - 4,030
&il,21E 38,299
Spares 103,085 98,952
Loose tools 205 214
134,503 137,465
17. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material
- Inhand 1741 4,367,020 2,645,618
- Intransit 520,207 648,361
4,887,227 3,293,979
Work-in-process 246,731 226,833

Finished goods
- Inhand 654,031 526,335
- Intransit 47 -
654,078 526,335
17.2 5,788,036 4,047,147

171 Raw materials amounting to Rs. 6.422 million (2018: Rs. 8.342 million) are held with the sub-contractors.

17.2 Includes items amounting to Rs. 183.123 million (2018: Rs. 38.284 million) carried at net realisable value. [Cost Rs. 276.755
million (2018: Rs. 93.422 million)].

18. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Considered good 18.1 & 18.2 2,484,650 1,610,974
Allowance for expected credit losses 18.3 (53,210) (17,888)
2,431,440 1,593,086

18.1 This includes amount due from the following associates / related parties:

Indus Motor Company Limited 686,745 526,107
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited = 2,015
Agriauto Industries Limited 307 538
Indus Lands (Pvt.) Ltd. 115 -
Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited 18,330 23,076

705,497 551,736

18.2 The maximum aggregate amount due from the related parties at the end of any month during the year outstanding was Rs.
934.767 million (2018: Rs. 806.324 million)

18.3 Movement - Allowances for expected credit losses

Balance at the beginning of the year 17,888 16,124
Charge for the year 35 36,356 2,905
Bad debts written off (1,034) (1,141)
Balance at the end of the year 53,210 17,888
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19.

1941

19.2

19.3

20.

201

20.2

21.

211

21.2

Note 2019 2018

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans
Considered good - secured

Employees - interest free 191 - 20,000
Current portion of long-term loans to employees 12 & 19.2 5,052 6,529
5,052 26,529

Advances - considered good - unsecured
Suppliers 19,606 54,579
Employees 3,566 5,586
19.8 23,172 60,165
28,224 86,694

The loan is secured against mortgage of properties. The maximum aggregate amount due from employees at the end of any
month during the year was Rs. 12 million (2018: Rs. 20 million). During the year an amount of Rs 20 million was repaid to the
Holding Company.

The maximum aggregate amount due from employees at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 3.996 million (2018:
Rs. 6.529 million). During the year, an amount of Rs. 2.533 million was repaid to the Holding Company.

These advances are interest free.
2019 2018

TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Trade deposits

Tender / performance guarantee 283,690 78,710
Margin against letter of credit 255,525 2,227
Deposit against custom duty 7,182 7,182
Security deposits 4,380 -
Container deposits 6,977 24,065
2041 297,754 112,184

Short-term prepayments
Rent 6,663 7,297
Insurance 20.2 13,804 14,662
Others 13,294 16,967
33,761 38,926
31516 151,110

These deposits are interest free.

This includes prepayments amounting to Rs. 10.271 million (2018: 11.735 million) made to Habib Insurance Company Limited,
a related party.

2019 2018

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Duty drawback 2,971 2,106
Insurance claims - 7
Others 211 80,588 47,498
83,559 49,611

This includes receivable from the following associates / related parties:
Indus Motor Company Limited 3,746 17,286
Agriautos Industries Limited 1,464 4
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 1,452 10
Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited 1,104 8,484
7,766 25,784

The maximum aggregate amount due from related parties at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 24.468 million
(2018: Rs. 31.272 million).
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22.

221

22.2

22.3

22.4

23.

2341

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
At amortised cost

Term Deposit Receipts

Accrued interest

Treasury Bills
Accrued interest

At fair value through profit or loss
NAFA Government Securities Liquidity Fund
NAFA Money Market Fund
Alfalah GHP Income Fund
ALFALAH Money Market Fund
Atlas Money Markety Fund

UBL Liquidity Plus Fund

MCB Cash Optimizer Fund

HBL Cash Fund

HBL Money Market Fund

ABL Cash Fund

Al-Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)

Note

221 &22.3
18,725

22.2&22.3

22.4

2019

2018

2,284,949 1,116,137
- 12,102
2,303,674 1,128,239
784,021 1,865,695
4,618 16,155
788,639 1,881,850

- 821,174
1,239,029 1,006,413
24,450 23,101
306,697 177,873
209,454 162,934
334,453 931,623
205,648 479,201
868,912 1,248,634
966 904
956,782 1,207,291
61,021 -
250,000 -
4,457,412 6,059,148
7,549,725 9,069,237

These include deposits amounting to Rs. 10 million (2018: Rs. 579.843 million) with Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited, a related
party These deposits carry interest rate ranging from 5.5% to 14% (2018: 4.35% to 6.5%) per annum and having maturity
ranging from July 15, 2019 to October 10, 2019. Included in the above investment, Rs. 584.949 million (2018: Rs. 538.137
million) is under lien against a letter of guarantee issued by the banks on behalf of the Group.

These carry interest rate ranging from 11.00% to 12.64% (2018: 6.22% to 6.44%) per annum and having maturity latest by

August 15, 2019

Includes short-term investments amounting to Rs. 2,832.441 million (2018: Rs. 2,789.394 million) having maturity up to three

months.

These represent participation in private placement of TFCs carrying interest rate at the rate of 3 month KIBOR + 1.6% per

annum. The issue of TFCs is expected by September 2019.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand

Bank balances
Current accounts
Deposit accounts
Saving accounts

Note

231
23.2
23.3

2019

2018

626 2,399
158,861 366,020
402,817 407,505
506,296 549,976

1,067,974 1,323,501
1,068,600 1,325,900

These include an amount of Rs. 80.108 million (2018: Rs. 51.022 million) maintained with Habib Metropolitan Bank, a related

party.
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28.2 These include an amount of Rs. 607.046 million (2018: Rs. 421.220 million) maintained with Habib Metropolitan Bank, a related

23.3

24.

241

24.2

24.3.

24.4.

25.

26.

27.

party, and carry markup at the rates ranging from 5% to 10.75% (2018: 4.25 % to 5.75%) per annum.

These include an amount of Rs. 52.266 million (2018: Rs. 345.164 million) maintained with Habib Metropolitan Bank, and carry

markup at the rate of 10% to 10.25% (2018: 4.25%) per annum.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized Capital

The Holding Company has authorised capital of 200 million ordinary shares of Rs. 5/- each amounting to Rs. 1,000 million.

Issued, Subscribed and paid-up capital

2019 2018
Number of ordinary
shares of Rs. 5/- each

5,149,850 5,149,850 Fully paid in cash
64,640,390 64,640,390 Issued as fully paid bonus shares
Shares issued under the Scheme of
11,239,669 11,239,669 Arrangements for Amalgamation
81,029,909 81,029,909

2019 2018
—————— (Rupees in ‘000)------
25,750 25,750
323,202 323,202
56,198 56,198
405,150 405,150

As at 30 June 2019, 7,026,267 (2018: 7,013,869).ordinary shares are held by related parties of the Holding Company.

Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to the shareholding.

RESERVES
Capital reserves
Reserve on merger of former Pakistan Jute and
Synthetics Limited and former Thal Jute Mills Limited
Premium on issue of share capital
Reserve on merger of former Pakistan Paper Sack
Corporation Limited and former Khyber Papers (Private) Limited

Revenue reserves
General reserve

Unappropriated profit

Gain on revaluation of equity investments held at fair value through OCI
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
Habib Metro Pakistan (Private) Limited

Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private) Limited

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Represents security deposits in respect of investments properties rented out by a subsidiary company and includes deposits

with the following related parties:

Note

2019

2018

13,240 13,240
12,225 12,225
42,464 42,464
67,929 67,929

15,165,374 13,573,374
7,240,431 6,152,487

22,405,805 19,725,861
94,634 164,179

22,568,368 19,957,969

6,118,133 6,025,516
478,349 458,566
6,596,482 6,484,082
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28.

281

28.2

28.3

28.4

28.5

- Indus Motor Company Limited
- METRO Habib Cash and Carry Pakistan (Private) Limited
- Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors

Accrued liabilities

Custom duty payable

Initial technical fee payable

Salaries payable

Warranty obligations

Royalty payable

Payable to provident fund

Payable to retirement benefit fund

Security deposits

Advance from customer (Contract liabilities)
Advance against sale of land

Other liabilities

This includes amounts due to related parties:
Habib Insurance Company Limited

Indus Motor Company Limited

Metro Habib Cash & Carry (Private) Limited

This includes amounts due to the following related party:

Habib Insurance Company Limited

Warranty obligations

Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge for the year

Claims paid during the year
Balance at end of the year

Royalty payable

Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge for the year

Paid during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Other liabilities

Tax deducted at source

Employees Old-Age Benefits Institution (EOBI)
Workers' profit participation fund

Workers' welfare fund

Provision for severance cost

Others
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Note

281
28.2

28.3
28.4

28.5

34

33

28.6

2019 2018
———————— (Rupees in ‘000)--—--—-—--

3,820 3,820
289,506 289,506
1,463 755
294,789 294,081
710,918 667,352
1,079,417 1,211,091
75,644 51,176
71,411 -
23,104 5,627
510,852 415,041
115,804 91,999
1,695 379
8,533 7117
2,383 1,745
9,104 21,674

- 3,000
271,580 256,528
2,880,445 2,732,729
851 4,752
3,009 1,538
9,019 807
12,879 7,097
108 4,370
415,041 336,128
110,634 93,099
(502,571) (14,186)
23,104 415,041
91,999 166,722
191,373 168,211
227,480 (232,934)
510,852 91,999
4,001 8,242
62,652 47,896
6,140 1,063
175,548 168,672
2,927 2,927
20,312 27,728
271,580 256,528

28.6

29.

2941

29.2

29.3

30.

Note 2019 2018

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)

Payable to WPPF at the beginning of the year 1,063 4,739
Interest on funds utilised in the Company's business 224 -
Allocation for the current year 36 (226,479) (211,208)

(225,192) (206,469)
Paid during the year 281,862 207,532
Payable to WPPF at the end of the year 6,140 1,063

INCOME TAX - net

Group Tax Relief adjustments 29.1 632,681 593,466
Group Taxation adjustments 29.2 (15,645) 512
Income tax provision less tax payments — net 29.3 (707,742) (690,901)

(90,706) (96,923)

In terms of the provisions of Section 59B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance), a subsidiary company may
surrender its tax losses in favour of its holding company for set off against the income of its holding company subject to certain
conditions as prescribed under the Ordinance.

Accordingly, the Holding Company adjusted its tax liabilities for the tax years 2008-2010 by acquiring the losses of its subsidiary
company and consequently an aggregate sum of Rs. 632.681 million equivalent to the tax value of the losses acquired has
been paid to the subsidiary company.

The original assessments of the Holding Company for the tax years 2008 to 2010 were amended under Section 122(5A) of the
Ordinance by the tax authorities by disallowing Group Relief claimed by the Holding Company under Section 59B of the
Ordinance aggregating to Rs. 593.466 million. The Holding Company preferred appeals against the said amended assessments
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) who vide his orders dated 10th June 2011 and 11th July 2011 has held
that the Holding Company is entitled to Group Relief under section 59B of the Ordinance. However, the tax department filed
an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeal) (CIR) Order.
The ATIR has passed an order in favour of the Holding Company for the above tax years; the Tax department filed reference
application / appeal against the order of ATIR before the Sindh High Court and with the Chairman ATIR which are under the
process of hearings.

In addition to the above, the Holding Company has decided to acquire tax losses incurred by Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private)
Limited (TBPK) during the year amounting to Rs. 39.215 million for set off against its tax liability. The amount of tax losses
acquired are yet to be paid to the subsidiary company

In terms of the provision of Section 59AA of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance), the Company, MHPL and A-One
have irrevocably opted to be taxed as one fiscal unit with effect from tax year 2017. Accordingly, the tax loss of MHPL for the
tax year 2019 has been adjusted against the taxable income of the Company which resulted in a reduction of tax liability of
Rs. 2.966 million (2018: Rs. 5.653 million) for the current year. Moreover, the tax income transferred by A-One under group
taxation opted by the subsidiary company amounted to Rs. 18.611 million (2018: Rs. 5.141 million).

Includes adjustment of tax challans acquired from MHPL and A-One Enterprises (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 0.110 million
(2018: Rs. 0.291 million) and Rs. 14.525 million (2018: Rs.2.651 million) respectively.

Note 2019 2018

SHORT-TERM RUNNING FINANCE - Secured

Related party - 600

Others 274,131 -
30.1 274131 600
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3041

31.

311

31.1.1

311.2

3113

31.2

31.21

3122 Letters of credit outstanding for raw material and spares. 684,297

311.3

3124 Commitments in respect of capital expenditure

176 |

Represents utilized portion of available limits of the running finance facilities amount to Rs. 2,793 million (2018: Rs. 2,498
million). The facilities carry mark-up ranges at rates ranging from one month to three months’ KIBOR plus spreads of 0.5% to
0.75% (2018: 0.5% to 0.75%) per annum. The facilities are secured by way of joint pari passu charge by way of hypothecation
over the Group’s stock-in-trade, book debts and fixed assets. These facilities have maturity till 31 October 2021.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies
The Group relief tax contingency is disclosed in note 29.1 to these consolidated financial statements.

Officer Inland Revenue ("OIR") initiated the proceedings for monitoring of withholding taxes of MHPL vide show cause notice on 06
April 2016. The exparte under Section 161/205/182(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 were passed on 14 April 2016 and tax
of Rs. 1.81 billion for the tax years from 2011 to 2014, was determined inclusive of default surcharge and penalty. MHPL being
aggrieved with the order of Assessing Officer, filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals)through combined
appellate order dated 23 May 2016 for the tax years 2011 to 2014 maintained the decision of OIR.

MHPL being aggreived with order of the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals), filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue (ATIR), which by an order dated 20 June 2016 annulled the orders of OIR and Commissioner Inland Revenue
(Appeals) and also deleted the consequential default surcharge and penalty.

Futher, during the year 2017, OIR challenged the order of the ATIR in the Honorable High Court of Sindh (HCS) and the case
is still pending before the Honourable High Court of Sindh. The management is of the opinion that the position of MHPL is
sound on technical basis and eventual outcome ought to be in favour of the Company. Pending the resolution of the matters
stated above, no provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

Officer Inland Revenue ("OIR") initiated the proceedings for monitoring of withholding taxes vide show cause notice on 05 April
2016 in respect of tax year 2010. This show cause notice was challenged by the MHPL in The Honorable High Court of Sindh
through Suit No. 1187 of 2016 on merit.

In response, the honorable High Court of Sindh passed an interim order on 16 May 2016 and directed no action be taken in
pursuance of such period as per Court's order. Moreover, no further proceedings were initited till the year-end and the
managment has withdrawn the case during the current year.

Note 2019 2018
Commitments

Post dated cheques have been issued to Collector of Custom in respect
of differential duty between commercial and concessional rate of duty,
duty and tax remission on exports and safe transport requirement
under various SROs. 141,811 24,545

1,723,577

Letter of guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the company in respect

of financial commitments of the Group. 1,418,898 1,437,701

1,049,042 7,515

Thal Limited

3125

2019 2018

Commitments for rentals under ljarah (Lease) agreements

Within one year 22,573 16,084

Later one year but not later than five years 20,422 13,103
42,995 29,187

Represent ljarah (lease) agreement entered into with a Modaraba in respect of vehicles. Total ljarah payments due under the
agreements are Rs. 42.995 million and are payable in monthly installments latest by June, 2022. These commitments are
secured by on-demand promissory notes of Rs. 81.795 million.

31.2.6 The Group has obtained three pieces for land for its stores under operating lease agreements of 30 to 59 years. The leases

3127

32.

have varying terms, escalation clauses, contingent rent arrangements and renewal rights. The amounts of future payments
under operating leases and the period in which these payments will become due are as follows:

2019 2018
———————— (Rupees in ‘000)--—-----
Not later than one year 81,414 79,960
Later than one year but not later than five years 431,013 422,818
Later than five years 1,873,712 1,963,321
2,386,139 2,466,099

Commitment in respect of investment is disclosed in note 11.5 to these consolidated financial statements.

REVENUE - net

Note 2018 2017
———————— (Rupees in ‘000)--------

Export sales 32.1 486,907 436,245
Local sales 32.2 26,700,426 22,672,399
27,187,333 23,108,644

Less:
Sales tax 3,861,997 3,025,707
Sales discount 1,116 2,602
3,863,113 3,028,309
23,324,220 20,080,335

Add:
Service income 216,210 220,828
23,540,430 20,301,163

Add:
Duty drawback 4,211 6,908
23,544,641 20,308,071
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32.1 Represents sales made to the following geographical regions:

Australia
Chile

Egypt
Estonia

Italy

Jordan
Kuwait

Saudi Arabia
Spain

Turkey
United Arab Emirates
Afghanistan
Bangladesh
Malaysia
Oman
Switzerland
Turkmenistan
Others

2019

2018

6,649 26,576
3,797 =
180,047 11,922
1,090 1,152
49,673 66,492
8,778 =
1,468 2,998
6,581 =
3,051 762
37,998 9,239
205,386 135,329
= 5,967

= 2,608

= 5,449

= 2,044

= 5,695

= 41,069

3,225 133,775
507,743 451,077

32.2 Export sales are stated net of export related freight and other expenses of Rs. 20.836 million (2018: Rs. 14.832 million).

32.3 Local sales are stated net of freight and other expenses of Rs. 113.353 million (2018: Rs. 103.982 million).

178 | Thal Limited

33.

33.1

COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed
Salaries, wages and benefits
Stores and spares consumed
Repairs and maintenance
Power and fuel

Rent, rates and taxes
Vehicle running and maintenance
Insurance

Communication

Travelling and conveyance
Entertainment

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional
Computer accessories
Royalty

Depreciation / amortization
Amortization

Research and development
ljarah rentals

Technical Assistance fee
Others

Work-in-process
Opening
Closing

Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods

Opening stock

Purchases

Closing stock

Raw material consumed
Opening stock
Purchases

Closing stock

Note

3341

28.4
8.3
9.1

2019 2018

16,476,681 13,819,671

1,863,319 1,717,412
238,966 176,156
112,583 134,196
225,478 273,930

9,734 9,925
23,895 18,817
13,771 10,612
12,954 12,274
22,335 18,726

3,695 3,296
11,885 9,382
11,676 14,677
11,683 9,447
191,373 168,211

302,507 210,209

5,498 1,997

9,011 7,146

9,099 10,858

4,286 114

4,872 5,683

19,565,300 16,632,739

226,833 156,863
(246,731) (226,833)
(19,898) (69,970)

19,645,402 16,662,769

526,335 520,378
51,362 63,110
(654,078) (626,335)
(76,381) 57,153

19,469,021 16,619,922

2,645,618 1,926,121
18,198,083 14,539,168
(4,367,020) (2,645,618)
16,476,681 13,819,671
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33.2 Royalty

34.

Party Name Registered Address

Denso Corporation 448-8661 1-1, None
ShowaCho, Kariya-city,
Aichi-Pref., Japan

Furukawa Automotive 1000, Amago, Koura, None
Systems Inukami, Shiga Pref,
522-0242, Japan

Toyota Boshoku Japan 88, kanayama, Shareholder of a
kamekubi-cho Toyotam subsidiary company
Aichi, 470-0395 Japan.

DISTRIBUTION AND SELLING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits

Vehicle running expense
Utilities

Insurance

Rent, rates and taxes
Communication
Advertisement and publicity
Travelling and conveyance
Entertainment

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional
Computer accessories
Research and development
Depreciation / amortization
Amortization

Provision for expected credit loss
Repairs and maintenance
Export expenses

Provision for warranty claims
ljarah rentals

Others
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Relationship with Directors

Note

8.3
9.1
18.3

28.4

2019

2018

96,037 82,991
83,873 74,919
11,463 10,301
191,373 168,211
2019 2018

91,550 76,544
4,962 3,869
1,577 1,676
3,265 1,989
8,484 12,241
2,182 2,338

11,248 11,170
8,635 5,690

419 383
586 405
20 251
822 509
94 190
2,053 1,986
459 29

36,356 2,905
2,630 1,697
6,008 5,216

110,634 93,099
3,017 2,734
683 836
295,684 225,757

35.

351

35.2

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits
Vehicle running expense
Printing and stationery
Rent, rates and taxes
Utilities

Insurance

Entertainment

Subscription
Communication
Advertisement and publicity
Repairs and maintenance
Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional
Computer accessories
Auditors' remuneration
Depreciation / amortization
Amortization

Depreciation on investment property
ljarah rentals

Charity and donations
Directors' Fee & meeting expenses
General contracted services
Others

Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee

Half-yearly review
Taxation services

Other certifications

Out of pocket expenses

Charity and donations

Note

35.1
8.3
9.1

1041

35.2

2019

2018

571,968 584,538
14,771 13,679
4,704 5,684
117,461 117,614
79,542 27,319
2,891 1,158
2,443 2,330
2,030 2,678
4,608 5,663
2,976 6,242
33,719 52,500
20,347 24,094
46,387 73,687
7,016 5,138
6,767 6,747
14,974 21,412
5,494 5,231
235,814 243,843
10,280 9,471
64,846 59,069
2,585 1,990
1,228 3,941
12,510 5,698
1,265,361 1,279,721
4,203 3,924
357 324
273 1,197
1,148 623
786 679
6,767 6,747

Charity and donations include the following donees in whom directors or their spouses are interested:
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2019 2018
-------- (Rupees in ‘000)--------

Name of donee Address of donee Name of directors/spouse
Mohamedali Habib 2nd Floor, House of Habib, Mr. Rafig M. Habib - Trustee
Welfare Trust 3-dinnah Co-operative Housing Mr. Ali S. Habib - Trustee
Society, Block 7/8,
Sharae Faisal, Karachi. 15,020 20,072
Ghulaman-e-Abbas Ghulaman-e-Abbas School, Mr. Rafig M. Habib - Trustee
School Bab-e-Ali, Al-alamdar Building,  Mr. Ali S. Habib - Trustee
Near Lyari Expressway,
Mauripur Road, Karachi 9,000 =

Habib Education Trust 4th floor, United Bank building, Mr. Ali S. Habib - Trustee

I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.  Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib - Trustee 10,000 12,536
Habib University 147, Block 7&8, Banglore Mr. Rafig M. Habib - Trustee
Foundation Cooperative Housing Society, Mr. Ali S. Habib - Trustee
Tipu Sultan Road, Karachi. Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib - Trustee 7,500 5,000
Masoomen Hospital ~ Atmaram Pritamdas Road, Mr. Rafig M. Habib - Trustee 2,000 -
Trust Moosa Lane Miranpir, Karachi.  Mr. Ali S. Habib - Trustee
Anjuman -e- Behbood ABSA School 26-C National Mrs. Rafig M. Habib -
Samat -e- Itefal Highway, Korangi Road, Karachi.  Vice President 32 34
Hussaini Heamotology 43-Rehmat Manzil, Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib - Trustee 96 96
& Oncology Trust Bhurgari Road, Numaish,
Karachi.

35.3 Charity and donations include the following donees to whom donations exceed 10% of total donation or 1 million whichever
is higher other than already disclosed note 35.2 to these consolidated financial statements;

2019 2018
-------- (Rupees in ‘000)--------
Name of donee Name of
directors/spouse
AURA (Al-Umeed Rehabilitation Association) None 1,000 -
HELP None 2,715 1,274
Indus Hospital None 4,000 2,000
Northern Areas Eye Hospital None 1,000 1,000
Patients Aids Foundation None 1,000 -
Shaukat Khanum Memorial Cancer Hospital
and Research Centre None 1,500 -

Sindh Institute of Urology & Transplantation None 1,000 500
Thar Foundation None 2,000 2,000
The Citizens Foundation None 4,714 6,608
The Cooperative Model Town Society None - 5,000

18,929 18,382
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36.

37.

371

38.

OTHER CHARGES

Workers' Profits Participation Fund

Workers' Welfare Fund

Provision for impairment of investment property
Impairment loss on operating fixed assets
Operating fixed assets written off

Loss on disposal of investment property

OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Dividend income
Dynea Pakiatan Limited
Habib Sugar Mills Limited
Allied Bank Limited
Habib Bank Limited
GlaxosmithKline Pakistan Limited
Dividend from mutual funds

Interest on:

Deposit accounts

Term deposit receipts
Government treasury bills

Income from Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)

(Loss)/ gain on revaluation / redemption of investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Liabilities no longer payable written back

Exchange (loss)/ gain - net

Income from non financial assets

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets
Rental income from investment properties
Licence fee, signage and others

Sale of scrap

Claim from suppliers

Others

Note

28.6

8.4
371

2019 2018

231,627 208,057
60,662 59,962
125,807 =
7,563 =
12,355 =
8,531 3,150
446,545 271,159
5,310 3,268
5134 3,267
1,455 1,318
293 358

3 5
428,949 16
441,144 8,232
75,499 50,773
87,897 237,564
187,695 87,156
351,001 375,493
598 =
(83,283) 201,473
2,012 68
(6,861) 1,780
754,701 587,046
38,432 10,933
1,730,413 1,452,812
57,754 189,017
17,788 10,912
21,556 6,525
5,622 7
1,871,465 1,670,206
2,626,166 2,257,252

Includes an amount of Rs. 1,513 million (2018: Rs. 1,452 million) under long term agreements with Metro Habib Cash and Carry
Pakistan (Private) Limited (MHCCP), whereby the immovable properties owned by the Group have been rented out to MHCCP

for its cash & carry store operations at fixed annual rent.

FINANCE COSTS

Mark-up on short-term running finance:
- Related party
- Others

Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Bank charges and guarantee commission

2019 2018

648 182
13,750 39
14,398 221

224 =
10,220 9,985
24,842 10,206
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Note 2019

2018

39. TAXATION
Current 1,487,871 1,395,672
Tax on inter corporate dividend - HMPL 60,435 583,496
Prior 48,700 102,082
Deferred 51,350 (3,594)
3941 1,648,356 1,647,656

39.1 Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit

Profit before taxation and share of profit of associates 4,669,354 4,158,558
Tax at the rate of 25% - 29% (2018: 25% - 30%) 1,353,256 1,247,277
Super tax @ 2% of taxable income 117,538 150,638
1,470,794 1,397,915

Tax effects of:
Income taxed at reduced rates (11,081) (18,620)
Income tax under Final tax regime (197,276) (185,401)
Tax effect of inadmissible items 390,641 303,329
Tax credits (563,422) (52,454)
Prior 48,700 102,887
1,648,356 1,547,656

39.1.1The Holding Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Makro-Habib Pakistan Limited and A-One Enterprises (Private)

Limited, irrevocably opted to be taxed as one fiscal unit in the year 2017 and the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary,

Makro-Habib Pakistan Limited, irrevocably opted to be taxed as one fiscal unit in the year 2016.

39.2 The Group has filed its return of income up to tax year 2018. These are deemed to be assessed in accordance with the

requirements of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

40. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Holding Company which is based on:
2019

Net profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Holding Company 3,681,312

2018

3,171,847

Number of shares
in thousands

Weighted average number of ordinary shares of Rs. 5/- each in issue 81,030 81,030
-------- (Rupees)--—---—---
Basic and diluted earnings per share 44.20 39.14
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41.

42.

Note

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment loss on operating fixed assets

Provision for impairment of investment property

Operating fixed assets written-off

Share of net profit of associates and joint venture - after tax

Finance costs

Interest income

Liabilities no longer payable written back

(Loss)/ Gain on revaluation / redemption of investments at
fair value through profit or loss

Dividend income

Provision for ECL

Provision for retirement benefits

Loss on sale of investment property

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short-term prepayments
Other receivables

Sales tax refundable

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Deferred income

Trade and other payables

Sales tax payable

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 23
Short-term investments 22
Short term running finance 30

2019

2018

5,610,666 5,099,735
566,798 484,707
7,563 -
125,807 -
12,355 -
(941,312) (941,177)
24,842 10,206
(351,091) (375,493)
(2,012) (68)
33,283 (201,489)
(441,144) (8,216)
36,356 2,905
4,901 4,967
8,531 3,150
(38,432) (10,933)
(953,555) (1,081,441)
4,657,111 4,068,294
2,962 (29,560)
(1,740,889) (1,054,814)
(874,710) (501,128)
58,470 (34,707)
(180,405) (62,047)
(33,948) (97,130)
(208,668) (30,263)
(2,977,188) (1,809,649)
(1,667) 3,146
149,728 460,274
(43,241) (8,078)
104,820 455,342
1,784,743 2,713,987
1,068,600 1,325,900
2,829,720 2,789,394
(274,131) (600)
3,624,189 4114,694
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43. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Balance with related parties of the Group, associates, and companies with common directorship, retirement funds, directors
and key management personnel. Detail of transactions with related parties during the year, other than those which have been

disclosed in note 45 and else where in these consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Relationship Nature of transactions

Associates: Sales
Professional Services rendered
Rental income on properties
Professional Services acquired
Insurance premium
Purchase of assets
Sale of assets
Purchase of goods
Insurance claim received
Mark-up and bank charges paid
Profit received
Supplies purchased
Licence fee, signage and others
Rent Paid
Rent Received
Service Fee
ljarah Rentals

Employee benefit plans: Contribution to provident fund

Contribution to retirement benefit fund

43.1 There are no transactions with key management personnel other than under the terms of employment as disclosed in note 45

to these consolidated financial statements.

43.2 The receivable / payable balances with related parties as at June 30, 2019 are disclosed in the respective notes to these

consolidated financial statements.

43.3 Following are the related parties of the Group with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have

arrangement/agreement in place.
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2019 2018
———————— (Rupees in ‘000)--------
11,611,193 10,686,532
248,856 231,169
1,613,206 1,452,812

= 1,250
35,667 40,084
17,879 1,676

6,078 3,075
5135 65,238
3,622 844
10,715 4,332
72,270 204,861
496,053 522,977
32,724 38,015
3,693 1,623
4,047 -
20,410 736
2,266 2,576
52,102 39,530
7,361 4,967

S.No Company Name

11

12

13

14

15
16

17

18

Indus Motor Company Limited

Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited

Habib Insurance Company Limited
Agriauto Industries Limited

Metro Habib Cash and Carry
Pakistan (Private) Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

Zehra Homes Trust
First Habib Modaraba

Thal Limited - Employees' Provident Fund
Thal Limited - Employees'

Retirement Benefit Fund

Makro-Habib Pakistan Limited -
Employees' Provident Fund

Noble Computer Services (Private) Limited
- Employees' Provident Fund

Habib Metro Pakistan (Private) Limited -
Employees' Provident Fund

Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private) Limited
- Employees' Provident Fund

ThalNova Thar Power (Private) Limited
Metro Cash & Carry International
Holdings B.V.

METRO Cash & Carry Pakistan

(Private) Limited

Indus Lands (Private) Limited

Basis of
association

Associate

Associate

Associate

Common
Directorship
Associate of
subsidiary
Common
Directorship

Trusteeship held

Aggregate %
of shareholding
6.22%

1.30%

4.63%

7.35%

by spouse of a director

Subsidiary of
an associate
Employees' fund
Employees' fund

Employees' fund

Employees' fund

Employees' fund

Employees' fund

Joint Venuture
Shareholder
of subsidiary
Associate of
subsidiary
Common
Directorship

Nature of transactions

Sales of goods / Professional
services rendered / Rent
received

Sales of goods / Supplies
purchased / Professional
services rendered / Rent received
Insurance premium / Insurance
claim received

Professional services rendered /
Rent paid

Purchase of assets / Supplies
purchased

Mark-up and bank charges paid /
Profit received / Professional
services rendered

Sale of goods

ljarah rentals

Contribution made
Contribution made

Contribution made
Contribution made
Contribution made
Contribution made

Investment made
Dividend paid

Rental income

Sale of fixed assets
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43.4 Following are the associates of the Group with whom the Group had entered into transactions or have arrangement/agreement in
place.

Toyota Tsusho Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd

Nature: Trading Company

Registered address: 600 North Bridge, Road No. 19, 01 Parkview Square, Singapore 188778
Country of incorporation: Singapore

Basis of association: Associate of Shareholder Company

Aggregate percentage of shareholding: 25.36%

Nature of transactions: Supplies purchased

Operational status: Active

The name of Chief Executive is Mr. Shizuka Hayashi

Toyota Tsusho Corporation

Nature: Trading company

Registered Address: 9-8, Meieki 4-chome, Nakamura-ku, Nagoya 450-8575, Japan
Country of incorporation: Japan

Basis of association: Shareholder

Aggregate percentage of shareholding: 10%

Nature of transactions: Supplies purchased

Operational status: Active

The name of Chief Executive is Mr. Ichiro Kashitani

Toyota Boshoku Corporation Japan

Nature: Auto parts Manufacturer

Registered address: 1-1 Toyoda-cho, Kariya-shi, Aichi, 448-8651
Country of incorporation: Japan

Basis of association: Shareholder

Aggregate percentage of shareholding: 9.6%

Nature of transactions: Services acquired

Operational status: Active

The name of Chief Executive is Mr. Takeshi Numa
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44. REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVES, DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

2019 2018
Chief Chief
executive Directors Executives  executive Directors Executives
(Rupees in ‘000)
Managerial remuneration 16,320 - 543,539 20,257 - 512,325
Bonus 3,189 - 118,644 7,290 - 65,530
Group's contribution to provident fund - - 16,480 807 - 14,516
Group's contribution to retirement fund - - 2,879 - - 4,676
Other perquisites - - 3,585 - - 2,108
19,509 - 685,127 28,354 - 599,155
Number of persons 1 7 70 1 6 64

441 The chief executive, directors and certain executives of the Holding Company are provided with free use of company maintained cars.
44.2 Four non-executive directors (2018: Five) have been paid fees of Rs. 2,585,000 (2018: Rs. 1,870,000) for attending board meetings.
44.3 The Chief Executive and Director of Pakistan Industrial Aids (Private) Limited, A-One Enterprises (Private) Limited, Thal Boshoku Pakistan

(Private) Limited, Thal Power (Private) Limited, Makro-Habib Pakistan Limited and Thal Electrical (Private) Limited are not being paid any
remuneration for holding the office.

45. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

2019 2018

Annual Capacity

Jute (Metric Tons) 33,800 33,800
Auto air conditioners (Units) 90,000 90,000
Paper bags (Nos. 000s) 251,000 251,000
Alternator (Units) 90,000 90,000
Starter (Units) 90,000 90,000
Seat tracks (Sets) 55,000 55,000
Side frame (Sets) 55,000 55,000
Air cleaner (Sets) 110,000 110,000
Seats (Units)* 50,000 -
Actual Production

Jute (Metric Tons) 22,898 26,748
Auto air conditioners (Units) 68,095 63,914
Wire harness (Units) 173,532 148,447
Paper bags (Nos. 000s) 123,545 117,243
Alternator (Units) 56,542 51,134
Starter (Units) 56,542 51,134
Seat tracks (Sets) 46,000 50,000
Side frame (Sets) 56,000 54,000
Air cleaner (Sets) 35,000 33,000
Seats (Units) - -
Reason for shortfall Low demand Low demand

* New production plant was set up during the year.
45.1 The capacity of wire harness is dependent on product mix.

45.2 The production capacity of Laminate Operations depends on the relative proportion of various types of products.
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46. PROVIDENT FUND

Investments out of provident fund have been made in compliance with the provisions of section 218 of the Act and the rules formulated

for this purpose.

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

471 Financial assets as per statement of financial position
At amortised cost
Long term loans
Long term deposits
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits
Interest accrued
Other receivables
Short-term investments
Cash and bank balances

At fair value through OCI
Long term investments

At fair value through profit and loss
Short-term investments

47.2 Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
At amortised cost
Long-term deposits
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Unpaid dividend
Short-term running finance

Note

12
13
18
19
18.1

21
22
23

22

27
28

30

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial instruments are subject to credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk. The

Board of Directors oversees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

481 Credit risk

2019

3,996
23,188
2,431,440
28,224
297,754
7,648
83,559
3,092,313
1,068,600

149,279

4,457,412

323,777
2,880,445
56,697
49,409
274131

2018

9,048
21,433
1,593,086
86,694
112,184
2,451
49,611
3,010,089
1,325,900

218,824

6,059,148

319,720
2,732,729
49,712
47,954
600

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other
conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Group's performance to developments affecting a particular

industry.

The Group is mainly exposed to credit risk on trade debts, short term investments and bank balances. The Group seeks to minimize the
credit risk exposure through having exposure only to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securities where applicable.
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Quality of financial assets
The credit quality of financial assets is analyzed as under:

Trade debts

The analysis of trade debts is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired [includes Rs. 695.487 million
(2018: Rs. 538.935 million) receivable from related parties.]

Past due but not impaired
- Less than 90 days [includes Rs. 9.935 million
(2018: Rs. 12.680 million) receivable from related parties.]
- 91 to 180 days [includes Rs. 0.075 million
(2018: 0.121 million) receivable from related parties.]
- 181 to 360 days [includes Nil
(2018: Nil) receivable from related parties.]
- Greater than 360 days [includes Nil
(2018: Nil) receivable from related parties.]

Bank balances
Ratings

Al+

A-1+

Al*

pP-1 >

* This includes rating assigned by an international rating agency to foreign bank.
** This reflects rating assigned by an international rating agency to a foreign bank.

Short term investments
Ratings

Al+

A-1+

AA(f)

AA

2019 2018

1,602,843 1,258,948
703,717 295,860
84,506 35,549
40,340 2,699

34 -
2,431,440 1,593,056
999,377 1,016,128
67,255 132,183
1,342 23

- 175,167
1,067,974 1,323,501
1,254,580 921,470
1,299,094 2,088,619
3,748,567 4,557,799
24,655 -
24,450 821,174
409,740 657,074

- 23,101
6,761,086 6,980,618

Financial assets other than trade debts, bank balances and short term investments are not exposed to any material credit risk.

48.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with the
financial instruments. To guard against the risk, the Group has diversified funding sources and the assets are managed with
liquidity in mind. The maturity profile is monitored to ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained.
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48.3

Less
On than 3to12 More than
demand 3 months months 1 year Total
(Rupees in ‘000)

Year ended June 30, 2019
Long term deposit = = = 328,777 323,777
Trade and other payable 2,880,445 - - - 2,880,445
Short-term running finance - - 274,131 - 274,131
Unclaimed dividend 56,697 - - = 56,697
Unpaid dividend 49,409 - - - 49,409

2,986,551 - 274,131 328,777 3,584,459
Year ended June 30, 2018
Long term deposit - - - 319,720 319,720
Trade and other payables 2,732,729 - - - 2,732,729
Short-term running finance 600 - - = 600
Unclaimed dividend 49,712 - - - 49,712
Unpaid dividend 47,954 - - - 47,954

2,830,995 - - 319,720 3,150,715

Foreign Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or a financial liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange
rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currency. The Group's exposure to foreign currency
risks is as follows:

2019 2018

Trade receivables (USD) 481 52
Trade and other payables (USD) 164 2,127
Trade and other payables (EUR) 1,232 520
Trade and other payables (JPY) 43,927 1,057
Trade and other payables (CHF) 20 -
Total USD - receivable 317 -
Total USD - payable - 2,075
Total JPY - payable 483,927 1,057
Total CHF - payable 20 -
Total EUR - payable 1,232 520
The following significant exchange rates have been applied at the reporting dates:

usSD 164.50 121.50
EUR 186.99 142
JPY 1.53 -
CHF 168.60 -

Sensitivity analysis:
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the USD, AED, JPY and CHF's exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and the Group’s equity.
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48.4

48.5

49.

50.

Change in Effect on Effect on
exchange profit or (loss) equity
rate % before tax
-------- (Rupees in ‘000)--—------
2019 +10 (24,897) (17,582)
-10 24,897 17,582
2018 +10 (32,681) (22,996)
-10 32,681 22,996

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's
short-term borrowings and cash in deposit account. The interest rates on these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Sensitivity Analysis:
The following figures demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax:

Increase / Effect on
decrease in profit before
basis points tax

2019
KIBOR + 100 29,199
KIBOR -100 (29,199)
2018
KIBOR + 100 7,828
KIBOR -100 (7,323)

Equity price risks

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cashflows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Group’s quoted equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment
securities. The Group manages the equity price risk through diversification. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the Group’s
Board of Directors on a regular basis. The Board of Directors review and approve all equity investment decisions.

As at the statement of financial position date, the exposure to listed equity securities at fair value was Rs. 149.27 million. A decrease of
10% in the share price of these securities would have an impact of approximately Rs. 14.92 million on the equity or income depending
whether or not the decline is significant and prolonged. An increase of 10% in the share price of the listed security would impact equity with
the similar amount.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Group is
currently financing its operations through equity and short term running finance.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fairvalue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. Investment in subsidiary companies and associates are carried at cost. The carrying values of financial assets
and liabilities reflected in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the statement of financial position date. The
estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is not considered to be significantly different from their book value.

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (levell);

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
orindirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (level 3).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2019 (Rupees in ‘000)
Assets
Equity Investments at fair value through OCI 149,279 - - 149,279
Short-term investments 4,457,412 - - 4,457,412
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2018 (Rupees in ‘000)
Equity Investments at fair value through OCI 218,824 - - 218,824
- Short-term investments 6,059,148 - - 6,059,148

There were no transfers amongst levels during the year.
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OPERATING SEGMENTS

511 Segment analysis

2018

2019

Real
estate
management

Building
Materials and

Real

Building
Materials and

estate
management

Allied

Engineering Products

Allied

Engineering Products

Elimination Total

& others
(Rupees in ’000)

Elimination Total

& others
(Rupees in ‘000)

(150,788) 20,308,071

428,161
1,086,838

13,391,940 6,638,758

(179,158) 283,544,641

447,889
1,148,099

7,392,097

15,883,813

Sales revenue

4,685,602

(2,280)

2,837,290 763,754

5,130,615

(1,283)

924,518

3,059,281

Segment result
Unallocated

(expenses) / income:
Administrative and

(897,265)

(859,290)
(446,545)

distribution costs

Other charges
Other income

(271,159)
651,586
4,168,764

869,416
4,694,196

Operating profit
Finance cost

(10,2006)

(24,842)

Share of net profit of associates

941,177
(1,547,656)
3,552,079

941,312
(1,648,356)

and joint ventures

Taxation

3,962,310

(1,669,381) 18,726,058

4,619,474 11,850,753

3,925,212

(1,5627,984) 23,299,341

6,177,097 12,244,597

6,405,631

Segment assets

11,082,657

9,457,472

Corporate assets

296,308
30,105,023

496,869
33,258,682

Unallocated assets

211,389
131,424

925,805 1,675156 (1,059,298) 2,897,407
20,308,071

1,355,744

148,866
3,683,670

(1,169,776) 3,301,617
233,187

1,762,190

816,622

1,892,581

Segment liabilities
Corporate liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
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The Engineering segment is engaged in the manufacturing of automotive parts. 52. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 20, 2019 has approved the following:
The Building material and allied products segment includes jute, papersack and laminate operations.

(i) transfer of Rs. 2,506.5 million from unappropriated profit to general reserve; and
The third segment includes the real estate management, trading and management services.
(i) payment of cash dividend of Rs. 5.50 per share for the year ended June 30, 2019 for approval of the members at the Annual

51.2 Geographical Information of customers General Meeting to be held on October 26, 2019.
Revenues from customers (Country wise)

2019 2018 53. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

-------- (Rupees in ‘000)--------
Pakistan 23,063,523 19,864,918 53.1 Total number of employees
Australia 6,431 26,109 2019 2018
E;I/Ist 17i?;2 11’719; Total number of employees as at June 30, 4,266 4,831
Estonia 1,054 1132 Average number of employees during the year 4,549 4,691
Italy 48,047 65,324
Jordan 8,491 _ 54. GENERAL
Kuwait 1,420 2,945
Saudi Arabia 6,366 _ 541 Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and reclassified, wherever necessary. However, there were no significant
Spain 2,951 749 reclassifications to report.
Turkey 36,754 9,077
United Arab Emirates 198,661 132,952 54.2 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousands.
Afghanistan = 5,862
Bangladesh - 2,562 55. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
Malaysia - 5,353 These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on September 20, 2019 by the Board of Directors of the
Oman - 2,008 Holding Company.
Switzerland - 5,595
Turkmenistan - 40,348
Others 3,118 131,424

23,544,641 20,308,071

The revenue information above is based on the location of customers.

51.3. Of the Group's total revenue, one customer accounts for more than 10%.

51.4. All non current assets of the group as at June 30, 2019 (June 30, 2018) are located in Pakistan.

e J ,
-”i'd_..f—’___' Quitrs P
- e .
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR
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THAL LIMITED

E-DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM

We wish to inform you that in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act,
2017, it is mandatory for a listed company to pay cash dividend to shareholders only through electronic
mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders.

In order to receive your dividends directly into your Bank account, please complete the particulars as
mentioned below and return this letter duly signed along with a copy of your CNIC to the Registrar of
the Company M/s FAMCO Associates (Pvt.) Limited, 8-F, Near Hotel Faran, Nursery, Block-6,
P.E.C.H.S., Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

CDC shareholders are requested to submit their Dividend Mandate and CNIC directly to their broker
(participant)/CDC on the given below format.

| hereby communicate to receive my future dividends directly in my Bank account as detailed below:

Name of shareholder :

Folio Number / CDC Account No: Company
Limited.

Contact number of shareholder:
Email Address:
Title of Account:

IBAN Number (see Note
below):

Account No:
Branch Code:
Name of Bank:

Bank branch & full mailing address:
CNIC No. (copy attached):
NTN (in case of corporate entity):

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct and to the best of my knowledge; | shall
keep the Company informed in case of any changes in the said particulars In future.

Shareholder’s Signature

Note: Please provide complete IBAN Number, after checking with your concerned branch to enable electronic
credit directly into your bank account.

The payment of cash dividend will be processed to the above account only. Your company is entitled to
rely on the account number as per your instructions. The company shall not be responsible for any loss,
damage, liability or claim arising, directly or indirectly, from any error, delay, or failure in performance of
any of its obligations hereunder which is caused by incorrect payment instructions and / or due to any
event beyond the control of the company.

The shareholder who hold shares in physical form are requested to submit the required Dividend Mandate
Form after duly filled in to the Share Registrar concerned. The Shareholders who hold shares in Central
Depository Company are requested to submit the required Dividend Mandate Form after duly filled in to
their Participants / Investor Account Services.
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THAL LIMITED

Form of Proxy
Fifty Third Annual General Meeting

The Secretary

Thal Limited

House of Habib, 4th floor
Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi- 75350

I/We

of in the district of
being member of Thal Limited, and holder of

Ordinary Shares as per Share Register Folio No.

and/or CDC Participant I.D. No.

And Sub. Account No. hereby appoint
of in the district of
or failing him / her of

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 53rd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on
October 26, 2019 and or any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of
WITNESSESS:
Signature
Name (Signature should agree with
Add the specimen signature
ress registered with the Company).
CNIC or
P N Signature on
assport No. Rs 5/-
revenue stamp
Signature
Name
Address
CNIC or
Passport No.
Note:

1.
2.

A member entitled to be present and vote at the Meeting may appoint another member as proxy to attend and vote for him / her.

No person shall be act as proxy unless he/she, himself/herself is a member of the Company Except that a corporation may appoint

a person who is not a member.

Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the Meeting.
CDC Shareholders and their Proxies must each attach an attested photocopy of their computerized National Identity Card or Passport
With this proxy form.
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Sales and Profitability
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Be aware, Be alert,
Be safe

Learn about investing at
www. jamapunji.pk
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THAL LIMITED

4th Floor, House of Habib,

3 Jinnah cooperative Housing Society, Block-7/8,
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi- 75350, Pakistan.

Tel: 92 (21)3431 2030/ 34312185

Design & Produced: R-Square



